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1 START TIME: 10:07 A.M. 

2 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, ladies 

4 and gentlemen. Welcome once again for many of you. 

5 Beautiful day. We will attempt to move things forward 

6 in an orderly fashion, and as we have discussed 

7 previously, with our rules, we are asking that we try 

8 to keep our public comments to two to three minutes. 

9 This is considered a new application, so if you have 

10 signed up, even if you've spoken before or submitted 

11 written testimony, you will be allowed to give 

12 testimony. We appreciate your being timely where we 

13 possibly can. 

14 That having been said, I will ask for an 

15 approval of the agenda. I need a motion for that. 

16 MS. AVERY: Call to order. 

17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Call to order. I'm 

18 sorry. And a roll call on that. 

19 MR. ROATE: Dr. Burden. 

2 0 DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

2 1 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

2 2 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

2 3 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

2 4 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

L. . *~.", ~ -A--- ~.~ .-- -- _i 
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1 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

2 MR. HAYES: Yes. 

3 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

4 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 5 

6 MS. OLSON: Yes. 

7 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

8 MR. PENN: Yes. 

9 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

10 MR. SEWELL: yes. 

MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 11 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

13 MR. ROATE: All present. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion to approve the 

15 agenda. 

16 MR. EAKER: So move. 

17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion and second. 

18 MS. OLSON: Second. 

19 MR. SEWELL: Second. 

2 0  CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Roll call. 

2 1 MR. ROATE: Dr. Burden. 

2 2 DR. BURDEN: Here. 

2 3 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

2 4 MR. EAKER: Here. 

6.- - --a.Lb. ~ --.p-d ~ a---.-* 
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1 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

2 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Here. 

3 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

4 MR. HAYES: Yes. 

5 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

6 MR. HILGENBRINK: Here. 

7 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

8 MS. OLSON: Yes. 

9 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

10 MR. PENN: Here. 

11 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

12 MR. SEWELL: Here. 

13 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. Motion passes. 

15 Thank you very much. 

16 Can I get approval of the minutes? A 

17 motion and a second, and a voice vote will be 

18 satisfactory. We did that. I'm sorry. Excuse me. 

19 No. No. We need that. A voice vote will work. A 

20 motion and a second. 

2 1 MR. SEWELL: SO move. 

22 MR. HAYES: Motion to second. 

2 3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion to second by Mr. 

24 Hayes. Thank you very much. Comments? Hearing none, 
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1 voice vote of aye. I 

2 (AYE VOTE) I 

I 
3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. Thank 

I 
4 you very much. 1 

i 

5 Post permits approved by the Chairman. 1 
i 
(I 

6 Michael, do we have post permits? 1 
7 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 1 
8 The first item is Project 11-005, Touchette Regional 1 
9 Hospital to discontinue Kenneth Hall Regional Hospital 1 t 
10 and to establish a 12-bed A M 1  category of service at I 

1 

11 Touchette Regional Hospital permit renewed to 

12 September 30, 2011, approved July 21, 2011. 
I i 
j 

13 Project No. 09-052, Belleville Memorial 1 
14 Hospital to construct a medical office building 

15 approved for permit alteration to change financing 

16 from mortgage financing to a bond issue approved July 

17 29, 2011. 

Project No. 07-093, Resurrection Medical 18 

19 Center to modernize existing hospital approved for 

20 permit alteration to increase the permit amount by 

21 approximately two million dollars approved August 2, 

22 2011. 

23 Project 07-093, Resurrection Medical Center 

24 to modernize existing hospital approved for a permit 

I : 
i 
1 

i 
1 
! 
! 
1 

f 

1 
i 
I 
1 
I 

1 
,I 
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1 renewal to March 1, 2012, approved August 2, 2011. 

2 Finally, project 10-081 Holy Cross Hospital 

3 change of ownership approved for permit renewal to 

4 October 31, 2011, approved August 2, 2011. 

5 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

6 DR. BURDEN: Mr. Chairman. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes, sir. 

8 DR. BURDEN: It's my understanding that 

9 Dungarvan no longer wants to proceed with debt No. 5. 

10 Am I correct in that? 

11 MR. CONSTANTINO: We haven't had any 

12 information in that fact. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: You have not? 

14 DR. BURDEN: It's been in the papers. 

15 That's where I read it. 

16 MR. CONSTANTINO: We can check on that 

17 tomorrow for you. 

18 DR. BURDEN: Thank you. 

19 MR. URSO: We have nothing official yet? 

2 0 MR. CONSTANTINO: No. 

21 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Mi.chae1. 

22 Hearing no other questions, we move forward to items 

23 of Board action. 

2 4 Item 6(A) permit renewal. 07-058 Phoenix 

-- d.u-~.h-,z ----. ~ - %  _I 
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1 Medical Center. Do we have anyone here to speak to 

2 this item? If so, please come forward. 

3 Thank you very much. Good morning. 

4 MS. FORTNER: Good morning. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you would have a 

6 seat and introduce yourself and be sworn in. 

7 MS. FORTNER: My name is Lil Fortner. I'm 

8 the vice-president of Phoenix Medical Center. We are 

9 in the process of attempting to reopen a facility for 

10 our county. 

11 (OATH GIVEN) 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Staff 

13 report. 

14 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

15 Phoenix Medical Center was approved in October of 

16 2007, for a 10-bed acute care hospital in Carmi, 

17 Illinois. The project is obligated, and the current 

18 required completion date is August 31, 2011. The 

19 total project cost is approximately $2.8 million. And 

20 this is the third permit renewal request for this 

21 project. 

22 The permit holders state the project 

23 experienced delays with equipment delivery/ 

24 installation and receipt of grant funding from the 

..------. , -..,- - - * *A 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 

! 
i 
i 

I 

1 

i 
I 

i 
i 
i 
! 

I 

? 
1 

I 
; 

j 4 
i 

1 
I 

1 
1 

1 
i 
1 

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



O P E P D E ~ & F ~ ~ ~ I Z O ~ ~  

Page 9 
1 state to proceed with the project. 

2 The permit holders have spent to date 

3 approximately 40 percent of the total project cost. 

4 The applicant is requesting to renew the permit until 

5 August 31, 2013. 

6 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
1 
I 
i 
i 

i 
7 CHAIWAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Would you 1 : 

8 like to share any information with the Board? 
i 

9 
1 

MS. FORTNER: We appreciate the indulgence i 
j 10 of the Board for hearing us, this opportunity. We're , 
$ 
4 

11 very grateful for the work of IDPH's staff in i 
I 

12 assisting with progressing with this project. We have 1 
1 
! 

13 had some difficulty and challenging time down there in 

14 southern Illinois, but we are progressing. j 
15 The funding is available, and we are 

16 currently working on our HVAC systems. We had to go 

17 to a redesign which was not anticipated with our 

I 
1 

18 original project approach, but it is to meet 

19 requirements that are appropriate and necessary, and 

20 it is underway at this point. 
i 
j 

2 1 We have engaged an engineer, Robert Haines, 

22 and an architect, who are progressing quickly. We are 

23 pursuing it with due diligence and have every i 
f, 

24 expectation of being able to complete this project for ,: , 
1 

---,- - -- -~ .-A 
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1 our county. I I 
2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Questions 

i 
'1 

3 from the Board? a 

4 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Judge. 

I 
6 JUSTICE GREIMAN: How much is your state 1 

7 money that you're looking for? 
i 

8 MS. FORTNER: We have the funding at this I 

9 juncture available to --  

10 JUSTICE GREIMAN: You received the state 

11 funding? 

I 

12 MS. FORTNER: We have. We have. We were 

I 
I 

13 very graciously and appreciative of the efforts of the 4 
14 state to assist with this very critical project. 

15 JUSTICE GREIMAN: HOW much was it Out of 

I 
16 curiosity? 

17 MS. FORTNER: Three million dollars. 
3 

18 JUSTICE GREIMAN: All right. 
t 

19 MS. FORTNER: We have not expended -- 

20 JUSTICE GREIMAN: All right. Thank you. 

21 That's all I wanted, to make sure they were paying 

22 their share. 

23 MS. FORTNER: Thank you. Yes, sir. 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Any other questions? 1 
. ..A+- -,A=,--- -- 1 -- 
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1 Hearing none, may I have a motion to 

2 approve to renew the permit 07-058 Phoenix Medical. 

3 Center to August 31, 2013? 

4 MR. EAKER: SO move. 

5 MR. SEWELL: Second. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moved and seconded. 

7 Roll call. 

8 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Mr. Eaker, 

9 seconded by Mr. Sewell. Call for a vote. Dr. Burden. 

10 DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 11 

12 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 13 

14 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

15 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

16 MR. HAYES: Y ~ S .  

17 MR. ROATE: Mr. ~ilgenbrink. 

18 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

19 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

2 0 MS. OLSON: Yes. 

2 1 MR. ROATE: Mr. Perm. 

2 2 MR. PENN: Yes. 

23 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

2 4 MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

- .~~ ~ -- .a=."' ." ->Lk~--..- .A 
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1 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

3 MR. ROATE: That's nine votes in the 

4 positive. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. 

6 ~ u s t  for our court reporter, if you need us 

7 to stop at any point, just let us know. 

8 Thank you very much. 

9 MS. FORTNER: Thank you so much. 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good luck to you. 

11 MS. FORTNER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Item NO. 10-005 Smith 12 

13 Crossing. Good morning, Gentlemen. 

14 MR. SHEETS: Good morning. 

15 MR. KNIERY: Good morning. 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you would introduce 

17 yourself to the court reporter and then be sworn in, 

18 please. 

19 MR. SHEETS: Chuck Sheets, Polsinelli & 

20 Shughart, the attorney for the project. 

2 1 MR. KNIERY: I'm John Kniery, K-n-i-e-r-y, 

22 health consultant for the applicant. 

23 (OATH GIVEN) 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Gentlemen. Staff 

" --.-A ,,,--. -----A- ~ 
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MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

3 In July, 2010, the State Board approved project No. 

4 10-005 for the discontinuation of a 30-bed long-term 

5 care category of service under the CCRC variance and 

6 the establishment of a 46-bed long-term care facility 

7 with unrestricted access. 

8 The project is obligated, and the recurrent 

9 required completion date is September 1, 2011. The 

10 total estimated project cost is approximately $5.8 

i 

i 

11 million. This is a second permit renewal request for 
i 

12 this project. 

13 The permit holders request a four-month 

14 renewal from September 1, 2011, to December 31, 2011. 

15 Reason for the delay was the applicant failed to 

16 receive final approval from IDPH Design Standard Unit 

17 for the architectural drawings floor plans. 

18 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

19 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Would you 

20 like to share with the Board? 

2 1 MR. SHEETS: Well, the good news is that 

22 the project is supposed to be complete next week, but 

23 in light of the fact that we didn't estimate correctly 

24 our last time here in front of you, we allotted for 

- ~.. * ---- . . . A,-, -.A- .. 
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1 three extra months just in case there's some issue. 1 
2 The contractor didn't understand that completion means 

3 more than finishing the structure. We have to bring 
I 
I 

4 in the inspectors from Public Health. But essentially 

5 the project is 95 percent done as of today. : 

I 
6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Great. Questions from 1 
7 the Board? 1 
8 MR. PENN: Wouldn't that be four months? / 
9 September, October, November, December 31st? 

I 
i 

10 MR. SHEETS: It is. I meant three extra I r 
11 months. We really only need one month for the permit 1 

9 
t 

12 renewal just to have the inspectors come in, but we 9 

13 allotted three extra months just in case there's 
i 

14 another -- 

15 MR. PENN: September 1st was the original 

16 contract? 

MR. SHEETS: Correct. 
1 

17 

18 MR. PENN: The first. So they're actually 

19 120 days. 

2 0 MR. SHEETS: We are looking for 120 days, 
i 
I 4 

21 correct. 
i 

2 2 MR. PENN: Okay. 
t 
i 

2 3 JUSTICE GREIMAN: I have a question for i 
t 

24 you. is the 30-bed long-term care that you're asking 

---~ --"-~.- % ~ ~- 
i 
i 
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1 be discontinued still in operation, or has that been 

2 discontinued before the opening of the other one? 

3 MR. SHEETS: Well, what we did, Justice, is 

4 we actually moved Assisted Living or Sheltered, is 

5 that correct? 

6 MR. KNIERY: Yeah. 

7 MR. SHEETS: From one area to a new wing 

8 that we built. We had to get that approved from the 

9 state before we could move the residents that were in 

10 the existing unit now that we've remodeled. 

11 JUSTICE GREIMAN: So they've been moved to 

12 an appropriate place, and you've discontinued -- you 

13 have discontinued the 30-bed long-term care. 

14 MR. SHEETS: NO, we have not. We haven't 

15 di.scontinued anything, Judge. Go ahead. 

16 MR. CONSTANTINO: Justice Greiman. 

17 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yeah. 

18 MR. CONSTANTINO: The way this project 

19 developed, they were approved originally for a 30-bed 

20 long-term care facility under the CCRC variance. So 

21 they could not accept any residents from outside that 

22 CCRC. Subsequently, they came back to us and 

23 requested that they --  the Board remove that variance 

24 allowing them to have residents from outside the 

L - - . ~ ~ ~  ~.. -~-.""**.-.~ 
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2 and approve them for 46 long-term care beds. 

Page l6 

3 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Okay. Thank you. 

4 MR. SHEETS: So in essence we added 16. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Any other questions? 

6 Can I have a motion to approve permit 

7 10-005 Smith Crossing to December 31, 2011? 

8 MS. OLSON: So move. 

9 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Second. 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moved and seconded. 

11 Roll call. 

12 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Ms. Olson, 

13 seconded by Justice Greiman. 

14 MR. ROATE: Dr. Burden. 

15 DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

16 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

17 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

18 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

19 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

2 0 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

2 1 MR. HAYES: Yes. 

22 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

2 3 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

2 4 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

L-_____ ,.. ,.-. .. . ,..<, . . .-- 
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1 MS. OLSON: Yes. 

2 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

3 MR. PENN: Yes. 

4 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

5 MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

6 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 7 

8 MR. ROATE: Nine votes in the positive. 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. Thank 

10 you. 

11 MR. SHEETS: Thank you very much. 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good luck. 

13 MR. SHEETS : Thank you. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We have no extension 

15 requests? 

16 MR. CONSTANTINO: No, sir. 

1.7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moving on to exemption 

18 requests. No. E-010-11, Methodist Medical Center of 

19 Illinois. Do we have anyone here? We do have some 

20 folks from the Methodist Medical. Thank you. Good 

21 morning. 

22 MS. SIMON: Good morning. 

23 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you could introduce 

24 yourselves to the reporter and be sworn in, please. 

L.-. . ~ - - ~  - .- . - ~ -.,...p-.e 
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2 CEO and President of Methodist Medical Center. 

5 for the Iowa Health System. 

(OATH GIVEN) 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Michael. 

MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

9 The applicants are Iowa Health System, Methodist 

10 Health Services Corporation, and the Methodist Medical 

11 Center of Illinois are proposing a change in the 

14 equipment. Iowa Health System will become the sole 

15 corporate member of Methodist Health Service 

18 $175,000,000 for capital improvements for the 

19 Methodist Medical Center in Illinois. 

21 information as required by the exemption application, 

22 and the applicants have affirmed that beds and 

23 services will not change for 12 months after project 

24 completion, and the charity care policy will not 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 
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1 change for two years after project completion and will 

2 not be more restrictive than the policy in effect one 

3 year prior to this transaction. 

4 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Would you 

6 like to speak to the Board, please? 

7 MR. VERMEER: Yes, thank you. Good 

8 morning. As I said, I'm Kevin Vermeer. I'm the 

9 Executive vice-president and Chief Financial Officer 

10 for the Iowa Health System, and here with me is Debbie 

11 Simon, the Interim President and CEO of Methodist 

12 Health Services Corporation and Methodist Medical 

13 Center of Illinois. 

14 We wanted to begin our comments by thanking 

15 the Board staff for their valuable assistance to us in 

16 preparing and submitting this certificate of 

17 application. We are also gratified that we meet all 

18 the requirements for issuance of an exemption. 

19 First, let me tell you very briefly about 

20 the Iowa Health System and explain why this proposed 

21 affiliation makes sense for both Methodist and for the 

22 Iowa Health System. 

2 3 Iowa Health System is the largest 

24 integrated health system in Iowa. Through our 
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1 relationships with hospitals in metropolitan and urban 

2 areas as well as 160 physician clinics, we provide 

3 care to Iowa and to western Illinois. 

4 Our vision statement is very simple. Best 

5 outcome every patient every time. We're a 3.4-hospital 

6 non-denominational system which includes hospitals 

7 with Iowa Methodist Medical Center and Blank 

8 Children's Hospital in Des Moines, Iowa, as well as 

9 Trinity Rock Island and Trinity Moline in Illinois. 

10 When we began discussions with Methodist, 

11 what we found was our system shared very similar 

12 values. We shared commitment to the importance of 

13 local involvement and participation in the governance 

14 and management of local providers, shared commitment 

15 to clinical excellence to community, to education and 

16 teaching, to being and remaining financially strong 

17 and self-sustaining, to reinvesting community assets 

18 in the communities that we serve, and to becoming 

19 through service, innovation, and growth, the first 

20 choice for affordable and high quality health care in 

23. the communities that we serve. 

2 2 As the State Agency Report noted, his will 

23 provide for Methodist's benefit a minimum of 

24 $175,000,000 allocated through the first seven years 
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1 of the agreement after implementation toward the 

2 replacement and renovation of the emergency department 

3 as well as the imaging and surgery services on the 

4 Methodist's main campus as well as other strategic 

5 capital projects. 

6 While we expect Methodist to service any 

7 debt associated with those capital projects, we 

8 believe that our combined financial strength and 

9 credit ratings make it easier to obtain financing as 

10 required to complete these projects. Naturally, to 

11 the extent that any capital commitment requires this 

12 Board's approval, we expect to be reporting to obtain 

13 any CON permits. 

14 I would like to turn this over to Debbie. 

MS. SIMON: Okay. Thank you, Kevin. I'm 15 

16 Debbie Simon. I serve as the Interim President and 

17 CEO of Methodist Health Service Corporation and 

18 Methodist Medical Center of Illinois, which is our 

19 hospital in Peoria. 

2 0 As Kevin has mentioned we do share similar 

21 values. We have a common culture and mission that 

22 complements each other. That was a critical factor in 

23 our decision to join the Iowa Health System. As you 

24 would anticipate, we are planning to develop a robust 
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1 integration plan that will help us integrate and 

2 transition. We will share with each other our 

3 expertise and experience in managed-care contracting, 

4 physician recruitment and development, performance 

5 improvement, benchmarking and other areas. 

6 We're very proud of the level of care that 

7 we currently provide. We believe in sharing our 

8 common experiences and common knowledge, that we can 

9 benefit the patients that we serve. We also 

10 anticipate that this affiliation will result in cost 

11 savings for us. One example of cost savings is in our 

1.2 joint participation in the benefits of a single group 

13 purchasing program. The increased size of that 

14 program should result in more favorable pricing for 

15 us. The favorable pricing will help our patients and 

16 allow us to remain strong as we continue to serve the 

17 community. 

18 In some way the benefits of this 

1.9 affiliation will strengthen Methodist as we go through 

20 the most significant health care reform in history. 

2 1 Being respectful of your time, Kevin and I 

22 would be happy to answer any questions about what 

23 we're here before you for. 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Debbie. Any 
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1 questions from the Board? 

2 DR. BURDEN: Chairman. 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Dr. Burden. 

4 DR. BURDEN: Your last sentence, I think, 

5 helped explain the why of this affiliation. While I 

6 am impressed in the communities --  the general Peoria 

7 communities, St. Francis and Methodist Hospital 

8 represent the major components of the delivery of 

9 health care. Am I correct in that? 

10 MS. SIMON: Yes. 

3.1 DR. BURDEN: I notice that you are 25 

12 percent Medicaid on your profile submitted 2009, 

13 charity care seven percent, that's admirable, and I 

14 understand that those things -- both those numbers are 

15 reasonably high. However, I also see that we have a 

16 lot of hospitals appearing in front of us now for the 

17 very reason that apparently you are, reacting to 

18 legislation that comes due in 2014, assuming the 

19 Supreme Court goes along with what's been proposed. 

20 We expect to hear that too. However, I don't see --  

21 really your utilization of on med/surge is certainly 

22 better than a lot of hospitals that confront us with 

23 their issues. Are you guys affiliating essentially 

24 before dramatic problems occur, you see what's coming 
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1 and want to be prepared for what's coming? Do I read 

2 what your affiliation is really all about? 

3 MS. SIMON: Absolutely. Our board has been 

4 very proactive in looking at the future as has our 

5 executive management team, and we believe that the 1 

1 
6 competitive environment in which are --  we are finding 

7 ourselves in Peoria, that this will prepare us for the 

8 future. 

9 DR. BURDEN: You plan on having the same 

10 essential amount of Medicaid --  providing Medicaid 

11 patients and charity care as you have in the past, is 

12 that about the same? 

13 MS. SIMON: Yes, we do. 

14 DR. BURDEN: Last question. Is the 

15 teaching program no longer affiliated with Methodist? 

16 Is it all over at St. Francis? I'm talking about 

17 residency training, et cetera, et cetera, et cetera. 

18 MS. SIMON: No, we still have a residency 

19 in family practice, and we are now opening a new 

20 residency in psych. So we still have two very robust 

21 residency programs at Methodist. 

22 DR. BURDEN: Thank you. 

2 3  MR. SEWELL: Are you under any requirements 

24 in terms of the fair market value of the facility, you 
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1 know, like under some state laws you have to either 

2 turn that over to a not-for-profit tax exempt or start 

3 a foundation? Is it because you're affiliated that 

4 you don't have to do that or --  the 230 some million 

5 I'm concerned about. 

6 MS. SIMON: We are both not-for-profit 

7 organizations, and our assets stay with the Methodist 

8 Health Service Corporation. 

9 MR. SEWELL : Okay. 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Further questions? 

11 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yeah. In your testimony 

12 just now, you said that you invest in community 

13 assets. That's what you do. What investments of 

14 community assets? Give me an example of -- 

15 MR. VERMEER: Well, what we're saying is 

16 that any profits generated through our facilities are 

17 invested back into that same community, that same 

18 local community that generates those. 

19 JUSTICE GREIMAN: How are they invested 

20 though? What does it mean -- 

2 1 MR. VERMEER: They're invested through 

22 improvements in facilities, through purchase of new 

23 technology, through provision of various services. 

2 4 JUSTICE GREIMAN: In the hospitals is what 
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1 -- that's where the money is invested, back in the 

2 hospital? 

3 MR. VERMEER: In the hospitals, in 

4 physician clinics, in other services that are 

5 provided. 

6 JUSTICE GREIMAN: But when you say invested 

7 in the community assets, you're putting your money in 

8 your own operation then, is that -- which is all 

9 right. I'm not suggesting otherwise. It may not 

10 be --  

11 MR. VERMEER: Right. 

12 JUSTICE GREIMAN: It may not be exactly 

13 what you say when you say community assets. All 

14 right. We'll give you a pass. 
I 

MR. EAKER: If I might clarify. Since 

I 
15 1 

16 you're not-for-profit but that the profits generated 

17 in Peoria won't wind up in Davenport, Iowa? 

18 MR. VERMEER: That is correct. i 
19 MR. EAKER: Okay. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: John, did you have a 1 

21 question? 

22 MR. HAYES: Yes, Mr. Chairman. You know, 1 
23 just to clarify that, basically the cash that is being 

24 exchanged in this transaction is for --  175 million 

I r 
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1 for capital expenditures? 

2 MR. VERMEER: Yeah, there is not cash being 

3 exchanged. What is being provided is credit capacity 

4 essentially. SO using our credit rating and our 

5 credit capacity to provide funds for Methodist to 

6 complete strategic projects. 

7 MR. HAYES: Okay. 

8 DR. BURDEN: Is your credit rating Standard 

9 & Poor's? (Inaudible) 

10 MR. VERMEER: No, we are Moody's & Fitch. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: He asked if the credit 

12 rating was Standard & Poor's. 

13 DR. BURDEN: I meant that as a light joke. 

14 MR. HAYES: So basically when you had the 

15 fair market value of the transaction, you had a 

16 valuation done of that? 

17 MR. VERMEER: Correct. 

18 MR. HAYES: Okay. And that 232 million, 

19 that is -- where does that number go? Where is that 

20 on --  that's put on your balance sheet? 

2 1 MR. VERMEER: It is not. It is not put On 

22 the balance sheet. I mean basically it's an 

23 independent valuation of that organization's value at 

24 the time. They -- Methodist Health Services 
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I Corporation becomes consolidated into Iowa Health j 

2 Systems' balance sheet at its current stated balance 

3 sheet rates. So it doesn't --  We don't gross it up or 

4 anything like that to reflect the value of the 

5 corporation. That's -- it's determined by an 1 
I 
I 

6 independent appraiser. I 
7 MR. HAYES: So the cash that's the I 

8 commitment is for the 175 million of capital 
I 
i 
1 

9 expenditures over seven years? i 

10 MR. VERMEER: Correct. 
i 
I 
i ;; 

11 MR. HAYES: Thank you. 1 
12 MR. VERMEER: Yeah. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: I would just like to 
f 
? 

14 hear from the Iowa Health System in terms of your I 
( 
1 

15 commitment to community participation and activities I 

16 with your social service agencies, your local health 
i/ 
I 

17 department. Methodist has a robust history of doing. 

18 So I'd like to be on record that Iowa would continue 

I 
19 that. 

2 0 MR. VERMEER: Yes, absolutely in our model j 

i 
21 those are decisions made at the local level by 

22 Methodist, to continue those community invol.vements. I 1 

i 

23 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 

24 Other questions from the Board? Hearing none, may I 
! 
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1 have a motion to approve exemption E-010-11 for a 

2 change of ownership of the Methodist Medical Center of 

3 Illinois? 

4 DR. BURDEN: So move. 

5 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Seconded. 

6 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Dr. Burden and 

7 seconded by justice Greiman. Dr. Burden. 

8 DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

9 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

10 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 11 

12 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

13 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

14 MR. HAYES: Yes. 

15 MK. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

16 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

17 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

18 MS. OLSON: Yes. 

19 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

2 0 MR. PENN: Yes. 

2 1 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell? 

2 2  MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 2 3 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: yes. 
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1 MR. ROATE: That's nine votes in the j 

i 

2 positive. i 
1 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. Thank 

4 you very much. Congratulations. Good luck. 

5 MR. VERMEER: Thank you. 1 
6 MS. SIMON: Thank you. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moving on to 

8 applications subsequent to initial review. No. H-01 

9 No. 11-037 Oak Forest Hospital. We're going to call 

10 for -- We have a request for a public hearing -- 

11 public comments. Excuse me. And we will ask the 

12 administrator to introduce folks coming up for public 

13 comments. We'll give you two or three names at a time 

14 so people can be in queue, and at the end of public 

15 comments we will ask for those representing Cook 1 
I 

16 County Hospital to come to the Board to address the I I 
17 Board. We'll be rotating supportive comments/ j 
18 opposition comments, as we have done in the past. i 

! 
i 

19 MS. AVERY: First person up for public i f 

20 comment is Deila Davis. Following her is Geraldine 1 
i 

21 Dudeck. Deila Davis. I 

9 
i 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

23 MS. DAVIS: Good morning. 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Welcome here. If you 

! 

1 
! 

I 
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1 would introduce yourself and be sworn in. 

2 MS. DAVIS: My name is Deila Davis, 

3 Director of Government Affairs with Access Community 

4 Health Network. D-e-1-i-a, Davis, D-a-v-i-s. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We actually don't have 

6 to swear her in for public comments. Just 

7 introductions. 

8 MS. DAVIS: Good morni-ng. I am here to 

9 testify this morning in support of the Cook County 

10 ~ealth and Hospital Systems certificate of need 

11 application for the transformation of Oak Forest 

12 Hospital into a regional outpatient center. I am 

13 offering these comments on behalf of Donna Thompson, 

14 Chief ~xecutive Officer of Access Community Health 

15 Network. 

16 Access Community Health Network is the 

17 largest network of community health centers in the 

18 State of Illinois, and one of the largest in the 

19 nation. We offer high quality primary and preventive 

20 care in more than 50 community health centers 

21 throughout Chicago and the surrounding suburbs, 

22 including the south suburbs. 

23 Access is accredited by the Joint 

24 Commission and serves as the medical home for more 
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1 than 200,000 patients each year. 

A major finding of the Cook County System 

3 Plan to reduce its hospital consusness in order to 

4 re-deploy resources to deliver expanded specialty, 

6 that Access applauds. Like Cook County, Access seeks 

7 to keep patients sufficiently healthy to avoid 

8 hospitalization. 

The present and future direction of health 

11 aimed at expanding access to ambulatory care, 

12 preventive, primary and specialty in order to avoid 

13 the larger costs of hospitalization. 

15 ours for years struggled with finding access to 

16 specialty care and diagnostics for the primary care 

17 patients we see. 

In recent years I am proud to report that 

19 our health centers received federal permission to 

20 incorporate significant amounts of specialty care in 

21 our sites. 

Access to quality specialty care for low 

23 income county residents and the uninsured in 
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1 a national issue. Expanding access to these services 

2 in the south suburbs on the Oak Forest campus, 

3 especially in partnerships with other community health 

4 providers will make a major contribution to 

5 strengthening the safety net in the south suburban 

6 area. 

7 I thank you for this opportunity to comment 

8 on Project 11-307. Access Community Health Network 

9 strongly supports the proposal before you today. 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Have a good 

11 day. Good morning. 

12 MS. DUDECK: Good morning. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Welcome. 

14 MS. DUDECK: I'm Geraldine Dudeck. I'm 

15 just newly retired alderman --  

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Could you spell your 

17 last name? 

18 MS. DUDECK: D-u-d-e-c-k. I'm a newly 

19 retired alderman of the City of Markham. I have been 

20 alderman there for 20 years. Oak Forest Hospital has 

21 been a mainstay for the south suburbs. 

22 The people relied on it. They got 

23 wonderful care. In the last four years, methodically 

24 they've been closing down different parts of the 
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1 hospital, and now they want to close the whole 

2 hospital.. The people in south suburbs, so many 

3 unemployed more than ever, people that have no homes, 

4 the homeless, need it more than they have ever needed 

5 it. And here we are closing a place that they could 

6 rely on. 

7 I know from experience it takes three to 

8 four hours from the south suburbs to get to Stroger 

9 Hospital because I have taken residents there. And 

10 when they get there, they're told it's an eight to 

11 12-hour wait to be seen. These are people that are 

12 very, very ill. Oak Forest took care of them. They 

13 relied on it. 

14 And I think it would be a tragedy to close 

15 this hospital. I plead with you please think of the 

16 people. I understand money is very hard to come by. 

17 but it's going to cost a huge amount of money to 

18 change this hospital into the clinic when you had a 

19 perfectly working hospital all the time. Please think 

20 of the people. 

2 1 Thank you. 

2 2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Alderman 

23 Dudeck. 

2 4 (APPLAUSE) 
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1 MS. AVERY: Next we have Jennifer Byrd. 

2 Following Jennifer is William McNary. 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

4 MS. BYRD: I'm Dr. Jennifer Byrd, B-y-r-d. 

5 Good morning, Chairman Galassie and Board members. 

6 Thank you for the opportunity to comment briefly on 

7 the Oak Forest project that you will shortly -- that 

8 you will shortly be considering. I'm the medical 

9 director of Aunt Martha's Youth Service Center and 

10 Health Center, which is a social service and health 

11 care provider. We've worked for over 40 years on 

12 behalf of children, youth and families. We currently 

13 operate 16 health centers including seven in southern 

14 Cook County. We also serve in Iroquois, Kane, Stark, 

15 Vermilion and Will Counties. 95 percent of our 

16 patients we serve are covered by Medicare, Medicare -- 

17 Medicaid or have no insurance whatsoever. We are 

18 proud of the partnerships that we've established with 

19 numerous public and private providers including Cook 

20 County Health and Hospital System, the Advocate South 

21 Suburban Hospital, Advocate Trinity Hospital, St. 

22 James Community Hospital, Ingalls and Metro South 

23 Medical Center. 

24 I'm here this morning to voice my support 

- ----..-- ~L"-- ,, . ~~ -- 
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 

t 

www.midwcstlitigalion.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



0 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 1 1 6 1 2 0 l l  

1 for the proposal. to increase the availability of 

2 sub-specialty and diagnostic services to the uninsured 

3 and underinsured residents of south Cook County by 

4 establishing a regional outpatient center on the 

5 campus of Oak Forest Hospital. 

Community health centers like Aunt Martha's 

7 are meant to serve as a medical home. Few are 

8 fortunate enough to provide the level of dental, 

9 behavioral health, and women health service available 

10 to Aunt Martha's patients. Like your family doctor, 

11 we do everything we can do with our patients to 

12 prevent illness and manage chronic disease knowing 

13 full well that sub-specialty medical services and 

14 costly diagnostic services are frequently in short 

17 will represent an important new resource to the area 

18 residents and those of us who strive to keep them 

19 healthy. 

From just one of our primary care centers 

21 in the south suburbs could produce over 250 

22 sub-specialty referrals a month. 

Further, by establishing and effectively 

24 promoting the availability of a 24/7 immediate care 
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center, we could also reduce unnecessary hospital 

emergency department visits and begin to redistribute 

some,of the taxpayer and county money that went 

towards covering the more than $1.5 billion in charges 

for non-emergent or avoidable emergency department 

visits in Cook County in 2009. 

A regional outpatient center at Oak Forest 

Hospital could make an invaluable contribution to the 

Southland community. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Dr. Byrd. 

MS. AVERY: Following Mr. McNary is 

Commissioner Jerry Butler. 

MR. McNARY: well, good morning. My name 

is William McNary, M-c-N-a-r-y, and I'm the 

co-director of Citizen Action Illinois, and we oppose 

16 the closure of Oak Forest Hospital. 

17 Two quick quotes. "The reason we did this 

18 strategic plan is so people don't have to go to 

19 Stroger." Second quote: "The surrounding health care 

20 facilities will absorb patients." These words were 

21 former Cook County Health and Hospital Systems CEO 

22 William Foley. And today 90 percent of the patients 

23 who come to Oak Forest are being taken to Stroger. 

24 There's a lack of support from the surrounding 
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1 hospitals. The patients have said it. The advocates 

2 have said it. The providers have said it. The 

3 advocates have said it. The community at large have 

4 said it, and even local hospital executives have said 

5 it before they began to unsay it. 

6 Oak Forest Hospital, the closure plan would 

7 leave south suburban residents without adequate access 

8 to intensive and long-term care beds while at the same 

9 time further overburdening other area hospitals. In 

1.0 2009, Oak Forest Hospital provided $25 million in 

11 charity care. The three hospitals that said they are 

12 willing to take Oak Forest patients, South Suburban 

13 and Ingalls and Metro South, they only provided $14 

14 million combined. More than 26 percent of Oak 

15 Forest's revenue was dedicated to charity care. South 

16 Suburban, Ingalls, and Metro a combined two percent. 

17 Ingalls Memorial, the only hospital that claim it 

18 could absorb all of Oak Forest's patients, had a 

19 bypass rate, which is the number of hours that the 

20 hospital goes on bypass and ambulances are subverted 

21 to other hospitals, is two times higher than the state 

22 average. 

23 Yesterday, a study was released that ranked 

I 
I 
i 
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1 service territory for Oak Forest, they ranked them the 

2 unhealthiest. This study by Northwestern University 

3 School of Medicine along with Chicago Department of 

4 Public Health looked at five key health issues: 

5 Obesity, breast cancer, HIV/AIDS, teen pregnancy, and 

6 motor vehicle injuries. Now, I'm all for the health 

7 care prevention that the regional outpatient center 

8 wants to provide. Yes, early detection for breast 

9 cancer, but once a woman is detected for cancer, she 

10 may need a bed. Early detection for HIV/AIDS, yes, 

11 but once they are detected for it, they may need a 

12 bed. And somebody involved in a car or automobile 

13 accident, they may need a bed. 

Let me conclude by saying for the past four 

15 years Cook County has willfully and systematically 

16 slashed services at Oak Forest, and now the patient 

17 population is limited. I contend that if a 

18 storekeeper doesn't stock his shelves, that customers 

19 who come into the shop leave hungry and empty-handed. 

21 a tremendous need for health care services that Oak 

22 Forest provides. I'm asking that you follow the Staff 

23 recommendation. It basically says that it does appear 

24 that the proposed discontinuation will have an adverse 

. . 
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1 effect on access to care in the service area. 

2 Members of the Board, I hope that you 

3 accept the Staff recommendation and vote to keep Oak 

4 Forest open, and thank you for this community to 

5 testify. 

6 (APPLAUSE) 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Mr. McNary. 

8 MS. AVERY: Following Commissioner Butler 

9 is Joan Murphy. 

10 COMMISSIONER BUTLER: Good morning. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

12 COMMISSIONER BUTLER: My name is Jerry 

13 Butler. I'm a member of the Board of Commissioners of 

14 Cook County representing the Third District. I have 

15 been --  It' my privilege to serve the people of Cook 

16 County since 1986. I'm chairman of the Health and 

17 Hospital Committees, and as chairman of that committee 

18 I serve on the Health and Hospital System Board. 

19 What I can tell you, you probably already 

20 know for sure, that years have taught us that health 

21 care in Cook County is necessary, complex, and real 

22 expensive. So I've come here today to add my support 

23 to the certificate of need application. As we in Cook 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
4 

1 
i 

24 County, like most public hospital systems, struggle 
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1 with rising costs, budget cuts, increasing numbers of 

2 uninsured patients, and slow economic recovery. Even 

3 when a health care system is inequitable and 

4 inefficient, social, technological and economic 

5 movements will result in increased demand for these 

6 services. 

7 The restructuring of Oak Forest is aimed at 

8 realigning a fragmented, outdated model to meet the 

9 public expectation for an efficient, accessible, and 

10 affordable health care system. It is designed to 

11 transform Oak Forest campus from a costly 

12 underutilized inpatient hospital into a regional 

13 outpatient center. 

14 For two years throughout the strategic 

15 planning process, our goal was to find the best way to 

16 serve the most people with limited resources at our 

17 disposal. Responsiveness to community need has been a 

18 key element of the planning process. So yes, the 

19 range and configuration of services may vary from one 

20 community to the next, but what it does not do is 

21 provide poor care for poor people. 

22 The request before you is part of the plan 

23 to develop a system-wide strategy that focuses on the 

24 Cook County health care team providing comprehensive 

--- =*- --~. 
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1 services with emphasis on health promotion and 

2 prevention of disease, which study after study has 1 

i 
! 

3 shown creates better health outcomes. 

4 We are challenging the status quo by 1 
i 

5 shifting focus to outpatient health care. I believe 

6 the strategic allocation of resources increases 

7 community access for the Southland area by providing 

8 expanded outpatient services, specialty care services, 

9 diagnostic testing, and non-emergent medical services. 

10 Progressive and forwardly-looking strategies will. 

11 allow us to meet the needs of our patient base and 

12 insure compliance to the demands of federal health and 

13 State of Illinois Medicaid reform. President 

14 Preckwinkle and the majority of the Cook County Board 

15 and myself by restrictive votes have all approved the 

16 Health and Hospital System's strategic plan. 
i 

17 I'm sure this morning that I'm here to 

18 inform you, this Board, that I support the strategic 

19 plan to transform Oak Forest into a regional 

20 outpatient center, and we need your concurrence in 

21 order to move forward. I would appreciate it. Thank 

22 you very much for your attention. 

23 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, 

24 Commissioner. 
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1 JUSTICE GREIMAN: I have a question. 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Commissioner, I think 

3 there's a question. 

4 JUSTICE GREIMAN: So we've read in the 

5 paper every time this thing is discussed, this is 

6 costing --  currently costing two million dollars a 

7 month to the county. What will the new facility cost 

8 the county on a monthly basis? 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Judge, can I just ask 

10 if you can hold that question for when the applicant 

11 comes to the table as opposed to public comments? 

12 Thank you, Commissioner. 

13 MS. AVERY: Foll.owing Ms. Murphy is Elyse 

? 

/ 
i 

i 
I 

1 
i 
I 
i 

1 
? 
; 
1 
! 
i 

i 
i 

14 Cutler. 

15 MS. MURPHY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, 

16 Board members. My name is Joan Murphy, and I'm the 

17 Cook County Commissioner for the Sixth District. Oak 

18 Forest Hospital is in my district. 

19 The other day Governor Quinn signed a bill 

20 to balance or eliminate inequities in health care and 

21 other services. We will add to these inequities by 

22 the elimination of emergency room services and the 

23 surgeries that require one or two-day stay at the 

24 hospital at Oak Forest if we close Oak Forest 
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1 Hospital. 

2 I agree with an urgent care unit and a 

3 regional health clinic. That is the way of the 

4 future. However, it is imperative that we maintain 

5 the accreditation of Oak Forest as a hospital. We 

6 need an emergency room in the south suburbs. We need 

7 a place where folks who need one or two days in the 

8 hospital to go. That is --  We don't have that. We 

9 have no contracts really with the south suburban 

10 hospitals. I asked for two years at the Board for a 

11 list of those hospitals that have agreed to take our 

12 patients. Finally, after two years I demanded at a 

13 Board meeting that we have it by the next Board 

14 meeting. We got it. They were always in 

15 negotiations. One hospital agreed to take some of our 

16 patients. The other hospital said that they couldn't 

17 take our patients. And two hospitals in the City of 

18 Chicago were named. That does not help the folks in 

19 south suburban Cook County. 

20 I'm asking that we leave 30, 40, 50 beds at 

21 Oak Forest Hospital, maintain an emergency room, and a 

22 room where a --  and a place where folks can use -- 

23 with one or two-day surgeries can stay. They cannot 

24 go to Stroger Hospital for their care. It's 12 or 
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1 $1,400 to take an ambulance from the south suburbs to I 

2 Stroger ~ospital, and they certainly cannot take 

3 public transportation. A lot of our folks don't have 

4 enough gas in their cars to drive down to Stroger 

5 Hospital and back. 
i 

6 We also need to continue -- I'm sorry. A \ 
7 brief report on the radio last night that was referred . 1 
8 to --  I caught part of that --  talking about the I 
9 inequities and how the south suburbs are the most 

10 poorly served of all the areas in Cook County. 5 
i 

11 Northwestern did a good job with that report, and I i 1 

12 would urge you to read it. 1 
13 

i 
The Systems Board dismantled the hospital 1 

14 before the plan was in place to -- a place where the 1 
! 
1 

1.5 patients could go. This was short-sighted, and in my 1; I 
I 

16 estimation very poor planning. I urge the Board to i 
i 
I 17 follow the governor's lead, end the inequities in our 

18 system and keep Oak Forest Hospital open. 
i 

19 Thank you. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN GALASSTE: Thank you, 

21 Commissioner. 

22 (APPLAUSE) 

2 3 MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Cutler j.s Ms. 

24 Donna Barron. 
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1 MS. CUTLER: Good morning, Members of the 

2 Board. Thank you for allowing me to testify today in 

3 support of the Cook County Bureau of Health Services' 

4 plan to transition the Oak Forest campus to a regional 

5 outpatient center. My name is Elyse Forkosh-Cutler. 

6 it's E-1-y-s-e, F-o-r-k-o-s-h, Cutler, C-u-t-1-e-r. 

7 Sorry. I'm the Vice-President of Strategic Planning 

8 and Network Development for Advocate Health Care. 

9 Today I speak on behalf of the Advocate System, which 

10 is the largest provider of health care services in the 

11 Southland. 

12 We believe that continuing inpatient 

13 services at Oak Forest would be counter to our common 

14 goals of a high quality, efficient health care system. 

15 We are also very pleased to hear that the Oak Forest 

16 immediate care facility will be open 24/7. We believe 

17 this enhanced schedule will insure timely access to 

18 care for patients. 

19 We are working in partnership with the 

20 leadership of the Cook County Health and Hospital 

21 System to insure a smooth transition for Oak Forest 

22 patients requiring inpatient services. We have met 

23 with Dr. Mason and other county leaders on numerous 

24 occasions throughout the past two years, as the 

--&-~-~'. . . .---- b~-.-".----*&-".A 
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1 System's strategic plan has been developed and I i 
2 implemented. Through this collaboration, we are 1 

i 
j 3 working to insure that any patient presenting at the i 

4 Oak Forest Immediate Care who needs to be admitted to 1 
I 
F 

5 a nearby Advocate Hospital is transferred in a way > 

6 that insures continuity of care. 
I 
1 

I 
3 

7 Advocate South Suburban is less than five 1 

8 miles from Oak Forest. So we expect that most Oak 
i i 

9 Forest patients requiring a transfer to a nearby 

10 hospital to be brought to either South Sub or to 

13. Ingalls, which is also close by. 

~ 

4 I 
For this reason, the staff at Oak Forest 

i 
12 

13 and South Suburban are now in regular communication. 

14 Just last month, we welcomed staff from Oak Forest to 
1 

15 South Suburban for an in-person status meeting, and we j 
i 
! 

16 expect that additional meetings will take place as 

17 needed. 1 i 
Additionally, the small number of Oak 

i 
18 i 

19 Forest patients requiring tertiary or quaternary care 

20 may also be transferred to Advocate Christ Medical 
I 

21 Center. 1 
P 
i 

22 If the County is given permission today to 1 

23 transition to the regional outpatient center, Christ 
i 
! 

24 will continue to accept tertiary and quaternary 
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1 transfers from Oak Forest as it does currently. While 

2 Christ is capacity-challenged and must at times go on 

3 bypass, we are in the process of developing --  of 

4 developing additional capacity on the Oak Lawn campus. 

5 The Ambulatory Pavilion Project which will 

6 be heard later today is the first step in this 

7 process. 

8 In closing, we appreciate the opportunity 

9 to speak in support of Oak Forest transition to a 

10 regional outpatient center. We look forward to 

11 continuing our work with the County Health System 

12 through this transition period and into the future as 

13 Dr. Raju begins his tenure this fall. 

14 Thank you. 

15 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Ms. Cutler. 

16 MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Barron is Claudia 

17 Fagan. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

19 MS. BARRON: Good morning. Thank you very 

20 much for allowing me to speak --  

2 1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Just spell your name. 

22 MS. BARRON: Sure. Donna Barron, 

23 B-a-r-r-o-n. I'm fourth ward alderman for the City of 

24 Markham. 
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1 I've attended most of the hearings and 

2 meetings, and I am against closing the hospital. The 

3 south suburbs residents need this hospital. We need 

4 it badly. And it's been pointed out here. We need an 

5 emergency room. We need hospital beds. Living in 

6 Markham, we are right on the border of Cook County 

7 Hospital, one way. The other way we have Harvey. So 

8 we are very close to Ingalls and South Sub. And I 

9 brought it up quite a few hearings back that they were 

10 on bypass most of the time, and that is the truth as 

1.1 you're finding out. The residents need a hospital, 

12 not a clinic, not a specialty clinic. They need 

13 exactly what Commissioner Murphy stated. They need to 

14 stay overnight sometimes. They've taken away 

15 everything. There's no intensive care. There's 

16 nothing. 

17 The south suburb needs it. With the 

18 economy the way it is today and the residents, the 

19 foreclosure, the homeless, the jobless, they need a 

20 place to go, and it's not Stroger's downtown. 

2 3 I thank you. We need it to stay open. 

2 2 (APPLAUSE) 

2 3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Alderman 

24 Barron. 

-- ---- . ,  a- 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 
www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



Page 50 
1 MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Fagan is Mr. 

2 George Blakemore. 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, Dr. 

4 Fagan. 

5 DR. FAGAN: Good morning. My name is Dr. 

6 Claudia Fagan, and I'd like to take the opportunity to 

7 read a letter from Dr. Quentin Young, whom I practiced 

I 
4 
i 
i 

8 with in private practice for more than a dozen years. 

9 "Dear Chairman Galassie: My medical career 

10 began with my training in internal medicine at Cook 

11 County Hospital in the 1950s. I subsequently served 

12 there as Chairman of the Department of Medicine in the 

13 1970s. For many years I practiced medicine in 

14 Chicago's Hyde Park community, retiring from active 

15 practice three years ago. Since the 1980s, I have 

16 been a leader of the Health and Medicine Policy 

17 Research Group, an organization that has been 

18 committed for 30 years to supporting policies that 

19 help the County Health System fulfill its mission of 

20 serving all in need in Cook County. 

2 1 In the summer of 2010, I testified before 

22 the Cook County Board of Commissioners in support of 

23 Cook County Health and Hospital System Strategic Plan 

24 Vision 2015. Because of the plan's commitment to 

- 
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1 basic primary care services, its emphasis on patient- 

2 centered care, integrated health services, sound 

3 public health policy, prevention and cost 

4 effectiveness, and its recognition of the scarcity of 

5 specialty care services across the county, I urge the 

6 Cook County Board of Commissioners to endorse that 

7 broad strategic plan, which I believe will lay the 

8 foundation where change is needed to more effectively 

9 promote and protect the physical, mental, and social 

10 well-being of the people of Cook County as the plan 

11 envisions. 

3.2 I supported the plan then, and I support it 

13 now. 

14 Today I write about one facet of that plan, 

15 the status of the Oak Forest Hospital campus. The 

16 transformation of Oak Forest ~ospital campus into a 

17 regional outpatient center will afford the south 

18 suburban Cook County residents substantially greater 

19 benefits from a facility that offers comprehensive 

20 ~rimary and specialty services to thousands of 

21 patients than it will by providing care for a smal.1 

22 number of hospitalized long-term patients. 

2 3 This reallocation of resources will serve 

24 the needs of the greatest number of people in need. I 
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1 urge your support of this measure. 

2 Sincerely Quinten D. Young, Chairman of 

3 Health and Medicine and Policy Research Group and 

4 Illinois Public Health Advocate." 

5 Thank you. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Dr. Fagan. 

7 MS. AVERY: Following George Blakemore is 

8 Susan Fine. 

9 MR. BLAKEMORE: My name is George 

10 Blakemore, and I would like to say happy Tuesday to 

11 the Health Facility and Service Review Board, and I 

12 would like to speak to the citizens who are here and 

13 say good morning to you and to the bureaucrats and to 

14 the political hacks who are present today. 

15 This is a process that's going on here to 

16 dismantle comprehensive health care in the Southland. 

17 The closing of the government projects in the City of 

18 Chicago, a great percentage of these people, poor, 

19 black people have now moved to the Southland. These 

20 people, my people, are high risk when it comes to 

21 health. Sugar diabetes, heart, cancer, tuberculosis, 

22 HIV, mental illness, all of these at-risk health 

23 problems, blacks are number one. 

24 Why is this hospital being closed? Because 
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1 their weak black leadership who failed to speak on the 

2 behalf of their constituents, but we as a community, 

3 sometimes they say you get what you deserve by 

4 constantly electing these political hacks who are not 

5 thinking about the constituents' health but about 

6 their own paycheck. 

7 Most of the people who came up here and 

8 don't come up here, you can follow the dollar. Some 

9 of these work for the so-called independent Health and 

10 Hospital System. Surely they will support it because 

11 they're getting paid by this system. 

1.2 I jotted down something, and I say know 

13 your friends and know your enemies. These political 

14 officials, so-called black leadership, is public enemy 

15 No. 1 in the black community, keeping the black 

16 culture now denied, my own people, comprehensive 

17 health care by this hospital. 

18 So this Board have to make a decision. Did 

19 you know I thought about dropping an egg in my mind 

20 mentally. They say when Humpty-Dumpty would fall, all 

21 the King's men can't put him back together again. 

22 (LAUGHTER) 

23 MR. BLAKEMORE: This hospital has already 

24 been closed. It's already been dismantled. You don't 
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1 have doctors. You don't have emergency. It's gone. 

2 This is just a process that's going on to make us feel 

3 like we have a part by coming to this hearing. You 

4 can't put Humpty-Dumpty back again. You have 

5 dismantled this hospital, and this is something that's 

6 egregious, that's evil- spirited to do. Why? Because 

7 you have taken advantage of a people who are not 

8 knowledgeable. 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Blakemore, you 

10 have --  

11 MR. BLAKEMORE: Mr. Chairman, I feel that 

12 this was going to come. You were so respectful to 

13 everybody else, but when this Mr. Blackmore speaks, 

14 you say shut him up. Shut him down. I am speaking on 

15 the behalf of my community. I am suffering as a black 

16 man to see what's going on here, and I'm going to be 

17 --  I'm going to sit down, but we have many elements at 

18 work here. We have racism. We have classism. We 

19 have corruption. All of these negatives are playing a 

20 factor in denying the number one group of people who 

21 are poor and black comprehensive health care, and 

22 these hospitals out here, they -- you can't guarantee 

23 that they won't -- they don't take these facilities, 

24 poor transportation in the Southland. 
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1 So maybe in a minute if I keep talking, 

2 security will come and pull me away from this 

3 microphone. 

4 So what I'd like to say is that God bless 

5 America. You can pay for illegals to get health care, 

6 but you can't take care of your black citizens who 

7 were slaves and working this community, worked to 

8 build this country. Now, you're going to say we don't 

9 have enough money for them. We don't close Aunt I I 
10 Martha's andall you are hooked up with the dollar. 

11 You've been pimping the (Inaudible). 
I 

12 (APPLAUSE) 

I 
13 MR. BLAKEMORE: Amen --  

I 
i 

14 (APPLAUSE) I 1 

15 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Mr. I 
i 

16 Blakemore. We got your message. 3 
I 

17 MR. BLAKEMORE: Amen. Rmen. Amen. 1 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 
i 

18 i 8 

19 MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Fine is Tya i 2 

20 Robinson-May . 

2 1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

22 MS. FINE: Good morning. I'm Susan Fine, 

I 
23 Ingalls Marketing Communications Director. F-i-n-e. 

i 
1 
1 

24 I'm offering these comments on behalf of Curt Johnson, 1 
? 

.. ~ . . . .. ." u-Lh*. . " &.,-. ~. -- 
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fox: 314.644.1334 



O P E ~ ~ ~ / l 6 / 2 0 l l  

Page 56 
1 Ingalls CEO, President and --  of Hospital and the 

2 Health Systems who wished to be here this morning 

3 himself but regrettably had a conflict that couldn't 

4 be changed. Curt has asked me to read into the record 

5 these short remarks. 

6 "Ingalls has been proudly serving residents 

7 of the south suburbs of Chicago for more than 85 

8 years. Today our 573-bed hospital and system of 

9 family care centers and urgent aid centers serve tens 

1.0 of thousands of southland residents and families. We 

11 are a State of Illinois-designated stroke center and 

12 an accredited comprehensive cancer center. Our 

13 medical staff of more than 450 physicians covers more 

14 than 30 different medical and surgical specialties. 

15 Ingalls wishes this morning to offer 

16 support for Project H-037 for the transformation of 

17 Oak Forest Hospital into a regional outpatient center. 

18 The contribution of the Cook County Health 

19 and Hospital System to health care in our community 

20 and in the region is invaluable. Our hospital and 

21 health system like other providers in the state feels 

22 a keen obligation to contribute to the community by 

23 doing all we can to care for people in need, people 

24 often without the means to access quality health care. 
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Were it not for the Cook County Health 

2 System, Ingalls and many other hospitals and health 

3 providers would simply be overrun by the volumes of 

4 uninsured that unfortunate1.y still persist as we stand 

5 here today, but, of course, ultimately the goal of 

6 qua]-ity health care is to keep people out of hospitals 

7 to the extent that we can. The reorientation of 

8 health care delivery from inpatient care to ambulatory 

9 setting has been a long-time ongoing national trend. 

10 Ingalls has been a leader in this trend by having 

11 expanded its network of ambulatory care centers many 

12 years ago in order to keep people healthier and less 

13 likely to require hospitalization. These trends 

14 currently are being reinforced by the impending 

15 requirements of federal and state health reform that 

16 are reformulating reimbursement mechanisms to incent 

17 pay-for-performance that encourages health care 

18 delivery outside of hospitals whenever practical. 

The transformation plan for Oak Forest 

20 aligns fully with national and state policy goals and 

21 trends in health care delivery. The vast 

22 infrastructure costs to maintain a low census, 

23 inefficient, outdated hospital like Oak Forest are 

24 better allocated to outpatient care, particularly when 
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1 specialty care is often so difficult to access for 

i 

2 safety net patients. 

i 

3 We at Ingalls are appreciative that Cook 

4 County Health System leadership has spoken with us on 

5 multiple occasions to present and discuss the 

6 transition plan for Oak Forest. 

7 We have stated and do so again that Ingalls 

8 is willing to assume, along with other hospitals in 

9 the service area, former inpatients from Oak Forest. 

10 Also, we note that we particularly appreciate the 

11 modification to the Oak Forest plan so that the 

12 immediate care center in Oak Forest's new 

13 configuration will be open 24/7. 

14 Since June lst, when Oak Forest was forced 

15 to temporarily suspend several categories of inpatient 

16 services, transfers from Oak Forest have had no 

17 material impact on Ingalls Memorial. 

18 Respectfully, I urge this Board to approve 

19 the application before you from the Cook County Health 

20 and Hospital System. It embodies forward strategic 

21 thinking and promises expanded access to safety net 

22 outpatient specialty services that are much needed in 

23 the Southland." 

24 Thank you. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Ms. Fine. 

2 We've heard from about 12 or 13 folks. We have 19 

3 remaining, I'm told. I'm going to suggest we take a 

4 ten-minute break. My watch says it's 11:15. We'll 

5 try and pull it back here about 11:25, please. 

6 (BREAK TAKEN. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We'd like to bring the 

8 room back to order, please. Thank you. We will 

9 consider ourselves back in order. Ms. May, good 

10 morning. Welcome. 

11 MS. ROBINSON-MAY: My name is Tya Robinson- 

12 May, and this is my third time speaking to the 

13 Illinois Review Board on behalf of the patients at Oak 

14 Forest Hospital, and as a nurse advocate for the 

15 patients in Southland. 

16 May 21st. when we were here at the first 

17 meeting, Cook County Board was denied closure because 

18 the Illinois Review Board did not believe that the 

19 safety net would be in place to take up the remaining 

20 patients that would be displaced. 

2 1 May loth, the Illinois Review Board denied 

22 closure again stating that they did not trust Cook 

23 County to provide the services which they said they 

24 would provide. 
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1 August 16th, I'm telling you they're not 

2 going to provide the services that they plan or are 

3 telling you they're going to provide. 

4 Regional hospital, 15 clinics, big deal. 

5 We need a hospital. That would have been a wonderful 
i 

6 plan 30 years ago. Preventive care, but preventive 
I I 

7 care is a little too late. The patients are already 

8 -- We have the highest number of diabetes, 

9 hypertension, dialysis, cancer. We need a 213-bed 

10 hospital. 

11 I'm not coming here today begging. I'm 

12 coming here demanding. Why in the world are you going 

13 to let these people continue to kill the patients at 

14 Oak Forest Hospital? They lie and say they will find 

15 adequate care for our ventilator patients. Well, let 

16 me tell you what adequate care means to them. My 

17 95-year old patient, she was transferred twice to 

18 Stroger via ambulance. She's a vent patient. The 

19 second time she was transferred, she didn't come back. 

20 She went to a regular nursing home, not a vent 

21 facility, that was capable of managing her needs. She 

22 went to a regular nursing home. You want to know 

23 where she's at? Here's her obituary. She lasted less 

24 than five days. 
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2 the rest of the vent patients and the long-term care 

3 patients if they discharge, which they told them they 

4 have to be out by the 30th of this month. Okay. This 

5 is not a game. A half a cent, you cannot buy 

6 anything, but if a half a cent keep the hospital open 

7 and viable, then I say bring it back. 

(APPLAUSE) 

MS. ROBINSON-MAY: If they have money to be 

10 able to build a 15-regional clinic, they have money to 

11 invest in Oak Forest Hospital. We need a Trauma 1 

12 unit out in the Southland. We do not need to have 

13 more patients die going to Stroger, and if you look at 

14 the list, there is a log of how many patients they've 

15 been transferred in June, starting June 1st to 

16 Stroger. ~ l l  but one patient went to South Suburban 

17 Hospital. So much for Ingalls. Aunt Martha's, they 

18 send their patients to Oak Forest Hospital for 

19 diagnostic care. Excessive Care, they send their 

20 patients there too. South Suburban and the 

21 surrounding hospitals, Ingalls, they send all their 

22 patients there. You know why? Because they don't 

23 have insurance. They may do the surgery and get the 
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1 medication comes from Oak Forest. So please don't be f 

i 
2 fooled. We're not. We're demanding our hospital. of 1 

I 
3 213-bed unit. 

4 They have stopped admitting patients. They 

5 have killed, and this is just like sending them to the 

6 gas chambers, but they sent them to a nursing home, 

7 435 patients. They pay three years up front money. 

8 Of the 435 patients, there are 30 patients living 

9 today. How many more people have to die for everybody 

10 to open up their eyes and say enough is enough is 
i 

11 enough is enough. They're not dogs. They're human i 

12 beings. Just because they're poor don't mean they --  

13 they don't deserve health care. So I'm asking the 

14 board to look into your heart and see the truth. 

15 We've been lied to enough. 

16 Thank you very much. 6 

17 (APPLAUSE) 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Ms. May. 

19 MS. AVERY: Lance Davis. Following him 

20 will be Joyce Edmond. 
I I 

21 MR. DAVIS: Good morning, everyone. 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

23 MR. DAVIS: My name is Bishop Lance Davis. 

24 For the record Lance is L-a-n-c-e. I am the pastor -- 

---.___A 
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1 senior pastor of New Zion Christian Fellowship, and 

2 also a board member of the South Ministers Health 

3 Network as well as my organization book, an 

4 organization that fed over 16,000 residents in Dolton 

5 and River Dale, Calumet City and Burnham over the 

6 course of the last fiscal. year through our food pantry 

7 and soup kitchen. 

8 Additionally, we have provided much-needed 

9 academic assistance, life skills training for many 

10 children that are under DCFS care. 

11 Finally, our church as well as our 

12 not-for-profit organization has provided thousands of 

13 volunteer hours for the specific purpose of organizing 

14 some of the youths or some of the south suburb's 

15 largest attended expungement summit and health fairs 

16 within our 86,000 square foot facility. We are an 

17 organization that believes in fiscal accountability 

18 and servicing everyone in the community regardless of 

19 race, religious affiliation, sexual orientation or 

20 economic situation with the spirit of excellence and 

21 professionalism. 

2 2  I, along with my wife, Dr. Kara Davis, who 

23 is a board-certified physician and an ambassador for 

24 the American Diabetes Association and who is the 

---A*--" .> ---. -.<~~..->---* a+.--- . , __YY_J 
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1 author of Spiritual Secrets to Weight Loss, and our 

2 health team have been providing community-based health 

3 screenings and health informati.ona1 symposiums in the 

4 south suburban community for over a decade. 

5 Our compensation has been in the form of 

6 total satisfaction knowing that we have done our part 

7 in educating our community on how to better self- 

8 manage their health issues and how to live a more 

9 productive life through eating less, moving more, and 

10 practicing moderation in all facets of life. 

11 Our community or our commitment to teach 

12 the community to rj.se above the obvious health 

13 disparity of the south suburban community by living 

14 better in order to reduce the rate of potentially 

15 preventable diseases like diabetes, hypertension, 

16 heart disease, and even some cancers. 

17 We know that the length of life and the 

18 quality of life is often a reflection of our lifestyle 

19 choices. 

20 This formula for living better and longer 

21 cannot be accomplished if we remain focused on the 

22 development of hospitals as a means to address and 

23 redress the issue of chronic disease within our 

24 community. We must focus on education and prevention 

- 
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1 as a means of truly addressing the health issues of 

2 our community. 

3 As we discuss whether Oak Forest should 

4 remain as an inpatient hospital or be reconstructed as 

5 a regional outpatient center, it is our hope that this 

6 Board looks at the dollars and cents. First and 

7 foremost, there aren't enough dollars to continue to 

8 operate an already failed medical delivery system. 1 

9 There isn't enough money to right the wrongs of an I I 
1 

10 institution and make it into a better hospital. If I 
1 

11 there was money to burn in the County coffers, then we I 
i 
i 12 could attempt to take on such an undertaking, but this ; 
4 
i 

13 is the truth, and then there is the sense behind the 

14 decision. Does it make good medical sense to have I 
1 
'I 

15 people going to the hospital for follow-up care and I 
i 
I 

16 after care when neither the money nor the resources 

17 are there to really make them well? Does it make good 

18 medical sense to promote hospitals as a means of 

19 health care for an aging, chronically ill and 

20 chronically obese population? Does it make sense to 

21 feed into the frenzy of antagonists who want to keep 1 
1 

22 jobs and services for an aged hospital at the risk of 1 
2~ 

23 having more people to get sick, sicker and die 1 
i 

24 quicker? 
I 
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1 In conclusion, as a member of the Illinois 

2 Primary Health Care Association, I have been trained 

3 in the area of utilization of the primary care medical 

4 home model for achieving maximum success in treating 

5 patients and preventing disease. It is with this 

6 training and my past performance in educating our 

7 community that I commend President Preckwinkle, first 

8 of all, for her tenacity in pushing what is right for 

9 the community from a health standpoint and what is 

10 right for the community or for the county from an 

11 economic standpoint. 

12 Secondly, I thank the Board and Madam 

13 Preckwinkle for your commitment to establish the 

14 Southland Health Advisory Council in order to keep the 

15 community informed of its choice and to provide the 

16 community with an actual voice in their medical 

17 destiny. 

18 And, thirdly, we applaud you for promising 

19 to provide nearly $20 million to convert Oak Forest 

20 Hospital into a regional outpatient care center so 

21 that doctors and patients can formulate a meaningful 

22 and relevant partnership in order to keep our 

23 community residents well if they are not sick and to 

24 get them better if they are. 
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1 Thank you for this opportunity, and for the 

2 record I am not on the payroll of the County. 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Bishop 

4 Davis. 

5 We have approximately 17 folks who still 

6 want to give public comments. I would simply again 

7 ask that you try to keep yourself timely. We 

8 appreciate that, and if they are new comments we also 

9 appreciate that as well. 

10 Our intention is to continue forward with 

11 the public comment this morning and then have Oak 

12 Forest present themselves prior to breaking for lunch. 

13 So if you're on medication, I would expect 

14 we'll be here until about 1:OO. 

15 MS. AVERY: Followi.ng Ms. Edmond is Wanda 

16 Hatter Stewart. 

17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

18 MS. EDMOND: Good afternoon -- Good 

19 morning. The truth is --  Joyce Edmond, E-d-m-o-n-d. 

20 And everyone in here knows the story about my 84-year 

21 old mother that has been kicked to the curb from Oak 

22 Forest and has been denied service where she has been 

23 getting service over at Ingalls Hospital that still is 

24 not giving her the adequate servlce. 

--=> h.-- - --- --* - * 
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1 She goes in for a blood transfusion every 

2 four and, sometimes, three weeks and has a mild 

3 dementia, which they let her wander around in the 

4 hospital, and the last time she was in there, which 

5 was two weeks ago for her blood transfusion, she 

6 pulled out the IV where blood was everywhere. 

7 Now, I ask you all, is that adequate 

8 service from a hospital that's denied for her to have 

9 an aide to sit in the room. I also am Access to Care 

10 patient, and I can only get limited service because 

11 they refer me to Oak Forest. Now they don't refer me 

12 to nowhere. Also a patient of Aunt Martha's that only 

13 does a limited service. 

1.4 Now, the truth is we need a hospital, which 

15 is Oak Forest. Okay. That hospital is needed solely 

16 for the poor. Why you all continually to oppress the 

17 poor? This -- This committee right here has allowed 

18 Toni Preckwinkle to still go ahead and dismantle the 

19 hospital. 

20 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Ma'am, can you face us, 

21 please, so the reporter can hear what you've got to 

i 
i 

i 
j 
i 
1 
i 
i 
I 
I 
1 
1 

i 

1 

22 say. 

23 MS. EDMOND: Also, Toni Preckwinkle reminds 

24 me of a poor kid with a sucker. 

...~ - * 
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CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: You're really not hear 

2 to talk about President Preckwinkle. You're here to 

3 talk about -- 

MS. EDMOND: No. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: -- Oak Forest. Please. 

MS. EDMOND: But I'm asking you all to keep 

7 this hospital open because it is needed, 213 beds, not 

8 25. Not a clinic. Of course, we can use the 

9 glorified clinic, but we also need an emergency 

10 because people get sick, and I don't care nothing 

11 about a 24/7 hour clinic. It is needed. A hospital 

12 is needed. When people get sick, we need the 

13 hospital. 

Thank you. 

(APPLAUSE) 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Stewart is 

18 Margaret Davis. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Ms. Davis, you're 

20 welcome to come up and have a seat so you will be 

21 ready when Ms. Stewart is completed. 

Good morning, Ms. Stewart. 

MS. STEWART: Good morning. My name is 

24 Wanda Hatter Stewart. I'm here on behalf of Family 
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1 Christian Health Center. Here basically because I 

2 serve as a family practitioner at Family Christian 

3 Health Center, and we're in support of the proposal to 

4 reorganize and establish Oak Forest Hospital as a 

5 sub-specialty care facility. 

6 Today not only do I represent Family 

7 Christian Health Center, but I also represent myself 

8 as a doctor who worked with -- I worked through 

9 medical school and college so that I could give back 

10 to the community, and in order to serve God. 

11 Our clinic was established and founded in 

12 2000 by a group of family practiti.oners who assessed 

13 the needs of the south suburban area and discovered 

14 that there was a lack of medical aid in that area. 

15 Collectively, these deeply concerned and committed 

16 individuals decided to promote the need for access to 

17 qualified health care to the underserved patient in 

18 Harvey area and neighboring communities. 

19 The mission of the Family Christian Health 

20 Center is to provide excellent health care to the 

21 community regardless of their ability to pay and in a 

22 manner that communicates the word and, indeed, the 

23 love and gospel of Jesus Christ. 

2 4 As the decision - -  As the discussion of 
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1 reorganization of Oak Forest Hospital is being 1 
2 considered and finalized today, please know 

3 collectively that other qualified health centers whom 

4 we collaborate with envision a project that could 

5 enhance, improve and increase access to health care 

6 services by partnering with Cook County to serve as a 

7 hub for healthy community initiatives by providing 

8 referrals to the outpatient care. 

9 In partnership with Family Christian Health 

1.0 Center, we strongly support the Cook County Board's 

11 decision to stand and we stand awaiting the outcome as 

12 we propose to provide improved up-to-the-minute 

13 services for our patients in need of our assistance. 1 
1 

14 Collectively, we propose to assist in the 1 
1 
i 

15 redevelopment of the Oak Forest Hospital by providi.ng i 
i 
! 

16 referrals and access to health care services for 
1 

17 identifying target populations as we move forward this 1 
18 initiative. My colleagues and I want to make certain 

1 

19 that those who currently have barriers to life are not 

I 
20 further inconvenienced and find hope and dawning of i 
21 the new day. 

22 Whereas today a vote will take place to 

23 determine the status of Oak Forest Hospital, it is my 

24 recommendation that we move forth to meet the needs of 

. *--- 
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1 local residents and others who are either unemployed, 

2 uninsured, homeless and/or on hard times. As citizens 

3 of this fine nation, the clients to be serviced 

4 deserve the best and are in need of health care 

5 services because they live in America, reside in 

6 America, and are promised within our constitution 

7 life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness. We 

8 support the cause for excellence. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Dr. Stewart. 

MR. URSO: I'd like to make one comment, 

11 please. This Board is very interested in public 

12 participation comments, but as you'll recall from our 

13 guidelines that we expressed at the last meeting, and 

1.4 was also posted on our website, please refrain from 

15 inflammatory or derogatory comments, and please do not 

16 identify specifically any patients. If you want to 

17 provide any support or opposition comments, please 

18 feel free to do so, but please follow the guidelines 

1.9 that I just expressed as well as the other ones we've 

20 talked about. Thank you. 

MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Davis is Ms. Joy 

22 Wykowski. 

MS. DAVIS: Hi. Good morning. My name is 

24 Margaret Davis, and I've been a nurse for 37 years. 
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1 35 years I have been advocating for the health 

2 interests, rights, and needs of the clients of the 

3 Cook County system. Point is many times I've worked 

4 there per diem. You know, I've always loved this 

5 institution, because no matter what you have or what 

6 you didn't have, you were welcome at Cook County. 

7 Now, the problem with the county services 

8 is as we've been researching, many clients come from 

9 other counties, you know, they don't have hospitals. 

10 They come to our county, be utilizing the services, 

11 but I have to oppose it because no one has begun to 

12 implement the regional health reform that's been done, 

13 and I --  it gets really researched by people like 

14 Healthy Medicine, you know, it's looking at people j 
15 from Indiana, you know, from Wisconsin, and all the 

16 other counties. As a result, we still have the 3 

17 dumping on Cook County. 

18 Now, I was just appalled to hear Nurse Tya 

19 said that there was 400 and approximately 60 clients i 
20 that were discharged from Oak Forest and now only 30 1 

1 

21 live. You know, I mean that just was mind-boggling 

22 because as a nurse I'm looking at quality assurance. 

23 If I got rid of that many patients, I should have had 

24 a utilization review person following them to make 
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1 sure that they have quality of care. 

2 Another thing is we are supposed to be 

3 doing health care reform and we're doing a lot of 

4 electronic medical records, they're still not 

5 connected in a way that is meaningful, and that is 

6 important because that will help with tracking. I 

7 heard one person say that we have a south side 

8 advisory council, but that council sits there and has 

9 no tentacles to go to the actual citizens in the 

10 community. 

11 And lastly, I must advocate for the nurses. 

12 Never before have the quality of nursing been so 

13 appalled, in the way they are being treated. If a 

14 nurse is not there, then we do not have quality of 

15 care, because nurses are truly the advocates in the 

16 health care system. 

17 Thank you. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

19 MS. AVERY: Following Joy is Reverend James 

20 Foley. 

21 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

22 MS. WYKOWSKI: Good morning. My name is 

23 Joy Wykowski, W-y-k-o-w-s-k-i, and I'm reading a 

24 letter on behalf of Dr. Ramanthan Raju, our new 
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MIDWEST LlTlGATION SERVICES 
www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



o ~ ~ ~ s a c J B n 6 1 z o 1 i  

Page 75 

1 incoming CEO. 
I 

2 "My name is Ramanthan Raju, Executive 

3 Vice-President and Corporate Chief Operating Officer 

4 of the Cook County Health and Hospitals Systems 1 
5 Corporation. I am honored to have recently been named 

f 

6 to the post of the Chief Executive Officer of the Cook 
I 
j 

7 County Health and Hospital System, a position I will 1 

8 be assuming in early October. 
i 

9 Though I very much wish I could be present, 

10 I regret that my schedule would not permit me to 

11 attend the important hearing being held by you today 

12 on the certificate of need application for Oak Forest 

13 Hospital. 

14 I am confident that Dr. Mason and his 

15 capable team have provided your Board with all the 

16 information you require to render a thoughtful 1 
1 

17 decision. 

18 Lest there be any uncertainty given the 

19 impending transition in the CEO's office at the Cook 

20 County Health System, I wish to inform the Health 

21 Facilities & Services Review Board that the 

22 application permit for Oak Forest enjoys my 

23 unequivocal support. 

2 4 For the last nine years, I have helped 

h ---- ..- 
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1 manage the nation's largest public hospital system in 1 

2 New York City where like Cook County, every day we 

3 must confront how to best allocate finite financial 

4 resources to deliver high quality health care to 

5 persons in their community. 
I 

6 A low census, unreasonably costly, and I 

7 outdated hospital facility like Oak Forest simply 
I 
t 

8 consumes too many resources that could be re-deployed 1 
i 

9 for the improved patient care access and quality care 
1 

10 in a more appropriate ambulatory setting. I I 

i 

11 The plan for the regional outpatient center 1 
1 

12 at Oak Forest mirrors the highly successful j 
! 
I 

13 establishment of free-standing diagnostic and 1 
1 

1 14 treatment centers in the New York system. Indeed, the 
I 
'I 

15 transformation plan for Oak Forest, expanding ! 
I 

16 ambulatory access in the community, particularly for 

17 specialty care services aligned with the best 
i .I 

18 practices being implemented throughout the nation with i 
19 the impending demands of federal health reform. 

20 Working with the community and provider partners, 
I 
I 
1 

21 patients, and dedicated staff, I commit to you to do i 1 

22 my utmost to realize the full potential of the Cook 

23 County Health and Hospital System, a historic and 

24 justly renowned public health care institution in the 

i 1 
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1 south suburbs, in Oak Forest and throughout Cook 

2 County. I support the application before you today. 

Sincerely, Dr. Raju." 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

MS. AVERY: Following Reverend Foley is 

7 Mercedes Mallette. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, Reverend. 

REVEREND FOLEY: Good morning. I'm one of 

10 the volunteer chaplains at Oak Forest. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Can you use that mic 

12 that's hard wired? Thank you. 

REVEREND FOLEY: Good morning. I'm 

14 volunteer chaplain at Oak Forest for the past 14 

15 years, and I'm praying for a miracle here. I'm 

16 praying for God's continued mirac1.e because God in his 

17 wisdom and in his grace has chosen to keep Oak Forest 

18 Hospital open despite opposition -- determined 

19 opposition against it. He has used up this Board in 

21 a healing place here for the least of these in the 

22 southside community, and I'm praying for a miracle 

23 that we would not let that patient die, but we would 

24 now build it up and restore it to health and wholeness 
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1 rather than let it go. I 

i 

2 We certainly applaud the plans for an 

3 improved outpatient regional center, but we need more 

4 than this. We need an inpatient facility that cares 

5 for the whole person in the midst of their needs, and 

6 we need to expand our vision. 

7 Certainly I think all of us in our heart of 

8 hearts know that we need more, that we need to keep 

9 this hospital going, but we have come to that point 

10 where we feel like this is all we can do. That we --  

11 that there's nothing more that we can do besides close 

12 the hospital and put in an outpatient regional 

13 facility, but that is really a lie. That is the lie 

14 of Satan. That is a lie perpetuated by our own sins, 

15 mistakes and mismanagement of the past. We really 

16 need to do more, and God expects us to do more. 

17 God expects us to preserve and keep his 

18 healing place here at Oak Forest. We need to expand 

19 the vision. We need to change plans, change our 

20 facility, or change our rearrangement --  our plans and 

21 rearrange our money so that we can continue to keep I i 
22 God's healing place here, preserve for his people, and 

23 I urge you to vote no to close Oak Forest Hospital and 

24 yes to God's continuing miracle of healing. 
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1 Thank you. 

2 (APPLAUSE) 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Reverend. 

4 Can I ask folks if you could please put 

5 your cell phones on mute. We would appreciate that if 

6 you would. 

7 MS. MALLETTE: Good morning. 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

9 MS. MALLETTE: I'm Mercedes Mallette. I'm 

10 a member of the southland Health Advisory Council and 

11 a board member of TCA Health Services, Inc. I'm here 

3.2 today to speak on behalf of Salim Nurridin, CEO 

13 Healthcare Consortium of 1ll.inois. 

As a partner and participant in the 14 

15 strategic planning process of the Cook County Health 

16 and Hospital System, the Healthcare Consortium of 

17 Illinois supports the need to convert the Oak Forest 

18 facility to an outpatient center, to serve the safety 

19 net needs of this region. Make no mistake. The need 

20 to restructure the healthcare delivery system in the 

21 south suburban's region and the leadership shown by 

22 the Board and the president of Cook County Board of 

23 Commissioners should be supported. 

24 The early missteps of - -  to communicate and 
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1 garner support from both the community and local 

2 providers cannot be denied. However, the current 

3 request led by President Preckwinkle is on the right 

4 track. The financial challenges for hospital and 

5 other health care providers create an opportunity for 

6 a more integrated and comprehensive approach to the 

7 needs of the region. We think that three things are 

8 essential for success. One: Budget commitment from 

9 the County to insure the conversion to a quality 

10 treatment and prevention model. TWO: Stakeholders 

11 participation in the transition efforts. Three: 

12 Assurance that the local providers of health care will 

13 absorb the patients in need of services without 

14 transfer to Stroger Hospital. 

15 We believe the first two points have 

16 already been initiated by President Preckwinkle; 

17 however, the third point will require monitoring and 

18 support of systems and government. 

19 This Board has acted correctly to question 

20 providers who do not consider the regional needs of 

21 the citizens of the Southland. We hope this practice 

22 will continue. At this moment if we fail to move 

23 forward towards the vision of a comprehensive 

24 healthcare delivery system with the Cook County Health 

I 
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1 System, the needs for this region would suffer more 

2 than we can accept. 

With debt redactation in Washington, DC, 

4 Medicare reform in the State of Illinois, the impact 

5 of the Affordable Care Act, we cannot afford to not 

6 meet the challenge of change. 

Again, we support the request and hope to 

8 see you soon regarding a trauma center in the 

9 Southland. 

Thank you for the opportunity to speak to 

11 you this morning. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

MS. AVERY: Mr. Ray Arebalo, A-r-e-b-a-1-0. 

14 Following him is Larry Suffredin. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, Mr. 

16 Arebalo. 

MR. AREBALO: A-r-e-b-a-1-0. My name is 

18 Ray Arebalo. I'm from Chicago Heights. We serve the 

19 south side of Chicago Heights. But before that I'm 

20 going to tell you something. I do have experience in 

21 Oak Forest. My son was a seizure patient. I for many 

22 years - -  ten years. He's 31 now. You want to give 

23 the hospitals the opportunity to service us. When I 

24 would take my son to the hospital, St. James, Ingalls, 
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1 all of those, south suburban, I took him there, they 

2 wouldn't let me go in the back. When I got to the 

3 back, he was bleeding because he pulled his IV, and 

4 there was a pool of blood on the floor. Nobody cared 

5 about it. And you're telling me you want to close Oak 

6 Forest. Why? If our people on the south side, it 

7 doesn't matter about black, brown or white, it's all 

8 together. It's serving the people of the south side. 

9 You're trying to make them go to Stroger. 

10 My brother has cancer. He went to Oak 

11 Forest. Finally, he went to Stroger. When he went to 

12 St. James, they said don't worry, you don't have 

13 nothing. He had cancer in his head. 

14 Now, you want to reward these hospitals by 

15 saying hey, take our patients. We'll pay you. 

16 I'm sorry, Board. That's the way I feel. 

17 You know, and it's true. Yes, you want to help the 

18 people. Help the people right. Keep Oak Forest open. 

19 Oak Forest serves the south side. There's no way -- 

20 Where I work at, we see a lot of people that need 

21 help, and we have to try to serve. Stroger, do you 

22 know how far that is from Chicago Heights? I don't 

23 know how familiar you are. Chicago Heights is right 

24 next to Will County. That's a hell of a drive or a 

L- a ----- .- .<.-.*."~-~~ ..- - 
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1 ride, whichever you want to. If they don't have the 

2 money barely to get to Oak Forest, how do you expect 

i 1 
1 

3 them to get to Stroger? You can answer me that 

4 question. If you can put that money up to send them 

5 there, fine. But why? I still ask why. 

6 You know, I don't understand. I don't have 

7 a suit. I don't have an education like a lot of 

8 people do here. Okay. I'm just a plain man. But I 

9 have enough knowledge and brains to understand that 

10 closing a hospital like that, that we need so much, 

11 has to stay open. 

12 In closing, I say one thing. It says 

13 justice for all. What is the justice? It says poor, 

14 old, and sick. We might have a -- Well, throw them 

15 out. There is no such thing as poor, old, and sick 

16 because all it means is money. 

17 So thank you very much for giving me the 

18 time to talk. 

19 (APPLAUSE) 

2 0 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank YOU, Mr. Arebola. 

2 1 Good morning, Commissioner. 

22 MS. AVERY: Following Commissioner 

23 Suffredin is Sandy Kelm, K-e-1-m. 

24 COMMISSIONER SUFFREDIN: My name is Larry 

L.- 
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1 Suffredin, S-u-f-f-r-e-d-i-n. I am a Cook County 

2 commissioner from the 13th District representing two 

3 city wards and five townships in the north end of Cook 
i 

4 County. 

5 I'm here today to support the application 

6 of our Cook County Health and Hospital Systems Board 

7 to discontinue the current inpatient facility with a 

8 very low average daily census and replace it with a 

9 state-of-the-art regional outpatient facility that 

10 will treat many more patients. 

11 As the chairman of the Board's legislative 

12 and intergovernment relations committee, I have worked 

13 closely with the hospital to navigate the fast- 

14 changing federal and state laws and rules for running ! 
i 

15 and financing a health care system. 1 

16 The strategic planning process was one of 

17 the most complete ever attempted by a public body. 

18 The process included many small and large meetings of 

19 stakeholders and significant number of public hearings 

20 held throughout Cook County. In addition, the Cook 

21 County Board conducted its own hearing independent of 

22 the Cook County Health and Hospital System. The 

23 process l.ed to the proposal before you which would 
1 
! 

24 allow us to better serve patients with urgent and 
I 
4 
i 
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3. immediate care at Oak Forest and throughout Cook 

2 County. 

3 The Cook County Board approved this process 

4 1.4 to 3 including the request before you. The plan 

5 was approved because we saw that precious resources 

6 were not being used to the maximum to insure care to 

7 more people in the Southland and to the rest of Cook 

8 County. This plan was developed to expand the number 

9 of patients and services that could be made available 

10 at Oak Forest by changing the delivery system. 

11 The request before you is an opportunity to 

12 expand these services available and to improve the 

13 quality of services that the patients will receive. 

14 For too long this facility has had many 

15 more buildings than it's had patients on any given 

16 day. 

17 The plan before you has also received t 

I 
18 strong support by the Board to ful.ly fund the 1 
19 strategic plan. The resources are there. The 

20 opportunity is here to set the standard for the 

21 region. i 
22 Thank you. 

2 3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, 

24 Commissioner. 
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1 MS. AVERY: Following Ms. Kelm is Carl 

2 Wolf. 

3 MR. URSO: You can use the cordless one. 

4 You just need to turn it on. 

5 MS. KELM: My name is Sandy Kelm. That is 

6 K-e-1-m. I'm speaking not only for myself but for 

7 various other patients that have been patients out at 

8 Oak Forest. 

9 Right now, if you go to the emergency room 

10 at Oak Forest and they deem you necessary to be taken 

11 down to the hospital, they take you down to Stroger. 

12 I'm -- At the end of the June I was suffering from 

13 chest pains, and severe headache because I had fallen 

14 at home, and I also suffer right now from atrial 

15 fibrillation and congestive heart failure and COPD, 

16 and I know what you're thinking is she smoked all her 

17 life. I never smoked in my life. I did drive a 

18 school bus for 27 years. That's how I got the COPD. 

19 The heart problems run in my family. 

2 0 The stay in June, I wound up in Oak Forest 

21 Hospital. They deemed it necessary that I would go 

22 down to Stroger. I had two IVs, which they kept on 

23 me. They sent me down to Stroger in an advanced life 

24 support ambulance that cost $1,200. Not only did I 

L-r ---...A- . -..A . , 
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1 have the two IVs, I also had a nurse and the two j 

2 paramedics who were on the ambulance already. 

3 When I got down to Stroger, they did the 
I 

4 exact same tests that they did at Oak Forest. I wound 

5 up being admitted there for four days in cardiac 

6 intensive care. When it came time to be sent home, if 
1 i 

7 I wouldn't have had a way to be sent home, I don't I 

8 know what I would have done, but right now I'm 

9 available to have Dial-a-Ride, which you can call and 

10 they'll come and get you for a nominal fee. 

11 Right now we need to keep the emergency 

12 room open, and we also need to keep the hospital at 

13 full -- full 213 beds. 

14 When you go for an appointment at the 

15 specialty care clinic or your primary care, it takes 

16 you at least 12 to 16 weeks to get an appointment. 

17 This is not conducive to your health - -  to your 

18 health. It's -- If they can do something better about 

19 that and give the doctors the resources, they need to 

20 go and be able to not have to book four patients at 

21 the same time and want them spaced in one space for 

22 one patient. Please keep the hospital open. 

2 3 Thank you. 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 
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1 (APPLAUSE) 

2 MS. AVERY: Following Carl Wolf is Lee 

3 Mayberry. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, Mr. Wolf. 

5 MR. WOLF: My name is Carl Wolf. I'm the 

6 executive director of Respond Now, a social service 

7 agency in Chicago Heights. 

8 There have been reports in the media and 

9 from your own staff regarding the hypotheticals that 

10 your vote will be based on. Will the Cook County 

11 government build the outpatient regional center as 

12 promised? Will they continue to provide services to 

13 the uninsured and needy as their mission states? Will 

14 they? Will they? Will they? 

15 Your vote will essentially be based on your 

16 confidence in Cook County to do these things, and 

17 truth be told, they have had the opportunity over the 

18 past six months to a year to demonstrate their 

19 commitment by actually implementing their plan. But I 

20 guess you haven't found the will. to do so. 

2 1 But your vote does not have to be based on 

22 supposeds and hypotheticals because the County, in 

23 what you should consider a complete disdain and 

24 disrespect for your previous vote, has continued to 

. -. -- ___*-___1 
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1 cut services at Oak Forest since the Board convened a 

2 few months ago. They have ignored the purpose of this 

3 Board by doing essentially whatever the hell they want 

4 to, this Board be dammed. Perhaps a lawsuit should be 

5 filed. 

6 So then what evidence do we possess to see 

7 how the County will operate? Witness Sandy Kelm who 

8 went to Oak Forest from her home in Harvey because of 

9 breathing difficulty only to be transported to Stroger 

10 by ambulance, a 45-minute ride on a good day, or 

11 another patient with Stage IV kidney failure who was 

12 kicked out of a private hospital for lack of 

13 insurance. He went to Oak Forest Hospital for further 

14 service but was denied admittance outright. Did not 

15 even bother transporting him to Stroger. 

16 Look at these patients. Stand up. Stand 

17 up. Let's see the patients. Stand up. Move forward. 

18 Come on up. Look at them. Look at them. And tell 

19 them who are these people that you are going to vote 

20 in the County's favor, and that a 45-minute ride to 

21 Stroger, that's okay. 45 minutes. Tell them it's 

22 okay to be turned away when in need of dire services. 

23 You tell them that. Tell them that you would accept 

24 that, the same type of medical services, that you 
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1 would accept it. Otherwise, you must vote no and 

2 demand that Cook County fulfill its measure, its 

3 mission to provide quality, comprehensive, integrated 

4 health services, comprehensive, comprehensive, 

5 integrated health services with dignity and respect 

6 regardless of a patient's ability to pay. 1 
7 Thank you. 

8 (APPLAUSE) 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 1 
i 

10 MS. AVERY: Following Lee Mayberry is 

11 Commissioner Sims. 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, Mr. 

13 Mayberry. 

14 MR. MAYBERRY: Good morning to the Board. 

15 I just want to take a few minutes to talk to you -- t o 

16 speak on behalf of patients that couldn't make it here 

17 today. For one reason, you know, they are bedridden 

18 or just too ill to make this trip. I just want to 

19 take a few minutes to speak on their behalf. 

2 0 YOU know, if you vote to close this 

21 hospital, you're putting these patients in the street. 

22 That is basically, you know, all --  everything put 

23 aside, they're taking about they're going to go to 

24 nursing homes, you're putting these patients in the 

- - - - .. . ,.-. 
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1 street. That's the bottom line. 

2 You know, despite the grace of God, that 

3 all of you are healthy, and if you weren't, you know, 

4 you may be in the same situation, you rely on a place 

5 like Oak Forest for health care. I personally have to 

6 rely on Oak Forest. It's the only place I can afford 

7 to be sick like many of the patients that go to Oak 

8 Forest. Only place they can afford to be sick at. We 

9 don't consider it a free hospital. You still get a 

10 bill, but it's a bill you can afford. 

11 You know, if we were talking about dogs and 

12 cats, this would have been settled months ago, but 

13 we're talking about people, you know, why should this 

14 be such a hard decision? Hey, this hospital is 

15 needed. 

16 In closing, you know, you have the power 

17 here to make a very important decision as far as 

18 health care goes in the Southland. It's a health care 

19 desert. All these hospitals do not want us. They 

20 keep saying they will take up the slack. They do not 

21 want us. We can't afford to go there anyhow. So, you 

22 know, realistically we can only afford to be sick at 

23 Oak Forest in the Southland or travel down to Stroger. 

24 It's hard enough just to get to Oak Forest. Now you 
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1 want me to get, you know, public transportation take 

2 me --  get down to Stroger. It's impossible or take a 

3 $1,200 ambulance ride. I can't afford it. 

4 Thank you. 

5 (APPLAUSE) 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, sir. 

7 MS. AVERY: Following Commissioner Sims is 

8 Michael Smith. 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, 

10 Commissioner. 

11 COMMISSIONER SIMS: Good afternoon. Mr. 

12 Galassie and to the Board and to the new members of 

13 the Board, do I have -- Can I ask the question or --  

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Technically you're 

15 really not supposed to. It's your testimony to us. 

16 COMMISSIONER SIMS: Okay. Well, my 

17 statement is we were at this juncture a couple of 

18 months ago, and I thought --  I'm not sure if it was 

19 you or Mr. Urso who said that this was an issue when 

20 the question arose, would it come back --  could they 

21 come back, and I thought it was emphatically said that 

22 no, it would not come back, but that's neither here 

23 nor there. We are back here. 

2 4 You heard the testimony of all of the 
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1 people here, and you've heard the testimony for the 

2 people that are for and the people that are against. 

3 I would hope you will take into consideration that you 

4 look at the people that are against it. You have the 

5 agencies that came before you that said that they're 

6 in favor of this process and in favor of closing the 

7 hospital. Some of those agencies get County funding, 

8 and some of those agencies are here because they do 

9 get County funding and whatever we do here or you do 

10 here today, they will probably get increased funding, 

11 which allows some of these agencies because some of 

12 them are in my districts, and I get the horror stories 

13 where they turn people away, and I get the call will I 

14 make the call to Oak Forest Hospital and see if they 

15 can't see a certain doctor or can they get a certain 

16 prescription filled. 

17 I'm not against what the government's Board 

18 had proposed, that we do an outpatient clinic at Oak 

19 Forest Hospital. What I am opposed to is taking away 

20 those beds. I think it's very crucial and very 

21 important that you have those beds in case something 

22 goes wrong. 

23 I've talked to Dr. Mason who says well, 

24 they don't do those kind of surgeries where anything 

. .  - - . ---- 
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2 believe me, it will go wrong. 

3 We send those patients --  There's a list of 

4 about 40 some patients that came through Oak Forest 

5 Hospital in the month of June. All of those patients 

6 were sent to Stroger Hospital except one who went to 

7 another hospital. When you send a patient that's ill 

8 to another hospital, if there's somebody who comes and 

9 they appear before you or before them, that's 

10 suffering a heart attack, well, conservatively, it 

11 says, if you go by what Google says, it takes 40 

12 minutes to get to Stroger Hospital, from the farthest 

13 point in my district, well, you know, it could take 

14 you almost three hours, and I know that when you get 

15 to Stroger Hospital --  and I love Stroger Hospital. I 

16 was born there. So I'm a product of this system, but 

17 I also know how this system works, been on the Board 

18 for 16 years. If you're coming from Oak Forest 

19 Hospital and getting to Stroger, by the time you get 

20 there, guess what, you just may not make it. How do 

21 you explain that to the taxpayers that live in the 

22 Southland that there's no --  there was no hospital for 

23 you? 

24 All of them are not people that are 
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1 unemployed. They're the working poor that also go to 

2 Oak Forest Hospital. So I mean do we push the people 

3 aside and just say well, you don't have a trauma 

4 center, we're going to take away your hospital, but 

5 you still got to pay the taxes. We don't care 

6 anything about you. 

7 So listen to the people, for the new people 

8 that have just come on this Board. And thank you for 

9 the one person that voted in our favor last time, Mr. 

10 Eaker. Thank you so much. I'm asking some of you new 

11 members to please listen to the people. I know it's 

12 hard times for everybody. We have to balance the 

13 county budget, but guess what, it's our job to figure 

14 out how to balance that budget. We have a hospital on 

15 the west side, the old county hospital. We're 

16 spending money every month to keep that hospital 

17 going. Why can't we spend that money on Oak Forest 

18 Hospital to keep that hospital going. So we're 

19 talking about saving money, we can save the money. 

2 0 Madam President, I'm not against you on 

21 doing the clinic. All I'm asking is that you consider 

22 and this Board consider that we need the beds and 

23 that's important to the people, and if you were the 

24 board that gave Roselawn Hospital the ability to turn 
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1 that area into a hospital. --  regional hospital board, 

2 I applaud you for that. Let's do the same thing for 

3 the people that live in the south subs. They need it 

4 too. They're taxpayers. Thank you. 

5 (APPLAUSE) 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, 

7 Commissioner. 

8 MS. AVERY: Following Michael Smith is Tia 

9 Speak. 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good afternoon, Mr. 

11 Smith. 

12 MR. SMITH: Good afternoon. My name is 

13 Michael A. Smith. I'm a patient at Oak Forest. I 

14 live in Oak Lawn. I was told by a doctor --  a surgeon 

15 that i.f I need to have an operation, I would have to 

16 go to Stroger Hospital, that Oak Forest no longer has 

17 an operating room for surgery. I made a new 

18 appointment with original doctor/surgeon to see him. 

19 I was called a few days ago and told that my 

20 appointment was changed to the end of the month. To 

21 go to Stroger Hospital, it takes two hours more, one 

22 bus and two CTA trains, which costs 2.50 and $2, which 

23 is 4.50 one way. To take -- To take the CTA one way 

24 and to take the bus would cost you approximately $5 or 
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1 more. And if you take the bus and a metric train to 

2 go down there, it takes --  it costs $5 one way. So 

3 that's $10. So the bottom line is it takes a long 

4 time to get to Stroger's from no matter where you are 

5 in the Southland or north, wherever you're coming 

6 from, but basically from the south it takes at least 

7 two hours depending upon the time of day, the type of 

8 weather, and the transportation you take because I 

9 take buses and trains and whatever --  how I get to a 

10 place. I have a friend that drives me around, but 

11 it's very hard. And I'm at the age where I don't get 

12 the free bus pass. I don't get the half price. I 

13 have to pay the full fare. 

14 So my -- I ask you please do not close Oak 

15 Forest Hospital because we all need it. We need it 
I 
1 

16 very badly. Thank you very much. ! 

17 (APPLAUSE) j 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Mr. Smith. 

19 MS. AVERY: Following Tia Speak is Randy 

20 Ruff. 

2 1 MS. CURTIS: We'd like to switch. I'm on 

22 the list. I'd like to take Tia Speak's place. She 

23 can take my place. My name is Leslie Curtis. Is that 

24 fine? 

-- .---. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Sure. 

2 MS. CURTIS: Great. Hello. My name is 

3 Leslie Curtis, and I represent the National Nurses 

4 United. We represent the nurses here in the Chicago 

I 
.I 
i 
i 

5 --  in Chicagoland, we represent nurses at the 

6 University of Chicago, we represent nurses in the 

7 Veterans Administration, we represent nurses in the 

8 Cook County System, and as well as other independent 

9 members as part of our huge union of 250,000 nurses 

10 across this country. 

11 we come to speak to you today about the 

12 closure of Oak Forest. Since the reduced service that 

13 you were notified of back in May, a lot of the health 

14 care partners that have come and testified before you 

15 have not taken our patients. So if the premise is 

16 that other health care providers would assume the 

17 patient load, reality is they have not. They have no 

18 intention to. And because the system has gone ahead 

19 and closed out our inpatient beds, our ability to take 

20 the inpatient beds, take the patients, these patients 

21 are all being transferred to Stroger. 

2 2 Now, when the system talks about money, 

23 they want to talk about well, we know we can't afford 

24 to pay for the system. The problem with the system 
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1 is, and it's well-documented both in the news as part 

2 of their reports is they've had a severe problem with 

3 their billing and that they haven't been able to bill 

4 patients. There are hundreds and hundreds of 

5 patients' records out there where the system has 

6 failed to bill Medicare, Medicaid, or even private 

7 insurance. There are patients who come to Stroger and 

8 have insurance. They have chosen to choose the County 

9 system as their health care provider. They have 

10 insurance. However, the system has failed to bill 

11 these folks. I'm one of them. I was in a car 

12 accident, brought to Stroger. I had two insurances at 

13 the time. Neither one of my insurances were billed, 

14 and I was considered self-pay and been chased down by 

15 their lawyers for my medical bill, and all I asked 

16 them to do was to bill my insurance, and 1-11 be happy 

17 to pay the $50 co-pay, which is what my insurance 

18 charges for an ER visit. 

19 They have failed on the financial end, and 

20 it is really - -  really apparent that they have failed 

21 on the financial end. They have three consultants of 

22 100, 200 people. They haven't billed sothe financial 

23 crisis that they're talking about is really based on 

24 their failure to bill. 

z..w,- --.< -.-. -- --.*.."--,--~- --A 
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So the question is we need the inpatient 

2 beds, pure and simple. With the type of problems that 

3 we have in the Southland, AIDS, HIV, diabetes, these 

4 type of things do result in hospital stays, and 

5 without those beds, we are concerned about our 

6 patients. 

Last comment, we are taking patients from 

8 both Provident and Oak Forest into Stroger. These 

9 patients right now are sitting up in hallways 

10. upstairs. There's no nurse to take care of these 

11 patients, and the system has now hired a nurse -- they 

12 just hired one for clinic. 

And last, and my wrap-up comment is, they 

14 had an opportunity, as someone said before, to begin 

15 their strategic plan implementation. They have done 

16 none of it. This plan is more than just closing Oak 

17 Forest. That's a piece of their plan. The other 

18 portion of the plans have not been implemented. There 

19 are not part where they have to come to you for 

21 So I would say look at that, look at what they're 

22 doing. We have a 60 percent rejection rate on our 

23 Medicare and Medicaid applications. The reason why 
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1 poor work in our Medicare and Medicaid billing, which 

2 affects our budget line. 

3 Thank you for your time. Please keep Oak 

4 Forest open. We need inpatient beds on the south 

5 side. That's the bottom line. Our care partners are 

6 not taking our patients. Thank you for your time. 

7 (APPLAUSE) 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

9 MS. AVERY: Following Randy Ruff is David 

10 Miller. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We have three public 

12 comments remaining. 

13 Good afternoon, Mr. Ruff. 

14 MR. RUFF: Good afternoon. Randy Ruff, 

15 R - u - f - f .  I'm here in support of keeping Oak Forest 

16 Hospital open. There is --  It's a known fact when a 

17 man or woman is willing to kill, they will. without 

18 hesitation lie and steal. 

19 Now, we have a real serious situation where 

20 you have already heard about the number of patients 

21 that have died. It is unfortunate when we have a 

22 health care system where a president and their staff 

23 that is willing to do whatever it takes to meet 

24 whatever their goals are. 

- . .--=-.".- ., ~----,.- - .  .- . .&J 

! 

i j 

I 
1 

1 
! 
: 
i 

I 

i 
1 



Now, we have seen the drastic cuts at Oak 

3 for Oak Forest Hospital. Now, in 2010, there was a 

4 budget request for about $76,000,000, but they 

5 approved 52,000,000, but they're not utilizing that 

6 52,000,000 for Oak Forest Hospital. Oak Forest 

7 Hospital right now is about ten percent in operation. 

8 They have strategically ignored the State Review Board 

9 when the Board has already told them twice do not 

10 close Oak Forest ~ospital. They have made up their 

11 mind to live in and operate above the law. They have 

13 dollars and done other things with these tax dollars. 

16 deficit. Their accounting processes is very poor. 

Now, what should they be doing? There are 

19 some solutions here. Instead of taking away free 

20 health care from the Cook County citizens, they could 

21 be fighting the state for more money instead of 

22 relying on what the government is going to give them. 

23 The government has already cut the amount of money 

24 that they provide for Medicare and Medicaid. The 
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1 County has given line on property taxes, well, that 

2 just came back to bite them. So many foreclosures 

3 that are drawing month after month, year after year. 

4 Where is those property tax dollars now? They're not 

5 like they used to be. It's going to get even worse 

6 after that. 

7 Now, they're talking about these elaborate 

8 regional outpatient clinics. Where is the money for 

9 that? If they don't have money right now, which they 

10 do have money to at least operate Oak Forest Hospital 

11 with the 52,000,000, well, how can we believe that 

12 they are going to take our tax dollars and run this 

13 brand new ROC? You cannot trust them. 

14 Now, there's some more solutions. We need 

15 to terminate the current staff, starting with the 

16 president. 

17 (APPLAUSE) 

18 MR. RUFF: We need to bring in all new 

19 management. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Ruff, can you bring 

21 it in, please? 

22 MR. RUFF: We need to bring in new 

23 management. We need to restore Oak Forest Hospital so 

24 that they can at least operate with the money that 
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1 they do have in hand. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

(APPLAUSE) 

MS. AVERY: Following Mr. Miller is Robert 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good afternoon, Mr. 

7 Miller. 

MR. MILLER: Good afternoon. My name is 

9 David Miller. I'm a practicing dentist. It's Dr. 

10 Miller. For the last 20 some odd years, I practiced 

11 in Dolton, Illinois. I'm a former legislator in the 

12 29th District. 

My comments centered in opposition tend to 

14 run a little bit differently than what has been 

15 discussed today. It's not so much the plan in 

16 particular because there's several points that have 

17 been made in regards to that is not refutable. It is 

18 always --  You can always argue the point that closing 

19 a hospital -- any hospital no matter where it is, if 

20 you change it into a regional care facility, we'll 

21 treat more people. I don't think anybody in this room 

22 would argue that. So that's not unique in any 

23 situation. 

The second point is the fact that there is 
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1 a regional plan that has been developed and 

2 implemented over the years to try to help more 

3 patients access preventive care. As a practicing 

4 dentist, of course, I hope everybody in this room 

5 brushed and flossed this morning in their preventive 

6 care. And so that is not something that can be argued 

7 or refuted to. 

8 So when you listen to the supporters and 

9 the opponents, those are two absolute facts in 

10 consideration. 

11 However, something about the Southland is 

12 very unique. This old motto we have is when Chicago 

13 or the north and northwest suburbs sneeze, the south 

14 suburbs gets the flu. That's really what you're 

15 hearing today. It's not the fact that we in the 

16 Southland have to choose between more patients being 

17 treated in a primary facility, and no one can argue 

18 that, versus emergency care when needed. And that's 

19 what the decision of the Board, I believe, has to 

20 happen, and the reason it was very difficult for me to 

21 voice a certain opposition to it is because both 

22 systems will cost money. The current system will cost 

23 money, and the change in the system will cost money. 

24 And how do we use a limited amount of dollars to best 

> 

I 
1 
2 

j 
1 

i 1 

1 
1 
i 
1 

1 

- .--&"--~- -. 



-- 

Page 106 
1 treat an entire system? 

2 Simply stated, if Evanston Hospital closed, 

3 would that help alleviate some of the pressure in the 

4 Southland. Southland has some of the longest 

5 transportation times, the fewest jobs, and now, the 

6 health care system is being argued. And this is a 

7 problem that we face here in the Southland, and the 

8 answers must happen before a decision is made. As the 

9 proponents of this come and present their case, the 

10 argument ultimately made is the money. You have to 

11 follow the money and a commitment from those who are 

12 arguing the case that the money will be there when it 

13 is necessary, that the cuts will not be on the back of 

14 the poor and the underserved. The cuts will not be on 

15 the backs of the Southland community. But, however, 

16 the entire system must absorb some of those costs in 

17 addition. 

18 And so I'll close with saying follow the 

19 money. The capital needs have to be there. The human 

20 resources needs have to be there. And this is what I 

21 would ask this Board to carefully listen to -- as 

22 those make their case, and until then, this decision 

23 has to be put on hold. Thank you. 

2 4 (APPLAUSE) 
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CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Dr. Miller. 

MS. AVERY: Following Robert McKay will be 

3 Tyrone Crider. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Crider will be our 

5 last public comment for the day on this issue. 

Good afternoon. 

MR. McKAY: Good afternoon, esteemed Board, 

8 Cook County Health --  I'm sorry --  Illinois Hospital 

9 and Health Review Services Board, Concerned citizens 

10 of Cook County. I'm here today to express to you the 

11 root of this issue. This Board -- the Cook County 

12 Health and Hospital Services Board came into existence 

1.3 in '07. They came in with the agreement that 

14 President Todd Stroger could add one penny on to the 

15 tax to keep the hospitals and clinics open, and in 

16 exchange for that, this Board was brought on to manage 

17 health care, and they began to dismantle the hospitals 

18 and clinic systems in Cook County illegally because 

19 they're required to apply for a certificate of need, 

20 and that was not done. They started to dismantle 

21. services at Provident taking out the OA/GYN, the ICU 

22 unit, and then in January they eliminated the 

23 ambulances coming in to the emergency room. And each 

24 one of these, their incentive is to give bonuses. I 
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1 beli-eve they're still getting them because they -- it 

2 was reported in January finance committee meeting that 

3 they get one dollar for every six dollars they say 

4 they save. And when they closed the ambulance 

5 services at Provident, they pronounced in the media 

6 that they would save 20 to $25,000,000 to the Cook 

7 County taxpayers. And that means that they were 

8 getting a three to four million dollar bonus, and on 

9 and on. They brought in contractors and consultants 

10 with $50,000,000 tags on them where they were getting 

11 bonuses and bringing on more contractors and 

12 consultants, taking on employees, violating the 

13 Shakman consent decree. I'm not sure if you're aware 

14 of that. That's a process where political hiring and 

15 firing is prohibited. And before President --  before 1 
I 

16 Governor Blagojevich was impeached in '08, he 1 
t 

17 submitted a plan to the federal government for the --  

18 for hospitals in the State of Illinois, and they 

19 approved the plan, and they immediately released 

20 $774,000,000 to Illinois hospitals, and there was a 

21 press release from Governor Quinn's office and 

22 Congressman Rush released a press release stating that 1 
23 that same amount, but then went further to say that 

24 over a five-year period $3.8 billion would be released 'i 
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1 to hospitals --  to hospitals that handle Medicaid and 

2 uninsured patients. In '08 --  1'11 finish with 

3 this -- when the Board said they were broke, they had 

4 a press release stating that there were $236.5 million 

5 surplus in the County's budget for hospitals. So 

6 where is the money? 

7 Thank you. 

8 (APPLAUSE) 

9 CI-IAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, sir. 

10 MS. AVERY: Next is Tyrone Cri.der. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning, Mr. 

12 Crider. 

13 MR. CRIDER: Good afternoon. I'm Tyrone 

14 Crider with the Southland Ministers Health Network. I 

15 am a patient with congestive heart failure and a 

16 cancer survivor. I stand today --  I sit today, 

17 actually, to say that I know this is a very 

18 challenging decision. For 70 years the Southland 

19 Ministers Health Network along with the Health Care 

20 Consortium of Illinois and other agencies that have 

21 called for and sought regional healthcare because we 

22 wanted hospitals throughout the region to work 

23 together for the benefi.t of those who are in need. 

24 I helped a young man get hired at a summer 
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1 job three years ago. Two years ago he got shot on 

2 175th and Pulaski, and he too was sent to Christ 

3 Hospital. He didn't get there in time, and he died. 

4 And so the regional outpatient center that is desired, 

5 it is my prayer that there is a commitment to meet the 

6 needs of those in the south suburbs. The money, the 

7 state-of-the-art facility has to be there to make sure 

8 that we can get the services that we need. 

9 I worked with President Preckwinkle and Dr. 

10 Mason and others. I do support them. I do believe 

11 that what they're calling for is going to provide a 

12 state-of-the-art regional outpatient center. I just 

13 pray that that question about emergency beds, the 

14 question about one and two-day surgeries, and the 

15 question about the other hospitals actually accepting 

16 and taking and providing quality service takes place. 

17 So I do support the regional outpatient 

18 center. As ACI has said, we have to monitor and make 

19 sure that the other hospitals take the patients and 

20 service them with quality, but President Preckwinkle 

21 and Dr. Mason and their entire Board, all who were 

22 involved, I just pray that you actually provide what 

23 is written and planned and that we have the best 

24 state-of-the-art example of healthcare working 
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1 together regionally. If that is the case, we can be a 

2 model for the nation. 

3 Thank you. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Reverend. 

5 That will bring a close to public comments, 

6 and I would ask that the representatives from Cook 

7 County please come up, introduce yourselves, and be 

8 sworn in. 

9 Good afternoon. 

10 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Good afternoon. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Welcome. If you could 

12 just introduce yourselves one by one for the reporter, 

13 and then we'll swear you in when you're all done. 

14 PRESIDENT PREcKwINKLE: Good afternoon. My 

15 name is Toni Preckwinkle. I'm the president of the 

16 Cook County Board. 

17 MS. MURPHY: I'm Anne Murphy, outside legal 

18 counsel to Cook County and to the Health System. 

19 DR. MASON: Terry Mason, Interim Chief 

20 Executive Officer. 

2 1 SISTER LYNE: Sister Sheila Lyne, CEO at 

22 Mercy Hospital Medical Center. 

23 MR. MARK: Randall Mark, director of policy 

24 and intergovernmental affairs for the Cook County 
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1 Health & Hospital System. That's M-a-r-k 

2 R-a-n-d-a-1-1. 

3 (OATH GIVEN) 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good morning. 

5 DR. MASON: Good morning. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good afternoon. I 

7 apologize. 

8 MS. MURPHY: Good afternoon. 

9 DR. MASON: Good afternoon. 

10 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Good afternoon. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Can I have the staff 

12 report and move directly to comments? 

13 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

14 The applicant Cook County Hospital and Health System 

15 is proposing the discontinuation of a 213-bed acute 

16 care hospital in Oak Forest. This project is before 

17 the State Board because the discontinuation of a 

18 health care facility is defined by the Illinois Health 

19 Facility Planning Act. 

2 0 Public hearing was conducted by the State 

21 Board on July 14th, 2011, and the State Agency has 

22 received a number of letters in support and 

23 opposition. 

2 4 There is no cost to this project, and the 
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1 anticipated project completion date is September lst, 

2 2011. The State Agency notes the following: IDPH 

3 conducted a survey of the hospital on June 8, 2011, at 

4 the request of the State Board. No deficiencies were 

5 noted at that time, and no complaints have been 

6 received by IDPH since that date. Nine patients 

7 remain at the hospital as of August 15th, 2011. 

8 Finally, the proposed discontinuation will 

9 increase the number of ICU and long-term care beds 

10 needed in this planning area, and given the large 

11 number of charity care patients served by this 

12 hospital, the proposed closure will. have an adverse 

13 impact on services in the service area. 

14 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

15 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Cook 

16 County. 

17 DR. MASON: Thank you, Chairman Galassie. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good afternoon, Dr. 

19 Mason. 

20 DR. MASON: Good afternoon. I'd like to 

21 thank the Illinois Health Facilities and Services 

22 Review Board, and to its staff for the opportunity to 

23 be heard today. As you know, we are seeking the 

24 Board's approval to discontinue hospital operations at 
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1 Oak Forest Hospital. 

3 6, I assumed the role of Interim Chief Executive 

4 Officer for the Cook County Health and Hospital 

5 System. I previously served as the Chief Medical 

6 Officer of the System. Although it's been a privilege 

7 to serving as Interim CEO, I look forward to returning 

8 to my chief medical officer duties when the System's 

9 new permanent CEO arrives in October. 

Prior to becoming the System's Chief 

11 Medical Officer, I was the commissioner of the Chicago 

12 Department of Public Health for the City of Chicago, 

13 and I'm also a practicing neurologist. I will be 

14 providing the bulk of our testimony today. In 

15 addition, System Board member Sheila Lyne and Cook 

16 County Board President Preckwinkle will provide 

17 testimony. Also seated at the table is our outside 

19 Intergovernmental Affairs and Policy Randall Mark. 

20 Seated behind us are other System representatives who 

21 are available to answer questions as needed. 

This is the third time we have appeared 

23 before this Board over the past six months seeking 
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1 Oak Forest Hospital. We are here today in connection 

2 with our new permit application, which makes a few 

3 important changes to our proposal, and I will 

4 highlight those changes in just a bit. 

I want to first explain why we're so very 

6 determined to secure your approval for this project, 

7 and why we consider this approval an urgent priority 

8 for our public system. For the new Board members in 

9 particular, I believe it's important to provide this 

10 backdrop. Over recent years, and even as we sit here 

11 today, massive Cook County resources have been used to 

12 operate a grossly underutilized, inefficient, and 

13 limited service, Oak Forest Hospital. There is simply 

14 no rational standard by which the inpatient services 

15 at Oak Forest Hospital make sense. 

We come before you today as any other 

17 Illinois health system might, seeking approval to 

18 discontinue hospital operations. We believe we have 

19 fully met the Board's standards for this approval. We 

20 have amply demonstrated that closure of the inpatient 

21 facility will not adversely impact access, by showing 

22 the lack of demand for those inpatient services, and 

23 by showing that numerous hospitals and long-term care 

24 providers in the area will accept safety net patients 
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1 in need of care. i 
2 But, of course, the Cook County Health 

3 System is not just any other health system. Rather, 

4 we are the largest safety net provider in Illinois, 

5 and we are one of the largest public health systems in 

6 thecountry. 

7 As a System, we serve over 800,000 patients 

8 a year, of whom the overwhelming majority are 

9 uninsured or Medicaid beneficiaries. We annually 

10 deliver about $500 million in uncompensated care. To 

11 put this into context, this is significantly more than I 
12 all the other Disproportionate Share hospitals in the 

13 state combined. In Fiscal Year 2010, Cook County 
1 

14 subsidized System operations with over $300 million 

15 dollars in taxpayer dollars. 

16 We provide staggering volumes of quality 

17 inpatient and outpatient care to the most fragile of 

18 the County's uninsured and Medicaid patients. These 

19 include HIV/AIDS patients, prisoners, burn patients, i ! 
20 gunshot victims, cancer patients and homeless E 

21 individuals. We do this day in and day out, 365 days j 
1 

22 a year. It's a point of pride with our clinicians 

23 that the Stroger Hospital emergency room has never 

24 gone on bypass since the new hospital opened its doors 
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1 in 2002. And the outpatient clinic at Stroger is 

2 arguably the largest outpatient hospital operation in 

3 the nation. 

4 Why do we say all this? For a few 

5 different reasons. First, we want this Board, and the 

6 public, to understand that we seek to close Oak Forest 

1 

1 

I 
I I 
" 

1 I 
I 

7 Hospital because it is the right thing for the Cook 

8 County healthcare safety net. We think we know a 

9 thing or two about this, because we deliver more 

10 safety net care, and more charity care, than anyone 

11 else in Illinois. This hospital. simply does not 

12 represent the best use of the public's money for 

13 safety net care. So, while we believe that the 

14 closure of the hospital fully meets all of the Board's 

15 standards unto itself, we also have gone beyond those 

16 standards to detail how the closure will free up 

17 resources that can be used to expand much-needed 

18 safety net outpatient care for Cook County. 

19 Secondly, we want the Board to appreciate 

20 that the Cook County Health System is the bedrock of 

21 the safety net care in Cook County. As a result, the 

22 Board should evaluate our proposal with confidence 

23 that, if approved, the System will implement the 

24 transformation of the Oak Forest campus in the manner 

A*. --. i 
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1 we have represented, and in good faith. As one of the 

2 largest public health systems in the country, and the 

3 largest provider of charity care in Illinois, we 

4 should receive that consideration. 

5 So, how did we arrive at the conclusion 

6 that Oak Forest Hospital should close? The current 

7 situation is best understood in the context of the 

8 hospital's lengthy history as a large long-term care 

9 and chronic disease institution. It's important to 

10 know that Cook County did not traditionally operate a 

11 general acute care hospital in Oak Forest. Rather, 

12 this campus has been used for most of the last 60 

13 years as a long-term chronic care disease facility. 

14 In its heyday, the facility had 1,100 long-term care 

15 patients. 

16 Societal needs changed, and the county no 

17 longer required a massive 1-ong-term care institution. 

18 And, in 2002, the facility was converted to a much 

19 smaller capacity general acute care hospital. 

20 However, even after that conversion, Oak Forest 

21 Hospital retained a high percentage of its long-term 

22 care patients. When many of those long-term care 

23 patients were discharged to non-hospital settings in 

24 2007, it became very clear that there was insufficient 
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1 demand for the hospital's inpatient services. 3 
2 Over the past few years, the hospital has j 

i 
i 

3 had an average daily census of 35 to 60 patients. In j 

4 2009, the facility had percentage occupancies of 23 3 
5 percent in medical/surgical, 43 percent in ICU, and 20 

6 percent in rehab. Even with those very low occupancy 

7 rates, a significant number of inpatients remained in 

8 long-term care. While some of these chronic patients 

9 clinically required acute care hospital services, many 

10 did not. 

11 l'his history explains why the acute care 

12 hospital has had a high percentage of long-term care 

13 patients and why a severely underutilized hospital 
I 

14 operates in such a massive physical plant, 1.2 million 

15 square feet, 41 buildings. It also explains why the 
1 

16 hospital does not have a full service emergency ! 
i 

17 department or the range of inpatient services more ! 
4 

18 typically found in a community hospital. ! 
I 

5 

19 The per patient cost of operating this 1 
20 hospital is among the highest in the state. That j 
21 daily cost has exceeded $4,000 per inpatient, which is 

i 
22 substantially higher than academic medical centers in 

23 the area. And yet, the facility does not deliver a 

24 full range of inpatient or emergency department 

i 

I 

I 
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1 services. It has never had inpatient OB, Pediatric or 

2 Acute Mental Illnesses services, for example. 

3 In addition to Oak Forest Hospital's unique 

4 limitations, the geographic area surrounding Oak 

5 Forest Hospital has far too many med/surg beds, 503 

6 too many beds to be exact. Other acute and subacute 

7 facilities have indicated that they are willing to 

8 accept our remaining long-term care and 

9 ventilator-dependent patients. 

10 Other area hospitals are far better 

11 equipped to treat ICU patients and are willing to do 

12 so. Other area hospitals are willing to accept our 

13 safety net patients in need of hospital services. In 

14 short, we have provided abundant evidence that the 

15 inpatient needs of the medically underserved patients 

16 from the area will continue to be met. 

1.7 While inpatient demand has languished, the 

18 demand for outpatient care on the Oak Forest campus 

19 has proliferated. Our Standby Emergency Department 

20 services look very similar to the Immediate Care 

21 services we intend to offer as part of our regional 

22 outpatient center. The 33,000 Standby ED visits on 

23 campus last year indicate a high demand for these 

24 1mmedi.ate Care services. 
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1 Outside the scope of the hospital's 

2 license, the Oak Forest campus also has become an 

3 essential System provider of outpatient primary care 

4 and specialty care. The 52,000 outpatient visits on 

5 campus last year show both the high demand for these 

6 services, and the System's vol.untary commitment to 

7 providing this care. In addition, the campus delivers 

8 high volumes of clinical. lab, diagnostic radiology and 

9 other diagnostic ser+ices. But demand greatly 

10 outstrips our capacity, and we should deliver both a 

11 much higher volume and broader range of outpatient 

12 services for our safety net patients. 

13 We also have furnished extensive 

14 documentation regarding implementation of the Regional 

15 Outpatient Center. The System has a comprehensive 

16 strategic pl-an. we have a detailed operational plan, 

17 which we can execute immediately upon closure of the 

18 hospital. We already provide a high volume of safety 

19 net outpatient services on the Oak Forest campus. We 

20 have an approved operating budget of $38 million and 

21 an approved three-year capital budget of $19 million. 

22 Architects have been selected to develop building 

23 renovation plans for Phase 2 of the regional 

24 outpatient center. We have the support of our Cook 
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1 County Health Systems governing board and the Cook 

2 County Board of Commissioners. And we have the 

3 overwhelming support of area hospitals and safety net 

4 policy experts and providers. 

5 As things currently stand, we cannot serve 

6 all the patients referred for specialty outpatient 

7 care by many of our FQHC partners. Our outpatient 

8 services are overly centralized at Stroger Hospital. 

9 For residents of the Southern Cook County, this 

10 results in excessive delays in service and the need to 

11 travel long distances for outpatient care. The 

12 Regional Outpatient Center at Oak Forest will address 

13 these access gaps. 

14 We have provided letters of support from 

15 the National Association of Public Hospitals and 

16 Health Systems, the Illinois Primary Healthcare 

17 Association, numerous individual area FQHC 

18 organizations, including Aunt Martha's and Access 

19 Community Network, the South Side Healthcare 

20 Collaborative (which includes about 30 clinics and 

21 five hospitals serving the South Side of Chicago), 

22 Access Illinois, Rush University Medical Center, Mercy 

23 Hospital, Sinai Health System, Northwestern Memorial 

24 Hospital, Advocate Health System, University of 
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1 Chicago Medical Center, Dr. Quentin Young, and many 

2 others. As we indicated on May 10, we cannot recall 

3 ever having seen this depth and breadth of safety net 

4 and public policy support for a CON application. 

Sister Sheila and President Preckwinkle 5 

6 once again sit with us today, for which we are deeply 

7 grateful. Sister Sheila will summarize for you the 

8 System Board's support for this proposal, and 

9 President Preckwinkle will confirm the Cook County 

10 Board of Commissioner's strategic plan and budget 

11 approval. 

12 We have provided information as to how 

13 inpatient hospital operations will be discontinued in 

14 a reasonable fashion, incl.uding how the remaining 

15 inpatients are to be transferred and cared for in the 

16 future. we also have provided detail regarding 

17 outpatient operations on campus starting September 

18 1st. 

19 We acknowledge that effective June lst, we 

20 temporarily suspended the  hospital.'^ long-term care, 

21 rehabilitation and ICU categories of inpatient 

22 service, and we substantially reduced medical/surgical 

23 services. At the same time, however, we have 

24 continued to operate the 24/7 Standby ED, and have 
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1 added walk-in clinic services to supplement ED 

2 operations. 

3 We took this interim action because we 

4 simply could not continue full hospital operations in 

5 a responsible manner. As we explained to the Board on 

6 May loth, the System had initially planned to 

7 discontinue operations on June 1st. In advance of 

8 June lst, the System was required to provide many Oak 

9 Forest employees with the opportunity to be considered 

10 for positions elsewhere in the System. About 50 Oak 

11 Forest nurses accepted positions at Stroger, for 

12 example. When the Board did not approve our 

13 application on May 10, it left the System without 

14 sufficient staff to run all hospital operations. 

15 Our interim action has allowed the hospital 

16 to continue inpatient operations for our long-term 

17 care and ventilator-dependent patients, while also 

18 operating the Standby ED. We've gone to great lengths 

19 to continue hospital operations consistent with our 

20 IDPH hospital license and with the Board's rules 

21 regarding reduction of services and temporary 
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22 suspensions. It is placing substantial strain on the 

23 System, however, and is costing the System $2 million 

24 a month to operate. 
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1 Today, there are nine inpatients at the 

2 facility. We've identified long-term care facility 

3 options for our four long-term care patients, all of 

4 which are Medicaid beneficiaries. We've also 

5 identified facilities qualified to care for our three 

6 ventilator-dependent patients, and have contractual 

7 arrangements to cover the one uninsured 

8 ventilator-dependent patient at the System's expense. 

9 The remaining two Department of Corrections patients 

10 will be transferred to our Cermak Health Services 

11 Facility. 

12 We also have demonstrated that the area 

13 residents needing inpatient services, including 

14 uninsured and Medicaid beneficiaries, will have ample 

15 access to those services. One significant change in 

16 our new application is that we have provided 

17 documentation regarding the willingness of area 

18 hospitals and long-term care facilities to accept our 

19 patients regardless of insurance status. In the case 

20 of Advocate South Suburban Medical Center and Advocate 

21 Christ Medical Center in particular, we have not only 

22 received a clear written conunitment, but these two 

23 facilities have already accepted a significant number 

24 of transfers from us in June and Ju1.y. 
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1 As the community becomes more aware that 
Page 12( 

2 Oak Forest Hospital no longer accepts inpatients, we 

3 expect the number of patients presenting at Oak Forest 

4 in need of hospital transfer will continue to decline. 

5 For those patients that do continue to present at Oak 

6 Forest in need of hospital transfer, we will apply our 

7 longstanding clinical protocols for transferring 

8 patients from Oak Forest. 

9 The Oak Forest Emergency Department has 

10 historically admitted about seven patients per day, 

11 and additionally transferred an average of two to 

12 three patients per day to other hospitals. These 

13 historical transfer patterns were largely the result 

14 of limited inpatient emergency department and 

15 outpatient services available on the Oak Forest 

16 campus. Most of these historical transfers for 

17 non-critical patients went to Stroger Hospital. 

18 Critical patients in need of transfer have always been 

19 accepted at area hospitals, and Advocate South 

20 Suburban has long accepted any of our patients in 

21 full-term labor. 

22 In June and July, after Oak Forest stopped 

23 taking new inpatients, an average of four to five 

24 patients per day were transferred from the Oak Forest 
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1 ED to other hospitals. This figure, which is about 

2 half of the historical daily combined admissions and 

3 transfers, suggests that a number of patients in need 

4 of hospital services have started presenting at other 

5 area hospitals. 

6 During June and July, we also saw a i 
il 

7 significant increase in the number of transfers from 1 
8 our campus to area hospitals such as Advocate South 

i 
i J 

9 Suburban Medical Center and Advocate Christ Hospital, ! 

i 
10 a total of 16 patients. As has always been the case, j 
11 most of the transfers from Oak Forest for non-critical i 
12 patients went to Stroger. I 
13 Any non-911 ambulance transfers from Oak 

14 Forest to other hospitals, including Stroger, is done 

I 
15 at the System's expense. Our transfers are monitored 

16 by a quality group, and we are proud to report that we 

17 never had a fatality in the course of an Oak Forest 

18 transfer to Stroger. Of course, patients needing a 

19 911 transfer receive it. 

2 0 If you approve our project, the Regional 

21 Outpatient Center will be operational on September 

22 1st. 

23 And let me break down those services for 
,, 

24 you: 1 

i 
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1 Our Standby ED services will be 

2 transitioned into Immediate Care services. This wil.1 

3 be staffed by the physicians and clinicians who 

4 already provide Standby ED services. We plan to 

5 deliver almost 33,000 Immediate Care visits for the 

6 year starting September lst, which is the same ED 

7 volume we did in 2010. Our previous CON permit 

8 application proposed Immediate Care Center operations 

9 from 7 a.m. to 11 p.m. Significantly, our new 

I 
I I 

10 application commits that this Immediate Care Center i 
I 11 now will operate on a 24/7 basis. This should allay , 
i 
1 

12 any concerns regarding access to care from 11 p.m. to ( 
4 

13 7 a.m. { 
I 

14 And in 2010, we provided about 52,000 
i I 
I 

15 outpatient visits on campus, in areas such as 

16 cardiology, neurology, ortho, psychiatry, rehab 

1.7 medicine and primary care. Effective September Ist, 

18 we will increase clinical staffing for outpatient 

19 services, through a combination of current campus 

20 staffing and transfer of existing System staff to the 

I 

21 Oak Forest campus. As a result, we plan to increase 1 
1 

22 outpatient visits in these existing service lines by 1 

23 over 30,000 visits per year, starting September 1st. 

2 4 Also starting September lst, we will 

I 
I I 

. ,. ~ . . --.- 1 ,....---- =,-,.*-- 

MIDWEST 1,ITIGATION SERVICES 
www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



1 establish on campus new outpatient service lines in 
Pase 

2 pain management and infectious disease. We will also 

3 establish a new service line in urology in the first 

4 year, but first need to recruit a urologist. We 

5 project that about 2,100 outpatient visits in these 

6 three new service lines in the first year of 

7 operat ions. 

8 All in all, we project 31,000 to 32,000 

9 additional outpatient visits on site, over and above 

10 our existing 52,000 outpatient visits. When combined 

11 with our projected Immediate Care visits, we expect 

12 the campus to serve over 115,000 patient visits in the 

13 year starting September 1. 

14 We have detailed plans to expand services 

15 and resources on campus in subsequent years. We have 

16 provided the Board information about these plans, and 

17 we're happy to discuss these plans with you. We'll 

18 also take several additional steps to assure a smooth 

19 transition on the campus. We will publish 

20 announcements in local press regarding Immediate Care 

21 Center and Regional Outpatient Center operations. and 

22 we will distribute to patients brochures describing 

23 the Immediate Care Center and the Regional Outpatient 

24 Center. We will post comments in campus area-signage 
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1 indicating that the hospital is closed. And, of 

2 course, we will work with the newly-formed Southland 

3 Healthcare Advisory Council. 

4 Thank you. Thank you. Thank you for the 

5 Board's consideration of our application. Should the 

6 Board wish to condition approval today on our 

7 provision of one or more reports regarding our 

8 experiences with hospital transfers and Regional 

9 Outpatient Center implementation, we would certainly 

10 be receptive to that. 

With that, I will turn our presentation 11 

12 over to Sister Sheila Lyne. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Dr. Mason. 

14 Good afternoon, Sister Sheila. 

15 SISTER LYNE: Thank you, and good afternoon 

16 to all of you. I am Sister Sheila Lyne. I am a 

17 member of the Cook County Health and Hospitals 

18 System's governing board. 

19 I will present testimony in support of this 

20 application on behalf of the System board. I am doing 

21 so at the request of our chair, Warren Batts, along 

22 with Gwen Golden and, of course, as you know Dr. or 

23 Commissioner Jerry Butler presented earlier today as a 

24 member of our Board. 
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1 Before I get into the matter at hand, 

2 however, I want to publicly extend the System board's 

3 heartfelt thanks to Dr. Mason, who has served with 

4 distinction as our Interim CEO. We are very fortunate 

5 to have him as part of the System, and are gratified 

6 he will resume his position as our System's Chief 

7 Medical Officer. So we're very grateful for all your 

8 work and concentration. In both these roles, Dr. 

9 Mason has been, and will be, a highly respected part 

10 of the leadership team that will improve and upgrade 

11 Cook County's health delivery system. 

12 I appreciate the Health Facilities and 

13 Services Review Board's special interest in access to 

14 health care for medically underserved people. I share 

15 your commitment to safety net access, having been 

16 privileged to serve in health care both at Mercy 

17 Hospital and as the Commissioner of the Chicago 

18 Department of Public Health. 

19 I have been able to reduce health care 

20 disparities in these roles, but it takes constant 

21 oversight and never-ending efforts which is certainly 

22 taking us through that at the current time. 

2 3 I have sought to assure safety net 

24 viability in greater Chicago over many decades, in the 
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1 face of what at times have been daunting challenges. 

1 

2 I believe I have been a tireless advocate for that 
I 

3 cause. Please indulge me for a few moments, while I 

4 summarize that commitment to you. 

5 I am a member of the Sister of Mercy, which 

6 is a Roman Catholic order of religious women. I hold 

7 a master's degree in psychiatric nursing, and for many 

8 years practiced as a clinician and nurse educator. I 

9 have served twice as the President and CEO of Mercy 

10 Hospital and Medical Center, a safety net hospital on 

11 Chicago's south side --  first from 1976 to 1990, and 

12 then again from 2000 to the present. I also had the 

13 privilege of serving for 10 years as the first female 

14 Commissioner of the City of Chicago Public Health 

15 Department. 

16 I have participated in a great many boards 

17 and commissions over the years. I nevertheless agreed 

18 to serve on the County health system's first 

19 independent governing board. I did so for one simple 

20 reason: Because the System Board has a powerful 

21 opportunity to improve our public health care delivery 

22 safety net. We have been charged with reforming one 

23 of the country's largest public health systems, in 

24 order to offer better access and quality of health 
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1 care to uninsured and Medicaid patients in Cook 1 
2 County, and that's what Dr. Mason has been talking 

3 about. 

4 At the outset, the newly-formed System 

5 Board underwent a comprehensive planning process, in 

6 order to understand where the System could and should 

7 improve. As you already know, we found that medically 

8 underserved Cook County residents most urgently need 

9 access to outpatient care, especially specialty care. 

10 Right now, many of the County's uninsured and Medicaid 

11 patients are on long wait lists for outpatient care, 

12 must travel long distances to receive that care, and 

13 generally experience fragmented care lacking in 

14 coordination and a medical home. We simply must do 

3.5 better. 

16 We should increase outpatient care overall, 

1.7 and we should move that care closer to where System 

18 patients live. There are many objective public policy 

19 studies that will tell you this, but perhaps the most 

20 persuasive spokespersons are the many safety net 

21 providers and organizations that have gone on record 

22 supporting our project. 

2 3 Our comprehensive planning also concluded 

24 that the System has too many hospital beds, and too 
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1 few outpatient services, when compared with other 

2 large public health systems nationally. In order to 

3 take the System's finite resources and best use them 

4 to increase access, we need to discontinue inpatient 

5 services and dramatically increase outpatient services 

6 at Oak Forest. 

7 As I acknowledged at the May meeting of 

8 your Board, closure of a hospital is a poignant event. 

9 As a System, we are deeply empathetic to the long-time 

10 residents of the hospital, and to those who might 

11 fear, incorrectly, that this represents a lessened 

12 commitment by the System to them. But empathetic 

13 though we are, we have a broader social and fiduciary 

14 responsibility to be good stewards of health care 

15 delivery in Cook County. We cannot and should not 

16 ignore that this hospital drains massive and precious 

17 System resources at the expense of better health care. 

18 More expensive care is not better care, especially 

19 when delivered at a grossly underutilized and limited 

20 service hospital. Emergency departments, when used as 

21 medical offices, perpetuate fragmented care that 

22 undermines good health outcomes. Our community's most 

23 vulnerable patients should have the opportunity to 

24 benefit from the improved health outcomes and quality 
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1 of life that come with primary care, preventive care, 

2 specialty outpatient care and diagnostic testing 

3 delivered in a coordinated and culturally-sensitive 

4 manner. 

5 I also must make clear that the continued 

6 viability of the Cook County health system depends on 

7 our ability to make quick and fundamental changes to 

8 the way in which we deliver care. The entire national 

9 health care delivery system is now moving into an era 

10 in which improved quality and outcomes will be driven 

11 by care coordination and ample access to primary, 

12 preventative and outpatient care. There is little 

13 question that the need for outpatient care will grow, 

14 and the need for inpatient care will diminish, all 

15 with the broader policy goal of enhancing both health 

16 care quality and efficiency. 

17 For public health systems like ours, there 

18 is great urgency in making these transitions. We 

19 brace for a world in which public funding and 

20 reimbursement increasingly will be tied to quality 

21 outcomes, coordination of care, and efficiency in 

22 service delivery. We do so recognizing that we must 

23 invest in our infrastructure in order to be viable, in 

24 critical areas such as electronic medical records 
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1 systems, diagnostic equipment and outpatient care. 

4 to get there without a significant base of 

5 commercially-insured patients, and with the challenges 

6 inherent in being a public health system. In this 

7 climate, we simply should not spend millions of 

8 dollars per month on limited inpatient operations that 

9 are not needed. 

11 our unwavering commitment to improved health care 

12 access in Cook County. In order to do this, we must 

13 be permitted to implement our strategic plan. 

15 transformation of the Oak Forest campus from an 

16 antiquated and underutilized hospital into a vibrant 

18 whatsoever, the System is fully committed to 

19 implementing the Regional Outpatient Center at Oak 

20 Forest, in the manner described in the application. 

I will close by repeating what I said to 

22 this Board in May, because I can't find a better way 

23 to say it: Those who know me understand that I don't 

24 mince words. Meaningful reform demands making 
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1 difficult choices. It is not for the weak of heart. ,a 

! 
: 

2 The System Board -- like the Illinois 1 
I 

3 Health Facilities and Services Review Board - -  is not 

4 called upon to make the most popular or politically 

5 ' expedient decisions. Rather, our responsibility, like 

6 yours, is to make the right decisions. We strive to 

7 base these decisions on facts, on good policy, and on 

8 our collective sense of social responsibility. 

9 For this reason, we ask the Illinois Health 

10 Facilities and Services Review Board to approve this 

I1 appli-cation. 

12 And I thank you for your interest. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Sister 

14 Sheila. 

PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Good afternoon. 15 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good afternoon. 

17 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Thank you. My name 

18 is Toni Preckwinkle, and I am the President of the 

19 Cook County Board of Commissioners. I appreciate the 

20 opportuni.ty to appear before you once again. 

21 I am here to express my continued support, and the 

22 Cook County Board of Commissioner's continued support, 

23 for the proposed transformation of the Oak Forest 

24 campus into a comprehensive Regional Outpatient 
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1 Center. This proposal, and the larger Strategic Plan 3 

2 developed by the Cook County Health System Board, is 

3 about two fundamentally important things: First, 

1 I 
4 ensuring the survival of Cook County's public health 

5 system in the 21st Century, and, secondly, using 

6 available Cook County resources to provide the best 

7 quality of health care to the most people possible. 

8 What we're talking about is better and more 

9 responsible use of the massive Cook County health care 

10 resources that are currently funding a severely 

11 underutilized, outdated and limited service inpatient 

12 hospital. As we sit here today, the County is 

13 spending about $2 million per month to operate a 

14 hospital with nine inpatients. Even prior to June 1, 

15 the County was spending about $40 million per year to 

16 operate a limited service hospital with only 35 to 60 

17 patients out of 113 --  I'm sorry -- 213 beds. 

18 Clearly, we can and must do better. 

19 Instead, we are proposing to spend Cook 

20 County health care dollars in a better way, in order 1 
1 

21 to dramatically improve health care access for 

22 medically underserved residents. Indeed, we will 

23 serve more needy residents of Southern Cook County i 

24 closer to home, and we will deliver to them more of 

- . - .--- , , .  
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1 the outpatient care that public policy experts, 

2 community leaders, and safety net leaders confirm they 

3 desperately need. 

4 I appreciate that closure of an inpatient 

5 facility, even one as underutilized as this, is almost 

6 inevitably met with deep community concern. While we 

7 cannot and should not shy away from doing the right 

8 thing, it is always important to listen. We have 

9 listened, and in response to the community input we 

10 received, we have expanded the proposed ~mmediate Care 

11 Center's hours of operation to 24 hours a day from 16. 

12 System representatives also have met with area 

13 hospital representatives to assure smooth coordination 

14 of future inpatient transfers. I have also 

15 established the Southland Healthcare Advisory Council, 

16 which will provide valuable input to my office and the 

1.7 independent health system on health care delivery. 1 

18 have chosen to include on the Council some who have 

19 expressed concerns about the proposed changes on the 

20 Oak Forest campus, because I want this Council to be a 

21 meaningful forum. 

22 Let me address a persistent question raised 

23 in your agency reports about whether the Regional 

24 Outpatient Center will materialize upon 
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1 discontinuation of inpatient operations. Let me put 

2 that question to rest, once and for all. 

3 First, the System already chooses, 

4 voluntarily, to deliver massive amounts of safety net 

5 outpatient care across the county. This includes 

6 outpatient services on the Oak Forest campus, separate 

7 from the services historically provided as part of the 

8 licensed hospital. In 2010, I understand there were 

9 about 52,000 outpatient visits per year on the Oak 

10 Forest campus, which doesn't even include the 

11 outpatient diagnostic and clinical lab testing that 

12 took place. This was in addition to 33,000 Standby 

13 Emergency Department visits. 

14 Despite the strain on the System since June 

15 1, high levels of outpatient care have continued to be 

16 provided on campus in June, July and August. In June 

17 alone, I am told there were over 4,000 outpatient 

18 visits and about 2,300 Standby Emergency Department 

19 visits on campus. In July, there were over 3,500 

20 outpatient visits and about 2,300 Standby Emergency 

21 Department visits. The System attributes the slight 

22 July drop in outpatient visits to two holiday and 

23 shutdown day closures. 

24 Second, the System has provided you with 
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1 extraordinarily detailed information about the volume 

2 and type of expanded outpatient care that will be 

3 delivered on campus starting September 1. In the 

4 first year of operations, the System conservatively 

5 estimates 115,000 outpatient visits per year through 

6 the Regional Outpatient Center. Immediately upon 

7 discontinuation of the remaining inpatient and 

8 Emergency Department services, staff and resources 

9 will be transferred to Regional Outpatient Center 

10 operations. Additional staff will be made available 

11 from Stroger and other System locations. The Regional 

12 Outpatient Center will expand outpatient care by 

13 immediately increasing the volume and range of 

14 services offered, and by phasing in a comprehensive 

15 campus of primary care, immediate care, outpatient 

16 specialty care, diagnostic testing and, eventually, 

17 outpatient surgical care. 

Finally, and I don't think this can be 

19 overstated, the Cook County Board of Commissioners has 

21 Forest Regional Outpatient Center. On a unanimous 

22 vote, we approved a $38 million Oak Forest Regional 

23 Outpatient Center budget for FYI 2011, to be 

24 supplemented by about $2.5 million in System funds 

MIDWEST 1,ITIGATION SERVICES 
www.midwestlitig3tion.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 
www.rnidwestlitigation.corn Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 

h g r  142 
1 pulled from other line items. 

2 We also have approved a 3-year, $19 million 

3 capital budget for the Regional Outpatient Center. As 

4 you heard from Dr. Mason, the System is poised to use 

5 these funds for campus renovations and equipment 

6 acquisitions that will enhance these outpatient 

7 operat ions. 

8 Moreover, the 17-member Cook County Board 

9 of Commissioners has already approved the System's 

10 multi-year Strategic Plan, with only three 

11 commissioners voting against it. This Strategic Plan 

12 includes sustained expansion of the Regional 

13 Outpatient Center through the year 2015. 

14 All in all, we have a Strategic Plan, we 

15 have an approved operating and capital budget, we have 

16 a detailed operational plan, we have an outpatient 

17 service delivery track record, and we have an 

18 unparalleled role as the largest safety net provider 

19 in Illinois. I commit to you the System Board will 

20 enjoy my continued support in future fiscal years, 

21 both in implementing its Strategic Plan generally, and 

22 in Regional Outpatient Center operations in 

23 particular. 

24 The Oak Forest campus has a long and proud 

.L<.~-*~~,--. -A -.----,- -.A 

1 
1 I 

a 
1 

1 
I 

d 
i 

' 

i d 

I 



0 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 8 f l 6 1 2 0 1 1  

Page 143 
1 history of adapting to meet the changing needs of Cook 

2 County residents. It started as an almshouse, became 

3 a tuberculosis asylum, and later housed 1,100 

4 long-term care patients in a massive institution. 

5 When each of these historical uses became outmoded, 

6 the campus evolved to meet current societal needs. 

7 Today, its inpatient hospital operations do not best 

8 meet the health care needs of county residents. It is 

9 once again time for the Oak Forest campus to be 

10 transformed into a county resource best aligned with 

11 those needs. 

12 I want to thank you for your time and 

13 consideration. I ask you to approve our application, 

14 and we'd be happy to answer any questions. 

15 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Madam 

16 President. I will now open it up to the Board if 

17 there are any questions. 

18 JUSTICE GREIMAN: I have a question if I 

19 can. So you said, Madam President, that you were now 

20 spending $2   nil lion a month and you were going to 

21 start spending $3 million a month; is that fair - -  a 

22 fair statement? 

2 3 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: No, I think the $2 

24 million we're spending on a monthly basis is over and 
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1 above our budget because we did not budget for the 
Page 

2 continued operation of Oak Forest as an inpatient 

3 facility. We had intended beginning June 1st -- June 

4 lst, to transform the site into the Regional 

5 Outpati-ent Center and discontinue inpatient services. 

6 As a result of the actions of this body - -  As a result 

7 of the actions of this body, we continued to operate 

8 an inpatient facility up to today. 

9 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Well, yes, but you 

10 essentially based on Dr. Mason's testimony, you kind 

11 of ignored this Board's order of May 10. You ignored 

12 the order, and you discontinued. So that's --  that 

13 doesn't -- I mean that doesn't make the Board happy 

14 that you voted to discontinue their order. Mr. 

15 Constantino, this is -- would you normally have to 

16 have --  if someone was having your regional or 

17 operation like this established, would they have to 

18 come to the Board? 

19 MR. CONSTANTINO: No, sir. 

2 0 JUSTICE GREIMAN: They would not? 

21 MR. CONSTANTINO: No. 

22 JUSTICE GREIMAN: They could do this 

23 without coming to the Board? 

MR. CONSTANTINO: Yes, sir. 24 
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1 JUSTICE GREIMAN: So the offering of them 

2 to what they're going to do, we have no control over 

3 in the future, is that what you're saying? 

4 MR. CONSTANTINO: Yes, sir. 

5 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Okay. And now, the 

6 question to Mr. Urso, if I might. We have 11 --  11 

7 hospitals which said this is a great idea and wrote us 

8 letters saying it's a great idea, which is something 

9 like Chrysler Corporation writing and saying closing 

10 General Motors is a great idea. But five of those 

11  hospital.^, Advocate South Suburban, Ingalls Memorial, 

12 Metro South Medical, Advocates Trinity, Jackson Park, 

13 and South Shore, said that they could take on care for 

14 Oak Forest patients in the future. So my question to 

15 you is whether we can have some kind of or anybody 

16 could have any kind of action against those hospita1.s 

17 if they don't accept the patients, if they have a 

18 policy which they say on one hand is we're going to 

19 take them, on the other hand they don't do it? Is 

20 there anything we could do? 

21 MR. URSO: That's a good question, Judge. 

22 I would say we would treat this if we had the 

23 information based upon investigation or someone's 

24 complaint, that we would take a very close look at 
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1 that information, and we could do several things. We 

2 could possibly ask those folks to come in and speak to 

3 the Board and reply to differences that are occurring 

4 in actuality versus what they said they were going to 

5 do in their written comments or in their testimony. 

6 So we can -- we can actually get to the bottom of it 

7 and see if there are, in fact, problems, and people 

8 aren't following through on what they said they were 

9 going to do. We could always base that on reports. 

10 We can ask Oak Forest to provide to us 

11 about their transfers, if these facilities are 

12 accepting their transfers or not. 

13 You know, the expectation of this Board is 

14 to take a look at a lot of information as you see 

15 today. In Oak Forest, we've spent hours looking at 

16 Oak Forest, and I know the Board members have boxes of 

17 information or CDs full of information that are at 

18 their disposal that they have been reviewing. 

19 And so the decision that is going to be 

20 made today is going to be based on not only all that 
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21 written information but about the testimony of people 

22 at the table, the testimony of people that have 

23 provided public participation, and also what you're 

24 getting to is the written comments that may come in of 
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1 support for this project and written comments from 

2 facilities that say they are willing --  ready, willing 

3 and able to take the patients on. 

If, in fact --  You know, and the Board 

5 bases its decision on all that information. If, in 

6 fact, some of that information is not found true and 

7 people are misrepresenting what they do in the future, 

8 this Board has recourses to have those people come 

9 before this Board and answer this Board's questions. 

JUSTICE GREIMAN: You heard his answer. 

11 And obviously if your patients are not being taken 

12 care of, you'll learn how to boll-er, of course, I 

13 assume. 

PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Of course is the 

15 short answer. Let me ask Dr. Mason to respond to the 

16 first part of your question, Justice Greiman. That is 

17 the reason for the actions that were taken by the 

18 Health Care System as of the beginning of June. 

DR. MASON: Yes, Judge. The question had 

20 to do with -- started with the point about us ignoring 

21 the order. Judge, to our -- to the best of your 

22 understanding and with counsel from Ms. Murphy, 

23 Attorney Murphy as well as the state, we followed the 

24 letter of the law with regard to our ability to 
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1 suspend services, and those services were where we 

2 notified the state and those services suspensions were 

3 to our knowledge legal for us to do, and that's 

4 exactly what was done, no more, no less. 

5 MS. MURPHY: If I could just very briefly 

6 add to that. There were two components to compliance. 

7 The first was extensive coordination with the hospital 

8 licensure staff at IDPH to assure patient safety and 

9 to insure that the adjustments that were made were in 

10 compliance with hospital licensure standards. 

11 The second component of that was to assure 

12 that the temporary suspensions and reductions in 

13 services were undertaken in accordance with this 

14 Board's rules, and we believe we have followed those 

15 rules, both in letter and in spirit. 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Mr. Sewell. 

17 MR. SEWELL: Yes. I need to hear sort of 

18 an overview of what the need for basic primary care is 

19 in the area served by Oak Forest, which the Regional 

20 Outpatient Center would be a response to. 

2 1 DR. MASON: If you -- I just want to make 

22 --  Can I ask a question for clarification? 

23 MR. SEWELL: Sure. 

24 DR. MASON: When you say what is the need, 
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1 do we have studies to show what --  I'm just trying to 

2 answer your question. 

3 MR. SEWELL: Yeah. Was an analysis done 

4 either during the strategic planning process or in 

5 preparation for this as an intervention, that would 

6 give us an impression of the unmet need, I guess, for 

7 basic primary care in that region. 

8 DR. MASON: Yes. What was done during the 

9 planning process -- and those documents can be made 

10 available to you. There i.s an extensive Power Point 

11 presentation that did everything including the -- 

12 Number one, it was part of the application. Number 

13 two, the presentations included geocoding patients 

14 that came to our facility, what their origins were. 

15 And number three, we also had meetings with all of the 

16 other -- all of the primary care facilities around, 

17 but the real issue was specialty care. 

18 Most of the problems that we have, as you 

19 know, we have an online service called IRIS, and our 

20 IRIS referrals for specialty care went way beyond our 

21 current capacity to meet. 

2 2 So the real issue that we really sought to 

23 address with the Regional Outpatient Center was our --  

24 was the ability to provide for the FQHC, but they 

, ,. ,. - . . . . . - . -, . -- -- 

: 

1 
1 
I 
I 

I 
I 
1 



Page IS0 
1 couldn't do them themselves. The FQHCs can't provide 

2 specialty care. The County has expertise in this 

3 area. The FQHCs depend on us to be able to refer 

4 those patients, particularly those patients that don't 

5 have a means to pay or a means or Public Aid, as you 

6 know, specialty referrals to ortho, urology, some of 

7 those kinds of specialties are very difficult for 

8 Public Aid patients. Recently reported in the AMA, in 

9 the --  I'm sorry, not the AMA, the New England Journal 

10 of Medicine, a study showing that even people that 

11 have Public Aid still had difficulty getting specialty 

12 care access. So this was one of the driving forces 

13 behind why we chose to make this decision. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Sewell. 

15 MR. SEWELL: One follow-up on that. Is 

16 there a plan to seek federally-qualified health center 

17 status for your Regional Outpatient Center? 

18 DR. MASON: No, there are no current plans 

19 to have FQHC status for the outpatient center. 

20 Because of our current funding arrangements with FQHC, 

21 to seek FQHC status then puts us in like all the other 

22 FQNCs where we already have funding mechanisms that 

23 are more favorable to the state and to us, we would 

24 lose those abilities that we currently enjoy and also 
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1 the state enjoys not having to put up match funds in 

2 order to support us. I 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: With the federal 

4 government? 

5 DR. MASON: With the federal government. 

6 The County provides its own match to the federal 

7 government as opposed to using General Revenue funds 

8 from the state to provide that match. 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Just wanted to clarify 

10 that for the Board members. 

11 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: I could respond as 

12 well to the question. You know, I think the critical 

13 components of expansion of care in the Regional 

14 Outpatient Center proposal is a dramatic expansion in 

15 specialty care, not so much primary care, but a 
I 

16 dramatic expansion in specialty care available to the / 
I 

17 Southland residents. I think in the process of ! 

i 

18 preparing the strategic plan, one of the things that 
! 

i 
1 9  became evident was that it's easier actua1l.y for folks 1 
20 who are uninsured or underinsured to access primary 1 ! 
21 care. The real difficulty is accessing specialty I 
22 care. And it's the dramatic expansion of the Regional 

t 

23 Outpatient Center's specialty care, I think, that is 

24 the critical issue. 1 
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CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Are there any other 

2 questions on the part of Board members? Dr. Burden. 

DR. BURDEN: Number one, I want to 

4 hopefully assure my new fellow Board members that most 

5 every application will not subsequently --  will not be 

6 as lengthy and tedious and certainly as loaded with 

7 emotion and facts as this one. 

We have been down this road previously with 

9 institutions attempting to close in medically 

10 underserved areas. That being said, I want to 

11 compliment the presentation that was made. I thought 

12 it was extremely, maybe information overload for some, 

13 Dr. Mason, but it was a very eloquent display of your 

14 involvement. I'm impressed with your interim status, 

15 hopefully. 

Personally, I feel that Judge made an 

17 excellent point. As I look at everything, I am 

18 concerned about the community reaction, of course. 

19 But there ought to be some way --  I mean I'm somewhat 

20 offended when I see suburban hospitals, mostly white 

21 and Caucasian, seem to have an opportunity to step 

22 forward, and yet one of which on page 15 says they 

23 have an aging physical plant and the large 
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1 help with your problem. That offends me greatly. 

5 this in terms of the interim because of the community II 

1 
1 
I 

2 I am impressed that we do have some 

3 institutions in the community willing to step forward. 

4 I don't know how we can impress upon them the need for 

6 divide. I can see the anxiety, the concern, and 

7 understand that. It's a lengthy trip to Cook County 

1 

8 Hospital or Stroger-Rice where I spent some time and I1 
9  do recognize how it is to sit in the emergency room. 

10 We can either be admitted or seen. That's a very, 

11 very difficult thing for them to accept. 

12 I really want to hear our fellow Board 

13 members address what I think is crucial to this 

14 acceptance is how do we get 36 hospitals that have 

15 been contacted, impact letters come from several, and 

16 I -- I wonder how enthusiastic they are about helping 

17 out during this interim period. No doubt about it, 

18 what you're attempting to do in my judgment is the 

1 9  right way to go in terms of what's going on in 

20 medicine today, but that's --  To look at the 

21 community's concerns is my concern. How do we get 

22 some measure of assurance that they will not be 

23 abandoned in this area when they have what they call 

24 extreme need. 
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And I agree with the Judge's point. 

2 Perhaps we can discuss this a little bit more to get 

3 to some conclusion on a basis that makes some sense. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Are there any other 

5 questions on the part of the Board members? 

MS. OLSON: I have a follow-up comment on 

7 what Dr. Burden just said. I think, Dr. Mason, that 

8 you made the comment in your comments that you would 

9 be willing to share with this Board the disposition of 

10 the patients that come to Oak Forest that are not 

11 being able to be serviced. Was that your offer of 

12 report to this Board, or was that more specific to 

13 some other issue? 

DR. MASON: No, the condition --  the report 

15 that I referenced in here had to do with conditioning 

16 approval on provision of one or more reports regarding 

17 our experience with hospital transfers. So yes, in 

18 some way that does deal with that. We do keep records 

19 right now of the transfers that we do from Oak Forest, 

20 and as a part of that team, we as a Cook County 

21 hospital system do not --  will not shirk our 

22 responsibility to make certain that at the end of the 

23 day, that patients, albeit they may have to transfer, 

24 come these distances sometimes, but we will not make 
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1 --  we will make certain that people --  At the end of 

2 the day, we've always been the safety net. We always 

3 will be. 

4 MS. OLSON: Thank you. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Any other questions on 

6 the part of Board members? 

7 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes, I have one. 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Robert. 

9 MR. HILGENBRINK: Along the line of 

10 assurances, what did --  can we get in terms of 

11 assurances that the Cook County will follow their 

12 strategic plan, and what is their willingness to 

13 report back to this Board any deviation from that 

14 plan? 

15 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Thank you. First 

16 of all, we'd be happy to come back whenever you 

17 request our presence to report on the implementation 

18 of our strategic plan, the progress we're making, and 

19 the cooperation we're getting from the neighboring 

20 institutions and the Southland in terms of the care 

21 for our patients. 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: I think we recognize as 

23 a Board post this vote we really don't have any 

24 jurisdiction on Cook County's strategic plan, but 
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1 there's a willingness for them to share with us 

2 perhaps 12 months down the road the status based 

3 upon --  

4 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: If you request our 

5 presence, we will be here. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Madam 

President. 

JUSTICE GREIMAN: Can't we amend any motion 

that might be presented to you that within six months 

they'll give us a report as to what they've done? 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Six months to a year, 

perhaps. 

JUSTICE GREIMAN: Or a year. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Strategic plan --  

JUSTICE GREIMAN: Can we amend our -- 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. We haven't even 

17 made a motion yet. 

18 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Someone should make the 

19 motion. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We can put that on a 

21 contingency. Member perin. 

22 MR. PENN: I just had - -  Anyone on this 

23 panel today, do any of you llve in this Southland 

24 area? 
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1 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: I believe that all 

2 three of us are residents of Chicago. 1 
i 

3 MR. PENN: Chicago. I've listened, I think 

4 with a very open mind, to both sides of this issue, 
1 4 

5 and, you know, I find it rather disturbing all this i 
1 

6 fear, the fear if we don't close it, the fear if we do ' 

7 close it. It's very emotional for people in this 

4 
8 audience today, and this, you know, moving forward, ! 

E 
i 

9 this application, at this time, I haven't been 

10 convinced by either side what is best for Oak Forest, I i 

11 and until I get that point, you know, I'd like to --  I 

12 hope that we have some more discussion among our 
I 

13 panels here, because I believe people come to this 

14 table though, raise their right hand and swear to tell 

15 the truth, they tell us the truth, and the things that 

16 I hear, like I say, I find it very disturbing. People I 
17 waiting in emergency rooms eight to 12 hours before I 

I 
18 being seen -- 24 hours. And I'm not so sure if you i 

I 
I 

19 didn't qualify a statement that was made earlier that 

20 you systemically dismantled this hospital so that the 

21 facility would look like it's underutilized. I mean 

22 that was said, and I think that was also qualified 

23 here at the table today. 

2 4 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: All right. First 

c-. . , . , ~-'----- - .~- 
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1 of all, with all due respect to you, sir, the people 

2 who swore to tell the truth are those of us who are up 

3 here. Those who gave public testimony were not 

4 required to swear. And, secondly --  secondly, I think 

5 -- I think there was an effort to explain by Dr. Mason 

6 -- I'll ask him to do it again - -  why certain 

7 decisions were made as of June 1st regarding various 

8 aspects of the operation of the Oak Forest campus. 

9 MR. URSO: If I can say something to the 

10 Board, we did receive documentation about the 

11 temporary suspension of services, proper 

12 documentation, and they have been providing us with 

13 interim documentation. So we were aware of the 

14 temporary suspensions of various categories of 

15 services. 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Ladies and gentlemen, 

17 can we keep decorum, please. I think we've sat here 

18 patiently. I would ask you to do the same at this 

19 point. Yes. 

2 0 MR. EAKER: If I might ask for 

21 clarification. 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Eaker. 

2 3 MR. EAKER: I think Mr. Penn's question 

24 focused on an area of my concern, which is when the 

-~ . , . -...- , .-- - d 
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1 dismantling of the hospital began, I'm getting a sense 

2 that it wasn't just three months ago or six months 

3 ago, it's been years in the process. And then you use 

4 that as justification of why you need to change 1 I 
i 

5 because it is outdated and underutilized. Do you care 1 
6 to respond to that? 3 

I 

7 1 DR. MASON: Before --  I'm sorry, President , 
8 Preckwinkle. ! 

i 
9 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: No, go ahead. i 

1 
10 DR. MASON: First of all, I think that it's f i 

! 

11 important to understand the history of the Oak Forest i 
12 Hospital. Oak Forest Hospital, as mentioned in 

13 President Preckwinkle's testimony, has been the 

14 hospital that was really never designed to be an acute 

I 
I 

15 care hospital. Even the emergency room -- what we ! 

: 
16 call an emergency room is the end of a hallway with 

s 

17 four beds in it. It was never designed to be an j 
+ 
t 

18 emergency room. i 

19 What it was designed to do is that for the 
i 

20 acute care of patients that were hospitalized at Oak I 
21 Forest Hospital, when they got into trouble, they were 

1 22 moved into an area where they could be monitored more 

23 closely. That morphed into what became or what was I 
i 

24 called later on an emergency room. It was never 
i 
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1 intended to be. We never took ambulances at Oak 

2 Forest. We never delivered babies at Oak Forest. We 

3 never had pediatric services at Oak Forest. It was 

4 never intended to be what it is. And, in fact, our 

5 rooms --  

6 MR. EAKER: If I may interrupt? 

7 DR. MASON: Sure. 

8 MR. EAKER: I get where you're going with 

9 this. Let's back up to --  

lo DR. MASON: Sure. 

11 MR. EAKER: --  a longer history. The land 

12 and the property was donated to Cook County to take 

13 care of the health needs of people. 

14 DR. MASON: I can't speak for that. I 

15 don't know how the land was acquired. 

16 MR. EAKER: Somewhere I read that, and it's 

17 in its history. So the theme is that that property 

18 has the sacred element to it of caring for the poor. 

19 Years ago, maybe in the beginning of the history, it 

20 was to take care of tuberculosis. Well, thank God, 

21 we're beyond that being an epidemic and a crisis. The 

22 morphing and evolving is the nature of that process. 

23 My concern revolves more around on how that was force- 

24 fed. This change --  this hospital not being kept so 

-- -- . ,,--.~- , , w a ~ . ~  .&*"%-A ,,, . ,a.z." 
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1 that it was -- kept pace with the needs of the 

2 community to the point that it did become obsolete. 

3 That doesn't address the needs of this community. Are 

4 there other plans for this property other than health 

5 care needs? 

DR. MASON: There are other county 

7 operations that happen at the facility. The Public 

8 Health Department has offices there. Other parts --  

MR. EAKER: I mean other than health care 

10 in general. 

12 this. Do you have -- 

PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: This is an 

14 extensive county property. There are 41 buildings on 

15 this site. It was -- And these buildings were used 

16 when it was --  when it had over a thousand long-term 

17 care patients as kind of dormitories for the long-term 

18 care patients. Part of it is presently forest 

19 preserve property, and part of it is the 41 buildings 

20 and the campus of Oak Forest. 

There are some offices on the campus that 

22 are part of our health care system and some that are 

23 county, but there is -- If you're asking whether there 

24 is any plan to transform this to something other than 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 
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1 health care uses or county uses, the answer is no. 

2 This is county property. It will continue to be 

1 
I 
I 

i 
3 county property, both in the aspects of it that 

4 includes the building and the aspects of it that's 

5 forest preserve property. 

6 MR. EAKER: Thank you. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Member 

8 Sewell. 

9 MR. SEWELL: I just want to say one more 

10 thing about this. At some point in the history there 

11 were what, a thousand long-term care patients. The 

12 medical/surgical unit was for the acute care needs of 

13 those long-term patients in Oak Forest. Now, you take 

14 away the long-term care patients, and you also 

15 introduce into South Cook County some really small 

16 primary care clinics and where, Phoenix, Ford Heights, 

17 Kobbins, then the rnedical/surgical capacity was there 

18 to be complementary to what was going on in a 

1.9 decentralized relatively small primary care system. 

20 So it's almost like the medical/surgical unit turned 

21 its attention outside because there was no need to 

22 serve those long-term care patients because they were 

23 gone. 

2 4 Now, is that revision of history, or is 

u- .-.- ...- b- - "  -,. . .-. -- 
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1 that correct? 

DR. MASON: That sounds pretty close to 2 

3 accurate to me. 

4 MR. SEWELL: All right. So you have 

5 economies of scale and efficiencies with inpatient, 

6 you know, facilities, Sister Sheila knows about, and 

7 it sounds like what you're saying is you have a small 

8 underutilized medical/surgical service that just is 

9 not economically viable, that the dollar numbers you 

10 mentioned in relation to the number of patients make 

11 that inefficient. 

12 Now, I guess it's the kind of discussion 

13 the Board needs to have with each other revolves 

14 around --  and maybe this is too hypothetical to talk 

15 about -- but let's assume that you keep everything 

16 like it is, all right, to support that, wouldn't you 

17 have to take resources from other Cook County Health 

18 System units? 

19 DR. MASON: Yes. 

2 0 MR. SEWELL: Provident, Fantus, Cermak, 

21 Stroger, and if you do that, then we'll just be in a 

22 merry-go-round of talking about what we're closing in 

23 Chicago or what we're closing, you know, in some other 

24 location where you operate. Is that where we are? 
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DR. MASON: As evidenced by the resources 

2 that already went from Oak Forest, the 50 nurses I 

3 referenced that went to fill vacancies both at Stroger 

4 and some even at our correctional facility. So yes, 

5 those resources would be redeployed. In a perfect 

6 world where we had unlimited money and unlimited 

I 7 resources, we would be able to do a lot more than what 

1 8 
wenre doing, but thatos not the reality we are facing 

9 We do have to work with the limited resources we have 

10 with this plan, and this plan is trying to rationalize 

I 11 those resources as best as possible to put them where 

12 they're needed. Can we do everything that everybody 

1 13 needs? No, we can't 

14 So the issue becomes how do we best take 

15 the dollars that we have, look at what the needs are 

16 based on the studies that have been done, and try and 

17 come up with a plan, which is what the strategic plan 

18 did to try and do a couple of things. Number one, 

19 answer the question about specialty care, where can 

20 people go, and there's a survey just recently also j 
21 done quickly, as Dr. Byrd might understand, in the 

22 urology community where less than five percent of 

23 urologists actually take patients with Medicaid. So 

24 there is a tremendous need for that, and we are --  we 
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1 opened or tried to open our referral. system to that. 

2 Secondly, there are a number of 

3 opportunities that we need to be positioned for in 

4 order to take advantage of what is coming down the 

5 pike in terms of health care reform, and even some of 

6 those as early as waiver opportunities, and if we're 

7 not poised to be able to be an integrated system, and 

8 we're not able to deliver on these specialty care 

9 needs that those people -- patients will have, if 

10 we're not able to make certain that we can service 

11 these things in a concrete fashion, looking at it not 

12 just at Oak Forest or Stroger, but looking at our 

13 entire operation and rationalizing what services, what 

14 resources go where, we won't be ready for the 2014 

15 kinds of things, and this is an attempt to try and do 

16 that. It won't solve and it won't make everybody 

17 happy. I'll be the first one to admit that, but it 

18 will help us at least be --  approach some sense of 

19 being ready when that time comes or as that time has 

2 0  come. 

2 1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Any other 

22 questions? 

2 3 MR. DART: Mr. Chairman. 

2 4 CHAIKMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 
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1 MR. DART: I had a -- 

2 CHAIRMAN GAL,ASSIE: Comment? 

3 MR. DART: Yes. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Okay. 

5 MR. DART: The Department of Public Health 

6 Ex-Officio Board Member David Carvalho is absent today 

7 because his attendance was required at the Joint 

8 Conunittee on Administrative Rules meeting at the 

9 Thompson Center in Chicago this morning. 

10 Mr. Carvalho has asked me to read into the 

11 record that he has a conflict with respect to Item 

12 H-01 regarding Oak Forest Hospital of Cook County. 

13 Oak Forest Hospital is an affiliate of the Cook County 

14 Health and Hospitals System, and Mr. Carvalho serves 

15 on the Governing Board of the System as its Finance 

16 Chair. 

17 In that capacity, he participated in the 

18 strategic planning that led to the decision to seek 

19 closure of the hospital's inpatient services, but 

20 thereafter had no participation in this application on 

21 behalf of Cook County. In addition, of course, he has 

22 had no involvement in the review of the application, 

23 which has been overseen entirely by Courtney Avery, 

24 Mike Constantino, and Bill Dart, nor any conversations 
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1 regarding the application with any of the employees or 

2 agents of the applicants. 

3 Thank you. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Bill. So 

5 noted in the record. 

I believe the Board is ready to vote. I 6 

7 know that the Board is very conscious of the 

8 significance of this vote to the community, to the 

9 Cook County System. We take it very seriously. I 

10 don't think there is any good outcome to this vote, 

11 regretfully, and I think all people involved with this 

12 feel similar to that. 

13 That having been said, may I have a motion 

14 to approve Project 11-037 to discontinue Oak Forest 

15 Hospital? 

16 DR. BURDEN: I move. 

17 MR. HAYES: Second. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: There's a motion and a 

19 second, and this includes the condition that was 

20 discussed by the Judge which would require six months 

21 to a year feedback to us both on the strategic plan -- 

2 2  JUSTICE GREIMAN: The then status of the 

23 established ambulatory non-hospital service provision 

24 that they recommended or requested. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Okay. In addition to 

2 that, we are asking for feedback on hospital 

3 referrals, and they've clearly said it's in their best 

4 interests to advise this Board of any hospital that 

5 has so stated they would support, that there was a 

6 problem. Going back to the motion, it is --  Yes. 

7 MR. HILGENBRINK: And to the strategic plan 

8 as presently is adopted -- And any changes to the 

9 strategic plan as presently adopted would be reported 

10 back to the hospital board. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Okay. Well, let me try 

12 this again. The motion will be to approve Project 

13 11-037 to discontinue Oak Forest Hospital with the 

14 contingent that the Cook County Health System in the 

15 next six months to a year would come back to this 

16 Board to advise us of the status of the strategic 

17 plan, and if there's any difficulties in hospital 

18 referrals, we would -- this Board would want to be 

19 aware of that. 

2 0 MR. URSO: Do we have an agreement? IS it 

21 understood what we're asking for? 

22 PRESIDENT PRECKWINKLE: Yes. 

2 3 MS. MURPHY: My understanding is that --  I 

24 would personally appreciate clarification on a 
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1 timeframe. Do you want it at six months and 12 months 

2 or at 12 months? 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you can do six 

4 months. I wasn't sure if six months you could respond i 

5 to us in terms of the strategic plan. 

6 MS. MURPHY: So we said that in 12 months, 

7 we would report back on implementation of the ROC, the 

I 
8 status of implementation of the strategic plan, and i 

9 give this Board a reasonably comprehensive report on 
1 
! 
! 

10 the experiences with transfers to other area 1 
11 hospitals. That is what I have heard. 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: That is the spirit of 1 

13 what we said. 
i I 

: 

14 MS. MURPHY: Okay. 1 

! 
15 MR. URSO: So we're clear, the timetable I 

! 
1 

16 that we want this report, within 12 months from 1 
i 
I 

17 today's date? i 
E 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Correct. 1 
? 

19 MS. MURPHY: And on the record, the $ 

20 applicant would agree to that condition. 
i 
! 
i 

2 1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 
I 
i 
1 

22 The motion was made by Member? 

2 3 MR. ROATE: Dr. Burden. j 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Dr. Burden. And second i 
I 
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1 by? 

2 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Hayes. Call for a 

4 vote, please. 

5 MR. ROATE: Dr. Burden. 

6 DR. BURDEN: I'm going to vote yes, and I 

7 personally feel very comfortable with the addendum put 

8 on this to have a response back regarding the 

9 community hospitals accepting your patients for some 

10 security for the individuals that presented their 

11 anxiety here this morning. I vote yes. 

12 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

13 MR. EAKER: The analogy of Oak Forest 

14 Hospital and the citizens of Southland are impossible 

15 to overlook. The closing of Oak Forest Hospital, in 

16 other words, its death, began years ago with the 

17 neglect and the refusal of Cook County Board to keep 

18 the facility in operational health. Some have used 

19 the analogy of Oak Forest being on life support, and 

20 now you're asking this Board to pull the plug for the 

21 decision to close Oak Forest didn't just begin a few 

22 months ago. It started years ago. The decision is a 

23 very serious nature. It's as if a tsunami is bearing 

24 down on this community, and what can they do to get 
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1 away from the tragic results of it? 

2 It really doesn't matter how this Board 

3 votes today because your efforts have shown that 

4 you're going to keep the hospital in essence closed. 

5 The Illinois citizens who depend on it for their 

6 health and their care needs are simply out of luck. 

7 They will be victimized by limited access to care 

8 which will be generated. Many will die as has been 

9 testified today, or others will have their health 

10 seriously affected. The frustration of getting care 

11 in a timely manner will cause many to simply avoid 

12 getting any care. The delay in seeking proper care 

13 will have its serious consequences. The tsunami is 

14 hurling towards them and they will not be able to 

15 navigate away from its destruction. 

16 The contempt that you have shown this Board 

17 in the process of closing a vital safety net hospital 

18 is only equaled, I think, by the disdain that you 

19 showed to these citizens. I am very much in support 

20 of the state-of-the-art ambulatory care center. Will 

21 it happen in time for any real significance to the 

22 sick in this community? I'm not convinced that it 

23 will. The 80-year history of this hospital or its 

24 properties represents the caring and need to care for 
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1 the poor, and that's being in many ways ignored. 

2 I simply vote today out of frustration, 

3 frustration that the people of this great state, not 

! 

i 
I 

I 
1 

4 just of this area, is being ignored. I vote no. 

5 (APPLAUSE) 

6 M R .  ROATE: Justi-ce Greiman. 

7 JUSTICE GREIMAN: In thinking about it, 

8 medical --  delivery of medical services changes over 

9 the years, and very, very often it's hard for us to 

10 accept those changes. 60 years ago, my grandmother's 

11 sister Valerie Miller --  you can look up her record --  

12 came to the hospital, and she was ill, desperately ill 

13 for five-year period and stayed there for a five-year 

14 period and died there, and her care was, as I recall 

15 pretty good, but times have changed, and the hospital 

16 obviously is not a long-term hospital anymore. 

17 I think that the Board is --  the County 

18 Board is sincere in establishing a new kind of 
j: 
I 

19 facility to help the health care of the citizens of 

20 this county, and so I will vote aye. 

2 1 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes. 

22 MR. HAYES: Well, I would like to thank all 

23 my fellow Board members, Judge Greiman, and Dr. 

24 Burden, and with the proposal that the County Board -- 

- -.,-- ,.- -A 
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1 that the Health Board comes back and discusses on the 

2 implementation of their strategic plan, and I'd like 

3 to see that happen even beyond the one-year timeframe 

4 and maybe a couple of years as well. I'm not going to 

5 put that in the amendment here, but I certainly 

6 believe that that would be very helpful. So my vote 

7 is that I'm going to vote yes on this proposal. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

MR. HILGENBRINK: I'm going to take the 

10 County Board and the County Health and Hospital System 

11 Board at their word that they're going to follow the 

12 strategic plan and in an effort to improve the health 

13 services for the residents of this area, and I'm going 

14 to vote yes. 

MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

MS. OLSON: Because I consider myself an 

17 advocate for access to care, and I believe that the 

18 County Board's plan clearly is going to improve access 

19 to care for the citizens of the Southland, I vote yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

MR. PENN: First of all, I don't believe 

22 that a person has to raise their right hand to say 

23 that they're telling the truth, and I believe the 

24 people that did make their presentation today were 
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1 telling the truth. And I've done the vote count. I 

2 know where this application stands at this moment. My 

3 heart goes out to the people in Southland, and I heard 

4 the word genocide --  regional genocide, what might be 

5 taking place. I heard the fears that were expressed 

6 by the presenters, and I was hoping we could delay 

! 
I 

1 
1 

B 
2 

! 

I 
I 
! 

7 this vote. So today I'm going to vote present. 

8 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

9 MR. SEWELL: I think that one of the 

10 benefits of this proposal hasn't been talked about 

11 much. Fantus was really designed as an ambulatory 

12 specialty --  sub-specialty facility. When you have 

13 that capacity to develop a regional outpatient center, 

14 it should make access to those types of ambulatory -- 

15 ambulatory services. It shou1.d make them improve for 

16 residents of the south suburbs. So I vote yes. 

17 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: I find ourselves in the 

19 most difficult decade economically, I believe, since 

20 World War 11, and while I regret to say it, I think 

21 these kinds of decisions we're going to be making for 

22 years. It is not a simple task for government or for 

23 citizens for us to accept it. Having spent 30 years 

24 in public health, understanding the demands, I don't 

- - -- ... i 
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1 think there's any good solution here. I vote yes. 

2 MR. ROATE: That's seven votes to the 

3 positive, one vote to the negative, and one present. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. 

1 
1 
1 
1 

5 MS. MURPHY: Thank you very much. 
i 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Good luck 

7 with your mission. Good luck with your community. 

8 For Board members here, if I could just let you know, 

9 in terms of the time of the day, we have five 

10 applications coming to us after lunch. Items 6 

11 through 17 will all be dealt with as one application. 

12 So it might not be as onerous as we expect today. I 

13 would anticipate probably by about 4:00 we should be 

14 finished. We are now in recess for lunch, and we'll 

15 come back at 2:45. 

16 (LUNCH BREAK TAKEN) 

17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We're out of recess, 

18 and then we'll call us back into session. Thank you 

19 very much. We're moving on to - -  Let's see - -  Item 

20 No. I, which is No. 10-086, Fresenius Medical Care 

21 East Aurora. Is there anyone here representing 

22 Fresenius East Aurora. Hearing none -- Hearing some. 

23 Is there any public comments to this? Yes. Come on 

24 up, please. Sorry, sir. 

.=.-- .,-A- --> . =--"- 
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1 MR. PENROD: That's okay. 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you could introduce 

3 yourself. 

4 MR. PENROD: My name is Doug Penrod. I'm 

5 Senior Transplant Nurse Coordinator and Outreach 

6 Liaison at Northwestern Memorial Hospital in the 

7 Department of Surgery ~ivision of Organ 

8 Transplantation. I'm being sworn? 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: This is public 

10 comments. He doesn't have to be sworn. 

11 MR. PENN: I have 20 --  30 years experience i 
i 

12 as a nurse, 24 of that in transplant. I have worked 

13 with dialysis units for that entire period of time. I 
i 

14 am here today not as a representative of Northwestern, 3 
15 I'm actually on vacation, and I'm here as a private 

16 citizen today to make comment. i 
i 

17 Also, I want you to know that I neither 

18 support or oppose this particular thing before you 

19 about Fresenius and their dialysis unit in East 

20 Aurora. I really don't care. 

2 1 What I am here to address are remarks made 

22 at the last board proceedings regarding dialysis and 

23 their poor --  or lack of getting patients on the 

24 transplant list. 

1 

--..*- _~_~.-.---- 
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Having worked with dialysis units for 24 

2 years, I have been invited into units as well as the 

3 other transplants centers' representatives to talk to 

4 patients, educate them about transplant, and also to 

5 educate the staff about transplant. This has been 

6 going on for over 20 years. This is not new. 

Dialysis and transplant centers are 

8 mandated under the conditions of participation in the 

9 Medicare and Medicaid programs to provide education 

LO for patients and from our perspective also for the 

12 of their transplant options. 

I generally spend two days in a dialysis 

14 center. I will go in on a Tuesday or Wednesday, 

15 Wednesday/Thursday, so I cover all shifts, and I talk 

16 to every single patient in the unit about transplant. 

17 Rare is the occasion when I find out someone has never 

18 heard of kidney transplants. That just does not 

19 happen in this day and age. 

The dialysis units themselves also along 

21 with the transplant center support the National Kidney 

22 Foundation of Illinois and their treatment options 

23 programs which are held three times a year now for 

24 dialysis patients to come in. These are supported by 
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1 Davita and Fresenius actually and all the transplant 

2 centers financially to inform patients better and 
1 

3 educate them about transplants. We also hold all the 

4 transplant -- well, not all. Northwestern, Rush, 

5 University of Illinois, and Christ all hold transplant 

6 conferences every year specifically for dialysis 

7 nurses, dialysis technicians, renal dietitians and 

8 social workers to increase their knowledge of 

I I 
d 

9 transplant. So they're better able to go back and 
J 1 
d 

10 talk to their patients about transplant. Z 
1 

1 I. Our conference was last Thursday. I had 1 
12 580 transplants people sign up for that conference, 

13 and unfortunately we only had room for 450 of them. 

14 This is not unusual. U of I had the same thing. 

15 Rush's will be in October. 

16 So I believe that that is a rather unfair 

17 characterization of dialysis centers. I think they're 

18 doing an excellent job. There are currently 89,000 

19 people on the list, 89,340 as of August 14th, waiting 

20 for a kidney transplant. 4,100 plus of those patients 

21 are in the State of Illinois, and over 300 in this 

22 state will die before they are -- this year prior to 

23 transplant. The current wait is about three to five 

24 years. The problem in this state and across the 

-- _.i 
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1 country is not that of demand. 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: 30 seconds, sir. 

3 MR. PENROD: The problem is supply, and I 

4 think personally the dialysis units have done a 

5 tremendous job in referring their patients in a timely 

6 manner for transplant evaluation. 

7 Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 8 

9 Enjoy your vacation. 

10 Good afternoon . 

11 DR. KEDAINIS: Good afternoon. I am Dr. 

12 Rasa Kedainis, K-e-d-a-i-n-i-s. Good afternoon, Mr. 

13 Chairman, and members of the Health Facilities and 

14 Services Review Board. My name is Dr. Rasa Kedainis. 

15 I'm a licensed nephrologist in the state of Illinois, 

16 and also I'm a shareholder of the Fox Valley Medical 

17 Associates in Batavia. 

18 On behalf of the Fox Valley Medical 

19 Associates, I would like to thank you for the 

20 opportunity to provide comments to this agency 

21 regarding the EMC East Aurora project. 

22 Since February, there been ample testimony, 

23 both written and oral, given in opposition to this 

24 project which focused upon existing excess capacity 

. . .. -"...~. _LI_____.d 
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1 within the has VIII planning area. As the State 

2 Agency Report accurately points out, there is 

3 calculated excess of 35 stations in the planning area. 

4 There are eight facilities within 30 minutes travel 

5 time, operating on average occupancy of 73.85 percent. 

6 Of these eight facilities, four of them are not at 

7 target occupancy, including FMC-West Batavia, which is 

8 not yet operating, but will have 12 stations located 

9 within the required 30 minutes travel time. Based 

10 upon those facilities' average occupancy, an 

11 additional 45 patients can be accommodated today 

12 before we even reach your required 80 percent target 

13 occupancy. 

14 Moreover, there has been ample testimony 

15 given about the reliability of referring physicians' 

16 patients there, given that referring physician has 

17 provided similar, if not identical data, in support of 

18 other Fresenius facilities' certificate of need 

19 applications in the immediate recent past. 

2 0 I'm not here this morning to reiterate that 

21 testimony. It has been artfully discussed, presented 

22 and accurately reflected in the State Agency Report, 

23 and there is no need to remind the Board why the 

24 application --  why the application should fail simply 

. . ~. L- 2 
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1 for those reasons alone. 

2 What I do want to do is to focus my 

3 comments on are the risks of excess capacity to those 

4 costs -- 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: 30 seconds. 

6 DR. KEDAINIS: -- quality of care and 

7 patient safety. 

8 I think it is important that we remind 

9 ourselves that excess capacity, in the form of 

10 facility overbuilding, directly results in health care 

11 price inflation. In fact, that is the basic 

12 assumption underlying certificate of need regulations. 

13 For instance, when a hospital cannot fill its beds, 

14 fixed costs must be met through higher charges for the 

15 beds that are used. Much like hospitals, dialysis 

16 facilities have fixed costs. As a result of 

17 underutilization, the fixed costs may be absorbed by 

18 non-governmental or private payers, or facilities may 

19 have to cut their staff or shelve plans for the 

20 recruitment of other talented nephrologists and other 

21 members vital to the patient care team. 

22 Thank you very much. 

2 3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Mi.ke, I 

24 apologize. Did you guys give your report? 

. . ~ ,-AL + .  .. . - 
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2 applicants up to the table yet. 

4 very much. Are the applicants here? Yes, they are. 

5 Thank you very much. 

Good afternoon. Introduce yourselves and 

7 then be sworn in, please. 

MS. RANALLI: Good afternoon. Thank you. 

9 My name is Clare Ranalli. I'm counsel for the 

10 applicant. To my left is Lori Wright --  Certainly. 

11 My name is Clare Ranalli, R-a-n-a-1-1-i. To my left 

12 is Lori Wright, W-r-i-g-h-t, CON specialist. To her 

13 is Mark Fawcett, Vice-President and Treasurer of 

14 Fresenius Corporate, and to his left is Dr. Dodhia, 

15 D-o-d-h-i-a. He is the Medical Director/Referring 

16 Physician for this particular project. To his left is 

17 David Kembel, Vice-President and Associate General 

18 Counsel. That's K-e-m-b-e-1. And to his left is 

19 Coleen, C-o-1-e-e-n, Muldoon, M-u-1-d-o-o-n, Regional 

20 Vice-President. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

(OATH GIVEN) 

MS. RANAL,LI: In the interest of time, I'll 

24 just turn things quickly over --  
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We're going to do staff 

2 report, and then we'll come right back to you. 

3 MS. RANALLI: I'm sorry. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: That's okay. 

5 MS. RANALLI: I was in the interest of time 

6 moving things forward. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: I understand, believe 

8 me. Thank you, Clare. 

9 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

10 The applicants, ~resenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc., 

11 and Fresenius Medical Care Sandwich, LLC, are 

12 proposing to establish a 12-station ESRD facility, an 

13 8,500 gross square feet of space and a cost of 

14 approximately $4.4 million. This project is before 

15 the State Board because it proposes to establish a 

16 health care facility as defined by the Act. 

17 This project received an Intent to Deny 

18 after July, 2011, State Board meeting. No additional 

19 information was provided to the State Agency in 

20 response to the Intent to Deny. 

2 1 The State Agency notes the following: The 

22 facility size, the first station is in excess of the 

23 state board standard by 11 gross square foot per 

24 station. There is an excess of 35 stations in the 

*.-- , " z--=-- 
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1 planning area, and I would like to make one 

2 correction. Three of the seven facilities within 30 

3 minutes are underutilized. We had identified 

4 Fresenius Medical Care Plainfield as being within 30 

5 minutes, and it was not. We rely upon Mapquest, and 

6 sometime it's not too reliable. So I apologize for 

7 that. 

8 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

10 MS. RANALLI: Thank you. I'm going to turn 

11 things over to Mr. Fawcett because at the last meeting 
I 
I 
t 

12 there were questions about the bond rating and certain 

13 financial issues. He'll be, and Mr. Kembel will be, 
i 
I 
i 

14 able to address some of the operational issues 

15 including competition, Medicaid and compensated care, I 
i : 

16 and then Dr. Dodhia can talk specifically to this I 

17 project about the need. 
I 

18 Thank you. 

19 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

2 0 MR. FAWCETT: Thank you. I don't know if 1 

21 this is protocol, but I sent some materials to your 

22 committee last week, and I'd like to make sure that 

23 they were received, and that you had a chance to 

24 review them. I also have some --  

- -- - 
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1 MR. CONSTANTINO: Mr. Chairman, extra 

2 copies here. We had e-mailed his presentation to all 

3 the Board members late last week, I believe it was on 

4 either Thursday or Friday. I have some additional 

5 copies here if anyone would like to see that. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

7 MR. FAWCETT: I have a color copy if you 

8 would like one of this --  

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Does anyone else need a 

10 copy? They're coming around. 

11 MR. FAWCETT: Okay. Fresenius Medical Care 

12 has recently presented in front of this Board, and 

13 questions were raised about the company's bond debt 

14 rating. It is certainly a reasonable concern in 

15 today's environment and a prudent question. I'm here 

16 today to speak about that with the committee and 

17 attempt to allay your concerns. 
1 

18 Fresenius Medical Care's own secured debt 

19 rating of BB, Ba2, BB+ is only one part of a larger 

20 picture. Currently the company's $4 billion senior 

21 credit agreement is rated BBB-investment rated. Our 

22 secured facility, the Commercial Paper Conduit 

23 facility is structured to an AA rating, which is a 

24 very high rating that the rating agencies offer. 

-A,-+. , , ..-- % .  
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1 These other ratings give a broader picture of the 

2 ratings profile for the company and a more positive 

3 one. Our bonds that were referenced are the lowest 

4 level of credit on our balance sheet and therefore 

5 carry the lowest rating of all of the company's 

6 rating. 

7 Lately ratings opinions have been 

8 questioned. So let's look at another measure of 

9 rating for the company. In the materials that I 

10 provided, there's a chart there that shows how our 

11 recently issued --  U.S. dollar bond that was issued 

12 this year trades relative to a BBB company index. It 

13 also compares it to a BB index, and you can see in 

14 that chart that our bonds -- the yield of it trades 

15 very comparable to a BBB, not very far away from a BB. 

16 So what is the market saying? The market 

17 is saying that they're giving us in essence an 

18 investment grade rating based on the yields that we 

19 trade at. Also, our ratios that are standard or used 

20 in an analysis of an investment-graded company, 

21 Moody's does a criteria of six. Four of our ratios 

22 meet that criteria. 

2 3 So by Moody's own criteria, we are in 

24 compliance with their investment grade status. The 

1 
I r 

1 
I 
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1 market views us as an investment grade, and many of 

2 our other ratings are investment grade or higher 

3 within the company. 

4 Finally, do we meet all of our capacity --  

5 do we have the capacity to meet all of our 

6 obligations? There's a chart on the final page of 

7 that presentation which shows the cash and 

8 availability of the company at the end of the first 

9 quarter of this year. At that time we had over $2 

10 billion available to us divided into two pieces; one 

11 is cash, and the other is availability --  committed 

12 availability under our various agreements with banks. 

13 We have used some of those funds for 

14 refinancings and acquisitions since then, but the 

15 message is that we have well-positioned capacity to 

16 meet each and every one of our obligations today and 

17 in the future. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

19 MR. KEMBEL: I was asked to answer a couple 

20 of questions. I'll just go through them in order. 

2 1 The first question came up about the level 

22 of charity care provided at dialysis facilities, and 

23 compared to some other health care providers, our 

24 numbers seemed to be a bit low. I think the main 

.- .,,~ .--- - . " ...,-*-- 
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1 reason for that is our dialysis population is in a 

2 sense a very unusual population in the health care 

3 market. Unlike most patients who come into a hospital 

4 --  into a hospital emergency room in a car accident or 

5 gunshot wound or chest pains, they may or may not have 

6 insurance, and if they don't have insurance, they're 

7 unlikely to get insurance while they're in the 

8 hospital. So a hospital is always going to have a 

9 certain population of uncompensated care. 

10 In a dialysis facility because of the fact 

11 that ESRD is a benefit covered under the Medicare 

12 program, all of our patients who have worked enough 

13 quarters will eventually qualify for Medicare. 

14 Patients will also qualify for Medicaid, and that's 

15 true even if they're undocumented in Illinois as I 

16 understand. And for patients who don't meet one of 

17 those two, the AKF is a charity that provides 

18 insurance premium support for our patients. So 

19 between those three programs, it would be expected in 

20 our business to be unusual not to eventually get 

21 insurance, and therefore our pool --  our uncompensated 

22 number would be lower than someone who has a different 

23 patient population. 

24 It's important to understand, I think, that 
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1 that kind of benefit, either Medicare and Medicaid or 

2 private third party insurance benefits not just us, 

3 but importantly, it benefits the patient because it's 

4 not just insurance for dialysis, it's insurance for 

5 everything that patient needs. And as I'm sure you 

6 know, our patient population has a number of other 

7 conditions so that insurance helps the hospitals in 

8 the area because when that patient gets hospitalized, 

9 that patient has coverage, and that reduces the 

10 hospital's indigent care pool itself. So the 

11 insurances that we can get for our patients which 

12 reduces our numbers has the benefit of helping us. It 

13 also helps the patient and helps all of the other 

14 providers for that patient. 

15 Another issue on indigent care is perhaps 

16 the assertion that we're not taking all of the 

17 patients that might not have insurance, and i n  

18 Illinois that is certainly not the case because we're 

19 required to take all patients and admit any patient 

20 regardless of their ability to pay. So I've asked 

21 around and we've not denied admission to a patient in 

22 any of our clinics because of their ability to pay. 

23 So that seems to be a non-issue. I think the numbers 

24 are really low because of the insurance issue. 

~ ~ , . -a>---- . - - , . .  - .LI-IS 
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The next issue came up about competition, 

2 and it seemed to be a more general question. So I'll 

3 focus on your CON process because as I understand it 

4 there are three factors, need, quality, and access. 

5 And if I look at this particular application, with the 

6 exception of one clinic, all of the clinics that we've 

7 been discussing here, the seven, are Fresenius 

8 clinics. We certainly satisfied ourselves through our 

9 own financial modeling that this clinic is supported 

10 by the patients we expect to come there and the 

11 financials we're going to receive. I'm also told that 

12 nowhere in our application is an expectation that 

13 other clinic that's a stand-alone non-Fresenius clinic 

14 is going to be impacted by us. We don't expect any 

15 patients to be transferred from that clinic to our 

16 clinic. So that's the need issue. 

I think the quality issue --  In our 

18 industry we have two main factors affecting our 

19 quality and insuring our quality. One is part 494, 

20 the old subpart U, is Medicare conditions for coverage 

21 that have been updated and are pretty clear about how 

22 we are expected to maintain our quality. If we don't, 

23 we could lose our certification. 

A novel thing happened in the ESRD bundle 
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1 for the first time when the government --  when 

J 
2 Medicare went to a capitated program, they not just 

3 capitated our pay, our compensation, under a bundled 
i 

4 rate, but they put onto that a requirement of quality, 

5 and if our quality doesn't meet certain standards, our 

6 reimbursement declines. So not only could we be 

7 de-certified, but if our quality declines, excuse me, 

8 our compensation can decline in the following year. 

9 In terms of our ability to - -  Another 

10 competition issue is the ability to control pricing. 

11 The pricing and quality are sort of the classic 

12 anti-trust issues. I'd love to ask the Medicaid 

13 program to raise their rates, but it's not going to 

14 happen, and the state sets the Medicaid rate. I'd 

15 love to be able to go down to Washington and ask for a 

16 higher Medicare price, but they set that price as 

17 well. I have absolutely no control -- ability to 

18 control pricing of my two very largest payers. So I 

19 don't think ability to control payment i.s something 

20 that --  that's a concern in this market. 

2 1 In terms of access, I covered access a 

22 little bit before. We take all the patients 

23 regardless of ability to pay. This clinic because 

24 it's being built is going to increase access. So 

-- k.4--*--- -- i 
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1 we're certainly not harming access, and our staffing 

2 privileges are open staffing. So physicians who meet 

3 our quality standards and fill out an application will 

4 get privileges. t i 

1 
5 And those were the questions I was asked to j 
6 address. 1 
7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We appreciate that. 

8 Thank you very much. 

9 DR. DODHIA: Thank you.. Mr. Chairman, 

10 members of the Board, I'm Dr. Dodhia, and I would be 
1 

11 the medical director of this unit if approved. I've 

12 been in Aurora for more than 18 years. Five years ago 

I 
13 I had a new partner, and as my work increased we now 

i 
14 have a third partner. And this just like any 

15 practice, we look at where our patients come from, and 

16 we have determined this is the place where our next 

I 
17 project should be. This will improve the access for 

1 
18 those patients that we see, and it will make it very 

19 easy for those patients instead of having :I 

20 transportation issues, even though a unit may be 

21 within 30 minutes, it's a very big deal for patients 

22 who do not have a lot of means of travel. So this 

23 would really help them quite a bit. 

2 4 This project is not in a well-off area, so 
1 -- - ,--.~----" *.-----.- ~. ~. I 
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1 I believe this project will be very helpful. to the 

: ! 

2 local community. 8 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Dr. Dodhia. 
i 

4 I believe Dr. Burden has a question. I I 
5 DR. BURDEN: Oh, several. Thank you. I 

6 submit that Ms. Ranalli has probably responded to my 

7 comments. So since we heard from a nurse who is in 

8 the back there who is involved in transplantation at 

9 Northwestern --  I was involved in it before he went to 

10 nursing school. So I don't know what's going on now, 

11 but he made a very strong case. The problem in our 

12 state is availability of kidneys. That's always been 

13 an issue with me. I guess my response to his 

14 appearance here on vacation, very interesting, I 

15 presume he did it out of generosity of his time, and 

16 why it is --  I've said this is not the forum probably 

17 for this discussion. We're going to have it 

18 eventually, why Wisconsin seems to have a much more 

19 successful percentage of patients on dialysis going to 

20 transplants. I've had all kinds of data submitted to 

21 me since I made this comment, and I'm not suggesting I 

22 have the answers to any of it. I'm just raising the 

23 issues. 

2 4 There's a man named David Moskowitz who 

-.- - . --.. 
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1 published the data in 2002 regarding what he felt was 

2 the old industry turning his back on what he proposed. 

3 I'm not going to go into this now. I have no idea of 

4 the authenticity of this, but he is a nephrologist, 

5 board certified, and according to what he's published 

6 and put in front of me, he had the American -- the 

7 U.S. Renal Data System, the American Diabetes, and the 

8 National Kidney Foundation, all haven't paid a lot of 

9 attention to him. He wants to have an opportunity to 

10 present his data at some point in time in front of us. 

11 I submit to you that's when we need some of the 

12 heavies showing up. 

13 I had several data. I wasn't prepared to 

14 answer everything. I'm not referring to the 

15 application now, but since it was raised, Fresenius --  

16 This is in Bloomberg 8511. I was in Germany recently, 

17 and I didn't visit Hamburg, but I was tempted to. I 

18 did place a call, and I didn't anticipate getting an 

19 answer really because I was just curious. One of the 

20 board members, W.P. Johnston, who is apparent1.y a 

21 board member in Hamburg, telephone number 

22 496-172-6090. That was my attempt to --  on my part to 

23 go to the top. You guys have brought these people 

24 here. 
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1. Fresenius Medical agrees to buy Liberty 

2 Dialysis for $1.7 billion. This is just some data I 

3 have. This shows me what a huge company --  I'm aware 

4 of where we are. And we talked to you about an 

5 individual unit. Fresenius Medical Care, one of two 

6 acquisitions announced today, to expand its U.S. 

7 Clinical Network. Liberty Dialysis, Mercer Island, 

8 260 clinics. Annual revenue of about one billion. I 

9 won't go into it all. They bought them for $1.7 

10 billion, most of which is cash. Deal is expected to 

11 close. They also have an opportunity or have an 

12 opportunity to buy Arneri-can Access Care Holding, which 

13 I'm familiar with. That is an outpatient service that 

14 provides procedures such as fistulas and grafts, which 

15 is an augment to what occurs with the dialysis itself. 

16 I guess I am aware that the companies 

17 similar to American Access are available for 

18 acquisition, and part of the reason they're looking as 

19 targets from Fresenius and probably other big 

20 companies is bundled pricing. I am sort of surprised 

21 to see bundled pricing finally arriving under Medicare 

22 -- Medicare and Fresenius. It arrived for me as a 

23 surgeon 51 years ago. This is part of the reasons I 

24 had some trouble looking at a company that,makes so 

. .  ~ - - -,.------- ~+ z .... -- A 

I 
1 
I 
1 
1 

i 
i 
1 
1 

I 

1 



i 

Pagc 196 
1 much money, and we are establishing clinics all over 

2 the place. I'm told it's because of the increased 

3 obesity, the increase in percentage of 

4 African-Americans and Lati.nos in our communj.ties . I 

5 have a little trouble taking that at face value. I 
1 

6 mean I'm hearing it from your side. I've yet to find 

7 data that denies or supports that. 
I 

8 All I can tell you is I've been away from 1 
1 

9 the medical scene for ten years, I've worked a lot 1 
! 

10 with the independent nephrologists who were at that i 
i 

11 time beginning to sell out their units. I'll mention 
1 

12 one, Neomedica, to larger things. I dealt with it. I 1 
13 didn't realize this was becoming such a huge business 1 
14 until I realized despite what you said, that there 

15 real-ly is no patient who doesn't get reimbursed. I 
I 

16 mean the government started this program in '96. I 

17 think, whatever it was, and there isn't any such thing 1 
! 

18 as charity care, can't be, because eventually the I 
i 
i 

19 government is going to pick up the tab. 

2 0 So I feel strongly about having things 

21 clearly understood when we as a Board member -- and I 1 7 

22 want our Board members to all have access to some of 1 
23 the information that I briefly present now. This is ! 

i 
1 24 not the forum. We want to have a -- Other than when 1 
I 
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1 someone shows up and says I'm a transplant person, I 

2 know what the facts are, et cetera, et cetera if you 

3 claim --  I'm not denying he's right or wrong. He just 

4 made a statement, and I appreciated his statement, but 

5 we are in our state of having access to kidneys, and 

6 all dialysis units, according to him, are doing their 

7 homework and providing patients with information about 

8 dialysis. Now, I'm responding to what was said. I'm 

9 not responding to the applicant. 

10 Now, I guess I wanted to get that offmy 

11 respective chest. As I read this, Ms. Ranalli said, 

12 okay, Burden, you have some questions. I'm bringing 

13 some guys in, kind of going to fire away. I'm not 

14 prepared totally, but I do have Fresenius Medical. AG 

15 and company and double bond ratings, some of the stuff 

16 you threw at us, I already have, nothing new here, 

17 except that I think --  I thi.nk I would recommend to my 

18 investment club that we look carefully at this. 

19 (LAUGHTER) 

2 0 DR. BURDEN: First half adjusted net income 

21 --  net income rose 20 percent. Fresenius Medical 

22 repeated a forecast issued May 4th, that income 1.07 

23 billion, and 1.09 billion. 

24 MR. EAKER: Repeat that statement, Dr. 
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1 Burden. 

2 DR. BURDEN: A net income of 1.7 with 

3 revenue of more than 13 billion this year. I don't 

4 see that figure in here. That --  That's big money. 

5 We're dealing with a large company here, and I'm not 

6 prepared to go up against that. I'm just prepared to 

7 have our Board know what we're talking about here. We 

8 aren't talking about a guy who's in Moline, Illinois, 

9 who wants to open a renal dialysis unit. That's a 

10 different ball game. You guys bring a lot of stuff to 

11 the table. 

12 I appreciate that. I want -- I'm trying to 

respond to what I just heard. 

MR. FAWCETT: Thank you for considering an 

investment in us. Certainly --  

DR. BURDEN: You're recommending it --  

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thanks. Are there 

other questions from board members? 

MS. RANALLI: There was one question of Ms. 

Olson's that I have information to provide if that's 

21 acceptable. 
I 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Sure. 

23 MS. RANALLI: There was a question about 

24 the Medlcald numbers, and it was an important 

-A- - . A-. - 
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1 question, and we didn't have a specific answer, but 

2 now we do because we went back and looked at the data, 

3 the Medicaid numbers had increased by 200 over the 

4 past three years, but there was a question about how 

5 many clinics had been approved in that timeframe, and 

6 given what's been going on with the economy, one knows 

7 there is a higher (inaudible) in Medicaid, and thank 

8 God, that benefit is available to people. There were 

9 12 clinics approved in the last three years since 

10 2009. Of those 12 clinics that have been approved, 

11 only two are currently operating, and they're 

12 relatively new in their operations, and that's because 

13 it does take us some time after approval to build the 

14 clinic, then it has to go through the certification 

15 process. So that information, I think, is somewhat 

16 helpful. It does show that while 12 clinics have been 

17 approved, it's not as though all 12 are operating, and 

18 that's when you would begin to increase --  see the 

19 increase in the ~edicaid number. 

2 0 Dr. Dodhia did point out the population to 

21 be served by East Aurora is a patient population in 

22 his practice. We asked him to look at generally his 

23 practice Medicaid numbers, and the current Aurora 

24 facility where Dr. Dodhia admits patients is 75 

-----~ --- - 
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1 percent Medicaid, ten --  or excuse me --  75 percent 

2 Medicare, ten percent Medicaid, and commercial is 15. 

3 That's actually a relatively high Medicaid level for 

4 one of our clinics because of the community that's 

5 served, and it's anticipated based upon the 71 

6 pre-ESRD patients he has identified as patients that 

7 would go to this clinic, that the Medicaid level might 

8 be more in the range of 15 percent. Now, that depends 

9 because, you know, the payer mix where patients going 

10 there may be slightly different, but that's based upon 

11 what he's certifying to referral at this point in 

12 time. And the overall clinics in the area, if you 

13 take out the two that aren't operating, are really 

14 operating at very close to your target level or above. 

15 So there is a number of patients in Dr. 

16 Dodhia's practice that are currently experiencing 

17 renal failure who will require dialysis in the next 

18 two years, and they're going to go to area clinics. 

19 Most of those clinics are almost full, and it will be 

20 difficult for them to have appropriate access. 

21 They'll be faced with difficulties in shifts. They 

22 may not have available shifts, and/or they may have to 

23 dialyze on a fourth shift, and those facilities are as 

24 pointed out by, I think, by opposition, and, clearly, 

. ,  . 
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1 the State Agency Report shows are mainly our 

2 facilities that would be taking them on and dialyzing 

3 them for the fourth shift. 

4 So this just seems to make to make the most 

5 sense for access in the inner city of Aurora, and 

6 certainly Dr. Dodhia, who deals with these patients on 

7 a regular basis, in working with him on this, he's 

8 very compassionate. 

9 I'm sure if you have any other questions, I 

10 think Dr. Dodhia would be a great person to answer 

11 them. 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

13 Seeing no other questions, may I have a 

14 motion to approve Project 10-086 for the establishment 

15 of a 12-station ESRD facility at a cost of $4,368,990. 

16 MR. HILGENBRINK: So moved. 

17 DR. BURDEN: Seconded. 

18 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Mr. Hilgenbrink, 

19 and seconded by Dr. Burden. 

2 0 Dr. Burden. 

21 DR. BURDEN: I'm going to say no unless I'm 

22 told that the excess of 35 stations in has VIII 

23 service area has been reduced. I haven't seen the 

24 evidence of such. Am I wrong? 
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1 MR. CONSTANTINO: No, that's correct. 

2 DR. BURDEN: Okay. I say no. 

3 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

4 MR. EAKER: Well, based on the reasons as 

5 stated in the State Agency Report, I also am going to 

6 volre no. 

7 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

8 MR. GREIMAN: NO. 

9 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes is absent. 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. Let the record 

11 show Mr. Hayes left after lunch. 

12 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

13 MR. HILGENBRINK: I continue to support the 

14 request because of the access issues, and I vote yes. 

15 MR. KOATE: Ms. Olson. 

16 MS. OLSON: For the reasons reported in the 

17 State Agency, I say no. 

18 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

19 MR. PENN: For the reasons in the Agency 

20 Report, I also say no. 

21 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

22 MR. SEWELL: I vote no due to excess 

23 capacity. 

24 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: No, due to excess 

2 capacity. 

3 MR. ROATE: That's seven votes in the 

4 negative and one vote in the positive and one absent. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion is denied. 

6 MR. URSO: You'll receive an Intent to 

7 Deny. You'll have an opportunity to come back before 

8 the Board. 

9 MS. RANALLI: I think we have -- We did 

10 receive an Intent to Deny. 

11 MR. URSO: This was an Intent to Deny. So 

12 this is the final denial. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: All right. Good luck. 

14 MS. RANALLI: We're up next, but I don't 

15 know if there's public comment or not. 

CHAIRMAN GA1,ASSXE: We're now moving to 16 

17 11-016 McHenry County. 

18 MS. RANALLI : Oh, okay. 

19 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Oh, I'm sorry. Yeah. 

20 Yeah. Yeah. Okay. We're -- They have another one 

21 further on down the agenda, No. 5, which is 11-022 

22 Fresenius Lockport. Now are we together? Is there 

23 any pub1.i~ comments on this item, and the answer is 

24 yes. Sam Vincent. If we can just make room. 
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1 Good afternoon, Mr. Vincent. 

2 MR. VINCENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, 

3 members of the Board. I'll try to be very quick 

4 because I understand what you went through this 

5 morning. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 6 

7 MR. VINCENT: The Fresenius application 

8 proposes 12 dialysis stations for Lockport in Planning 

9 Area 9. The inventory for Planning Area 9 already 

'10 demonstrates excess capacity currently. We believe -- 

11 and I should say who I represent. I'm with Ungaretti 

12 & Harris in Chicago, and I represent U.S. Renal 

13 Corporation. 

14 We believe that the need formula 

15 understates the actual demand for dialysis treatment 

16 in Planning Area 9 quite substantially. The 

17 prevalence of chronic kidney disease and end stage 

18 renal disease is significantly higher in Hispanic and 

19 African-American populations by factors ranging from 

20 150 to 360 percent. 

2 1 This planning area has enjoyed a remarkable 
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2 2  growth in both African-American and Hispanic 

23 populations: The Hispanic population has more than 

24 doubled since the last census, and the 
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1 African-American population has increased by more than 

2 ten percent since the last census. 

3 The way in which you fashion your rule does 

4 not take account of shifting ethnic mixes. And when 

5 you have a situation where the prevalence is much 

6 greater with particular ethnic groups, and those 

7 ethnic groups grow, then you have a problem with the 

8 need formula and the prediction. 

9 So we don't question the fact that there is 

10 need, substantial need in Planning Area 9, but U.S. 

11 Renal has filed an application contemporaneously for a 

12 permit in Planning Area 9, and it's been del-ayed by 

13 staff and will not be heard today. 

14 As a consequence, we would submit to you, 

15 sir, that the impact is that if the Fresenius 

16 application were to be approved today, then the excess 

17 capacity will appear even greater when the U.S. Renal 

18 application is considered, and as a consequence we 

19 believe that Fresenius application ought to be delayed 

20 or at least that the U.S. Renal application should be 

21 considered against the same inventory numbers as the 

22 Fresenius application so that we have fundamental 

23 fairness in this matter. 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much for 
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1 your comments. No other public comments on this item? 

2 Hearing none? We're going to question. He needs 

3 clarification for staff --  staff question. 

4 MR. SEWELL: The situation presented in 

5 that testimony --  Well, just comment on that, would 

6 you? 

7 MR. CONSTANTINO: They had failed to 

8 identify a co-applicant, and we identified it during 

9 the review period, and since they failed to identify a 

10 co-applicant, they'had to modify the project. It was 

11 a Type A modification, and therefore we have 60 days 

12 --  additional days to review the application, 

13 therefore, it was pushed to the October 12-13 Board 

14 meeting. 

15 MR. SEWELL: I guess I'm asking sort of a 

16 larger question though about, you know, you have two 

17 applications, and what do you do in relation to 

18 inventory? Is it the first one in that's declared 

19 complete? 

2 0 MR. CONSTANTINO: Yeah, that's how they 

21 appear on the agenda. 

22 MR. SEWELL: That's what I wanted. 

23 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Like a bid process. 

24 MR. SEWELL: Yeah. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 

2 We are on -- Item 1 is FMC Lockport. Staff report. 

3 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

4 The applicant is Fresenius Medical Holdings, Inc., and 

5 Fresenius Medical Care Lockport is proposing an 

6 establishment of a 12-station ESRD, an 8,000 gross 

7 square feet of space. The total cost of the project 

8 is approximately $3.3 million. 

9 The applicants are before you today because 

10 they proposed to establish a hgalth care facility. 

11 There is no public hearing requested, and there was no 

12 support letters or opposition letters regarding this 

13 project. 

14 This project was originally approved as 

15 project 09-037 in December of 2009. The cost of that 

16 project was approximately $2.9 million. That project 

17 was abandoned in May of 2011 due to issues with the 

18 developer. 

19 The State Agency notes the following: 

20 There is an excess in this planning area, Planning 

21 Area 9 of 55 stations. There are ten facilities 

22 within 30 minutes operating at an average occupancy 

23 rate of 61 percent. Of these ten facilities, two are 

24 under -- still under construction. Two are operating 
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1 above the target occupancy of 80 percent. The 

3 utilization of 73 percent, which is below the target 

4 occupancy of 80 percent. 

Finally, the applicants exceed the size 

6 standards of 520 gross square foot by 147 gross square 

7 foot per station. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Mike. I 

10 think you folks have all been introduced and sworn in. 

MS. RANALLI: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 

13 Would you like to address the Board? 

MS. RANALLI: We'll be happy to answer any 

15 of the Board's questions. This project was previously 

16 approved. We lost the site because the developer 

17 failed to build the building, and therefore we just 

18 relocated across the street. It has no opposition. 

19 We'd be happy to answer any questions you have. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Any questions from the 

21 Board? 

DR. BURDEN: Did I understand you to say, 

23 excuse me, Mr. Chairman, that this application was 

24 previously approved? 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Correct. 

MS. RANALLI: Correct. The Lockport 2 

3 application was heard previously, the same number of 

4 stations, and the only issue is the site is different 

5 because the developer did not build the building, and 

6 your rules do require if a site changes, you have to 

7 come back and you have to surrender the permit and 

8 come back. 

9 DR. BURDEN: It was approved in '09, 

10 December, was there -- and has there been a 

11 significant change in the calculated excess of 

12 stations in has '09? 

13 MS. RANALLI: ~f I am recalling correctly, 

14 well, we --  Mike's better. Thank you. 

15 MR. CONSTANTINO: Doctor, our inventory has 

16 not been adjusted. Hopefully, in October we will have 

17 a new inventory, which will give you new population 

18 numbers and new station-need calculations. You're 

19 looking at the same station-need calculations that 

20 were presented at that time. However, I want to point 

21 --  make sure it's understood. However, there was a 

22 need for stations at that time. Off the top of my 

23 head, I don't know how many stations were needed 

24 because additional facilities have been approved since 

- .--. 
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1 that Lockport facility was approved in 2009, that need 

2 has been decreased, and now we have an excess there in 

3 that planning area. 

4 DR. BURDEN: So would I understand Ms. 

5 Ranalli's statements that those approved ESRD units 

6 have not been completely operational; they're 

7 approved, but are they operational from 2009 to 2011? 

8 MS. RANALLI: Well, they're not both ours. 

9 DR. BURDEN: Well --  

10 MS. RANALLI: One is Davita Clinic. One is 

11 Fresenius. They are not operating. One is in Palos 

12 Park, and one is in Joliet, and our clinic in Joliet 

13 that was approved has a totally different physician 

14 practice that supports it and a completely different 

15 patient population than the practice with certified 

16 referral to the Lockport Clinic that was approved and 

17 is certifying patient referrals now. 

18 DR. BURDEN: I think my question was 

19 answered by Michael, that basically we approved this 

20 in '09 without the need --  without at that time having 

21 55 stations in excess. That's what my question was, 

22 and you supported it? 

2 3 MR. CONSTANTINO: That's correct. Yes. 

24 DR. BURDEN: Thank you. 
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CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Any other questions on 

2 this i.tem? Hearing none, may I have a motion to 

3 approve Project 11-022 for the establishment of a 

4 12-station ESRD facilityat a cost of $3,268,325? 

DR. BURDEN: So move. 

MR. PENN: Second. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moved and seconded. 

MR. ROATE: Motion made by Dr. Burden, 

9 seconded by Mr. Penn. 

Dr. Burden. 

DR. BURDEN: I'm going to say no based on 

12 the conclusions that I just alluded to; namely, we now 

13 have in excess of 55 stations in the area. When we 

14 need more, but I think the --  I say no. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

MR. EAKER: For the same reasons, no. 

MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

JUSTICE GREIMAN: I'll say for the same 

19 reasons, no. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Hayes is absent. Mr. 

21 Hilgenbrink? 

MR. HILGENBRINK: For the same reasons of 

23 excess capacity, no. 

MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 
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1 MS. OLSON: No, for the same reasons. i 

2 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn? I 
3 MR. PENN: No, for the same reasons. 

4 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

5 MR. SEWELL: NO. 

6 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: No. 

8 MR. ROATE: That's eight votes in the 

9 negative. 

10 MR. URSO: Now you'll receive an Intent to 

11 Deny. You'll have an opportunity to come back before 

12 the Board and submit additional information. 

13. MS. RANALLI: Thank you. We will do that. 

14 Thank you. 

15 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Good luck. 

16 Moving forward to item No. 11-016, 

17 A R A - M C H ~ ~ ~ ~  County. IS there any public comments for 

18 this item for McHenry County? 

19 We have two. Mr. Kent Swanson. 

2 0 MR. SWANSON: Hi. 

21 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you would just 

22 introduce yourself and then spell your name for our 

23 reporter, please. 

24 MR. SWANSON: Ken Swanson is my name. 

a"-"--, , , , .., ..-. ~ .*--- 
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1 K-e-n S-w-a-n-s-o-n. Good afternoon. My name is Ken 

2 Swanson. I'm here to encourage you to approve ARA 

3 plans for - -  to develop a dialysis center in McHenry. 

4 I'm 77 years old. I am a retired teacher. I live in 

5 north central McHenry County and have been receiving 

6 dialysis treatments at ARA's Crystal Lake facilities 

7 for four years. 

Before receiving dialysis at ARA Center, I 

10 I am too old for transplant list. As a result I can 

11 tell you where I am going to be every Monday, 

12 Wednesday and Friday between 9:15 in the morning and 

13 2:15 in the afternoon. It's about a 25-minute drive 

16 home, and I'm pretty tired during that drive home. 

I spend 12 hours every week with the ARA 

18 staff, four hours three times a week, and for the 

19 attention that I get there, they're nothing short of 

20 outstanding. 

Being there 12 hours a week, you get to 

22 know the staff personally, and more importantly, at 

23 ARA, we see they hire a staff that wants to know 

24 patients as individuals. 
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1 Dialysis isn't fun and it's nothing that 

2 you can choose to do. It's what someone like me has 

I 
3 to do. The nurturing culture of ARA Crystal Lake is 

4 different than at other facilities I used. That's why 

5 I've elected to spend an extra hour and a half driving 

6 every week. 

7 Your approval of the project will bring the 

8 level of care that I am getting now at Crystal Lake 15 

9 minutes closer to my house. That's an hour and a half 

10 of driving that you will be saving me. That may not 

11 sound like much to you, but it will make a world of 

12 difference to me and to others in my position. 

13 Please understand that all dialysis 

14 facilities are not the same and approve ARA's plan to 

15 expand their presence. 

16 Thank you. I 
17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, Mr. Swanson. 

i 

18 MS. DZIEKANSKI: I'm Janina, J-a-n-i-n-a. 

19 Last name D-z-i-e-k-a-n-s-k-i. I've been receiving 

20 dialysis at ARA in Crystal Lake since 2009. I live in 

i 
21 Lake in the Hills, and I wouldn't transfer to the 

22 proposed facility because Crystal Lake is closer to 

23 me, but I think it's important that you understand the 

24 perspective of my view, of a patient that's -- not all 

1 

- 
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1 dialysis are the same. I have a rather unique 

2 perspective of this. I started dialysis in another 

3 facility in 1996 and received a kidney transplant in 

4 that year. Unfortunately in 2007, transplanted kidney 

5 failed, and I had to go on dialysis again. 

6 Crystal Lake is like ten minutes away from 

7 me, and I was put on a waiting list for another donor 

8 kidney, and hopefully won't wait much longer, but my 

9 two dialysis experience, I have no question that my 

10 clinic care in both facilities was superb, but the 

11 difference is that you are treated different by the 

12 staff, they treat you like a human being, not a 

13 number. Just going in and out. They take time with 

14 you. They ask you how you doing. They get you what 

15 you need. We get to have a little snack where other 

16 places they won't allow you. They seem to be more 

17 interested in me as a patient, and since I spend more 

18 time in dialysis next to the home, I guess, I -- 

19 hopefully this won't be much more longer for my 

20 kidney, but I urge you to allow ARA to expand their 

21 ability to treat more patients and in the environment 

22 that I find so comforting. 

23 Thank you. 

2 4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 
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1 That closes the public comments. If there are any 

2 representatives from ARA-McHenry County, if you would 

3 please come up and introduce yourselves and be sworn 

4 in. 

5 Good afternoon. 
! i 
i 

6 i MR. KAMAL: Good afternoon, Chairman and i 

i 
7 Members of the Board. i ! 

3 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you wou1.d introduce i 1 
9 yourselves. ! 

I 
1 

10 MR. KAMAL: My name is Syed, S-y-e-d, i 
11 Kamal, K-a-m-a-1. I'm president -- I'm sorry. 4 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: If you'd introduce 

13 yourselves first . 

14 MR. AXEL: Jack Axel, Axel & Associates, 

15 A-x-e-1. 

16 
I DR. ZAHID: Dr. Zahid, Medical Director. 1 
i 

17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Spell that for the ! 

: 
18 reporter. 

i 
19 DR. ZAHID: Z like zebra --  a-h-i-d. I 

4 
4 

20 
> 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. ; 

2 1 (OATH GIVEN) j 
1 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Staff 

23 report. 
I 

2 4 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

. . 
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1 The applicants are proposing to establish a 12-station 

I 
2 ESRD facility in McHenry, Illinois, in approximately i 

3 5,600 gross square feet of space at an approximate 

4 cost of $2.2 million. i 
j 

5 The applicants are before you today because 1 

j 
6 the project proposes to establish a health care I 1 

I 
7 facility. No public hearing was requested. And the ! 

i 
I 

8 State Agency received one letter of support and one 

9 letter of opposition. 

10 State Agency notes the following: The 

11 applicants were unable to provide the necessary 

12 referral information as required by State Board rule. 

13 There is in excess of 35 ESRD stations in this 

14 planning area. The existing facilities within 30 

15 minutes are operating below the State Board's target 

16 occupancy of 80 percent. Three of the four facilities 
I 
2 

17 within 30 minutes are below the target occupancy. : 

18 Thank you, Mr. Chairman -- Oh, excuse me. 
1 
I 

19 In supplemental information, the applicants did J 
20 provide the information that stated they do have 64 1 
21 patients they now will be referring to this proposed 

I 1 
i 

22 new facility instead of 55. 1 
23 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: What does that mean? 

1 
I 

24 MR. CONSTANTINO: That would mean they 
I 

, .- --~.--- ---.--.~ 
1 
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1 would be able to bring their utilization up if you --  

2 move closer towards the 80 percent target occupancy if 

3 the Board should approve this project. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: One of the four? 

5 MR. CONSTANTINO: No. It's the proposed 

6 facility. It's the proposed referrals to this 

7 proposed facility have gone from 55 to 64 patients. 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Got it. I 

9 misunderstood. Thank you, Michael. We are lacking a 

10 referral information. So I just wanted a comment for 

11 you. Would you be interested in deferring this? 

12 MR. AXEL: No. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: All right. That's your 

14 decision if you prefer not to defer it. 

15 MR. AXEL: I would be happy to address that 

16 issue if you like. 

17 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Well, yeah. I mean the 

18 Boards's information is not completed. So I'd rather, 

19 Mike, you comment on that. 

2 0 MR. CONSTANTINO: Okay. In this instance 

21 we deemed this application complete on March 28, 2011, 

22 and by Board --  by Board rule, this applicant needed 

23 to have additional reconsideration within six months. 

24 If we delay this beyond this Board meeting, that would 

---,- ---, .s . . 
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1 go to October, that would be beyond the six months 

2 timeframe. So we brought it to your -- to the Board 

3 today to ask for guidance in how the Board wants us to 

4 proceed. That's why it's on the agenda today. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Understood. If you 

6 would, please. 

7 MR. KAMAL: Mr. Chairman and the members of 

8 the Board, my name is Syed Kamal. I'm the President 

9 and the co-founder for ARA. I've had the privilege of 

10 working with ARA Dialysis for the last 32 years. ARA 

11 is not one of the bigger players. We have only two 

12 facilities in Illinois. ARA Dialysis started in 

13 Butler, Pennsylvania, in year 2000. ARA now has 

14 several dozen facilities in different states. This is 

15 our first time since 2004 that we are proposing a new 

16 facility in the State of Illinois. 

17 ARA is different and unique than the big 

18 players. We have state-of-the-art clinics that allow 

19 for amenities and comforts for the patients. We are 

20 very patient-centered and very employee and physician 

21 friendly. 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: I'm sorry to interrupt 

23 you. It's kind of a unique situation. You're making 

24 your case for your need, which we respect, but the 

-.-_~ ..-,. **- P ----~- ,. . . ", *.- ,. 
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1 Board's application and requirements have not yet been 

2 met. So I think what you need to address to us is why 

3 they haven't been met. If not, you have chosen not to 

4 defer, but I would then be recommending to this Board 

5 that we defer because our application material isn't 

6 complete. 

7 MR. AXEL: Chairman Galassie, I'll be happy 

8 to address that issue. Planned on doing that later in 

9 our presentation. We'll just flip the presentation 

10 around if that's all right. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We appreciate that. 

12 MR. AXEL: One quick comment on Mike's 

13 mentioning of 64 patients. When he said that that 

14 would bring the project closer to the 80 percent 

15 target, that brings the -- that sends the project over 

16 the 80 percent target. 

17 To the referral letter issue, that Mr 

18 Constantino raised, there's two purposes to the 

19 letter. The first is to show that the patients come 

20 primarily from the service area. 

2 1 Attachments to the July 26th letter showed 

22 the patient origin by dialysis center and by zip code 

23 for 2008, 9, 10, and the first quarter of 2011, andin 

24 the executj.ve center -- in the executive summary of 

- . ~. i 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 

1 

I 

i 
1 

I 
1 
I 
i 
! 
i 

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



0 ~ ~ ~ @ & @ - ~ 1 l 6 / 2 0 1 1  

Page 221 
1 your SAR, it's noted that 74.5 percent of the pre-ESRD 

s 

2 patients identified by the three physician letters 

3 come from within the planning area. That clearly 

4 documents that the purpose of the project is to serve 

5 residents of the planning area. 

6 Second purpose of the letter is to document 

7 that the proposed number of referrals are reasonable. 

8 Stated another way, you need --  the physicians need to 

9 show that the number of patients that they are 

10 proposing to send are consistent or below the number 

11 that they are annually referring to dialysis now, and 

12 that has been done. 

13 Dr. Zahid, who will be speaking shortly, 

14 and his group have 152 patients on dialysis as of June 

15 30th, 2011. They are referring 78 to 80 patients a 

16 year. We provided letters from the three physicians 

17 identifying the 64 pre-ESRD patients, both by initial 

18 and by zip code. We provided by initial as most 

19 people do so that we don't identify the patients in a 

20 public setting. 

21 As Mr. Karnal mentioned, ARA is a small 

22 dialysis provider in Illinois, and as such they don't 

23 have a large corporate staff here to come in -- to go 

24 into physician's offices and identify patients, and 

A. * , " ---,-- ~-..,.--" -.----A 
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1 really the issue is the zip code of the patients. 

2 Dr. Zahid's practice provides approximately 

3 67.1 percent of the patients going in to ARA's two 

4 dialysis facilities now. For conservative purposes, 

5 we elected to provide only pre-ESRD or referral 

6 information from Dr. Zahid's practice. We went in 

7 there. We provided data for 2011 with the assistance 

8 of his staff. It was about a 25-hour process to get 

9 that 2011 data. It did show clearly that the vast 

10 majority of their patients come from the planning 

11 area. So we have confirmed that the ESRD patients 

12 identified by the physicians are coming from the 

13 planning area. 

14 The letters themselves, and it's the second 

15 to last paragraph in the July 12th letters that are 

16 attached to the July 18th submission document that the 

17 patients that are identified by the physicians have 

18 not been used to support any of the other projects 

19 that have come before this Board by this applicant or 

20 by anybody else. 

21 And last, we've identified the percentage 

22 of patients not expected to continue dialysis, and 

23 that was identified in the third paragraph of the July 

24 18th letter. 

AL-A*...-e"- --.-"-. . - 1  
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1 So i.n summary, I think that we have 

2 provided the vast majority of the information that can 

3 be provided that is requested, and we have certainly 

4 showed, I believe, to the board's satisfaction that 

5 patients are coming from the planning area. Those are 

6 the patients that will be going to this dialysis 

7 facility, and that Dr. Zalid's practice has 

8 historically provided a sufficient number of patients 

9 to dialysis facilities, and, by the way, 70 percent of 

10 the patients out of Dr. Zalid's practice go to the two 

11 ARAs facility. So their ability to provide those 

12 patients is not an issue. 

13 I think we've covered all the --  all the 

14 issues here, either to the letter or, certainly if not 

15 to the letter, to the spirit of the requirement. 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Wel.1, I think therein 

17 lies the issue. Your interpretation of meeting it and 

18 our interpretation of meeting it, I think, differ, and 

19 I would want Mike again to comment. Apologize if it's 

20 redundant, but their interpretation of submitting the 

21 data as I'm understanding it is different than what we 

22 require, and while I think there's a good faith effort 

23 and I believe that there is, it feels to me as though 

24 there's a slippery slope to our process by accepting 

1 
1 
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1 their data or interpret it the way they believe it 

2 represents the data rather than what we require. 

3 If I'm wrong, say so. It will be to their 

4 advantage, but if not, I think this again needs to be 

5 deferred. 

6 MR. CONSTANTINO: You're correct. 

7 MR. URSO: Mike, why don't you summarize 

8 what the rule requires and what we received? 

9 MR. CONSTANTINO: Okay. We asked for three 

10 years historical referral data by physician, by zip 

11 code, and to what facilities in the service area. We 

12 haven't received that. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Which is what we would 

14 ask of any other applicant? 

15 MR. CONSTANTINO: Yes, we would ask that of 

16 Fresenius. We would ask that of Davita. We would ask 

17 that of any applicant that came before us. 

18 Now, these referral letters have --  this is 

19 a new thing for the dialysis facilities. We never 

20 asked this before our rules changed. It was --  It was 

21 always based --  The demand for these facilities were 

22 based upon the station need, not through referral 

23 process whereas we're doing now. If the Board wants 

24 to take a --  wants us to take a look at that rule in 

----~-=--.-.- --.. -. & 
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1 the future, we'd be happy to do it, but currently 

2 these are the rules, and these are the rules we need 

3 to follow as Board staff. 

4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Understood, Mike. 

5 MR. CONSTANTINO: I have no question they 

6 had made a very good faith effort to get the 

7 information. It is time-intensive, I realize that. 

8 Both Davita and Fresenius have told me the same thing. 

9 MR. AXEL: That information is provided for 

10 2011, Chairman Galassie, in the July 26 letter. 

11 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yeah, I appreciate 

12 that. I think we all understand where we are. It's 

13 one year. We require three. I ask for a motion to 

14 defer this project. 

15  DR. BURDEN: I have a question. 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Please do. 

17 DR. BURDEN: If indeed we vote to defer 

18 this --  I'm trying to understand what you said about 

19 some timeframe --  that they had to appear here before 

20 October. I didn't quite grasp the reason why they're 

21 appearing today as opposed to time they really are 

22 prepared to complete. 

23 MR. CONSTANTINO: Your rules state the 

24 applicant needs to have initial consideration within 

-.~----* ~ 3 . ~  --2---.. - - -  . 
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1 six months of the application being deemed complete. 

2 This application was deemed complete March 28th. So 

3 therefore, it had to be heard at this meeting, or it 

4 would have went beyond the six months timeframe and 

5 been pushed back to October or November or December. 

6 DR. BURDEN: How can the State Agency deem 

7 it complete if they didn't have the prerequisite three 

8 years of referral letters that you just referred to as 

9 being new? 

10 MR. CONSTANTINO: When we deem an 

11 application complete, we deem it substantially 

12 complete. Okay. If they have addressed criteria that 

13 you've identified as what you want us to look at, and 

14 if they have addressed it, we accept that at the time 

15 of completeness. We have ten days to determine 

16 completeness. Subsequentl.~, during the review period, 

17 when we have -- we take a closer look at the 

18 information and submitted, we ask for -- in this case 

19 we ask for additional information. 

20 DR. BURDEN: I'm still confused. Do they 

21 have to wait two years? 

22 MR. CONSTANTINO: Oh, no. 

2 3 DR. BURDEN: This idea of referral letters 

24 is something new to me too. Three years of referral. 
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1 What's this all about? How do they meet that request? 

MR. CONSTANTINO: They have to provide us 

3 with that information. They have to provide us with 

4 three years of historical information by physician, by 

5 zip code, and to what facilities they referred 

6 patients to. 

DR. BURDEN: That doesn't seem like an 

8 insurmountable amount of material, Mr. Axel. 

MR. AXEL: Sometimes it is, sometimes it 

10 isn't. Quite frankly, it depends on the physicians' 

11 records. Dr. Zalid's practice is just going onto an 

12 electronic medical records system now. There are 

13 literally thousands of patients' files that need to be 

14 reviewed to identify most importantly the zip code of 

15 the patient. That's the tough one. 

MS. OLSON: So if we make a motion and vote 

17 to defer, can they come back in October with this 

18 information, and we can look at it again, or do they 

19 have to start all over again? 

MR. CONSTANTINO: No. No. No. They would 

21 be able to come back if they submit the additional 

22 information that our Board rules require. It may not 

23 be October, but they would have another opportunity to 
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1 MS. OLSON: Thank you. 

2 MR. URSO: It's actually the Board deferral 

3 that allows them to extend the time so therefore they 

4 can come back for consideration. 

5 MS. OLSON: All right. 

6 DR. BURDEN: Is Mr. Axel willing to give 

7 you a hand on this assignment, or does he charge you 

8 for that service? 

9 MR. AXEL: We could use some help if you've 

10 got some time. 

11 DR. BURDEN: I just sense he's not dying to 

12 get involved and let you do the work. That's what I 

13 read here. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: There's been a motion 

15 on the floor. There's been no acceptance or second. 

16 So the Board has two options. The motion is to defer, 

17 and if not, then there can be a motion to approve. 

18 MS. OLSON: I make a motion to defer. 

19 MR. SEWELL: Second. 

MR. ROATE: There's been a motion made by 2 0 

21 Ms. Olson, seconded by Mr. Sewell. 

22 Dr. Burden. 

23 DR. BURDEN: I vote we should defer, yes. 

24 MR. ROATE: Defer. Mr. Eaker. 
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MR. EAKER: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

MS. OLSON: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn? 

MR. PENN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell? 

MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: That's eight votes in the 

15 positive for deferral. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. 

MR. KAMAL: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Good luck. 

Moving to 11-019, any public comments? 

21 from Advocate Christ Medical to please come up and 

22 introduce yourselves and be sworn in. 

MR. URSO: I want to apologize to our court 

24 reporter. You don't have to put this on the record. 
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1 (OFF-THE-RECORD DISCUSSION) 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: very good. ~f you 

3 folks could introduce yourselves, and subsequent to 

4 that, you will be sworn in. 

5 MS. TALLARICO: Good afternoon, Chairman 

6 Galassie and the Board members. I am Dominica 

7 Tallarico. I'm the Chief Operating Officer at 

8 Advocate Christ Medical Center and Hope Children's 

9 Hospital. 

10 To the right of ie is Mr. Joe Ourth, who is 

11 our legal counsel, and to the left of me I have Dr. 

12 Chintan Mistry. He's Chairman of our Emergency 

13 Medicine Department, and Mr. Jeff So, who is our 

14 Director of Planning and Business Development, and our 

15 Vice-president For Finance Mr. Robert Pekofske. 

16 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Great. Thank you. 

17 You'll now be sworn in. 

18 (OATH GIVEN) 

19 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Staff 

20 report, please. 

21 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

22 The applicants, Advocate Health Care Network and 

23 Advocate Health & Hospitals Corporation, doing 

24 business as Advocate Christ Medical Center, are 

- .. , - - . .. . -  
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1 proposing a large modernization of ambulatory care 

2 service on the campus of the hospital. 

3 The applicants are before you today because 

i 
1 
j 
I 

i 
i 
1 
A 

4 the project is in excess of the capital expenditure 

5 minimum of approximately $11.8 million. 

6 The applicants are constructing a nine- 

7 story addition that will house a number of ambulatory 

8 services. The anticipated completion date is December 

9 31, 2014. No public hearing was requested. And the 

10 total cost of the project is approximatel.y $202 

11 million. 

12 State Agency notes that this proposed 

13 modernization appears warranted given the historical 

14 utilization of the outpatient services. 

15 And, finally, the applicants failed to meet 

16 one criteria: The size requirements for recovery 

17 stations. The applicants exceed the gross foot 

18 standard by 33 gross square foot per station. Our 

19 standard is 180 gross square foot per station. 

2 0 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

2 1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. ComInentS 

22 for the Board. 

2 3 MS. TALLARICO: Thank you. I want to thank 

24 you for your time today and for allowing us the 
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1 opportunity to present the merits of the Advocate 

2 Christ Medical Center/Hope Children's Hospital 

page 232 

3 Ambulatory Pavilj-on project. We are very pleased that 

4 our project received no opposition, no public hearing 

5 was called, and no opposition letters were filed. We 

6 believe this lack of opposition means that our 

7 community recognizes the need for this project and 

8 recognizes the merits it will provide in delivering 

9 high quality care to the patients of the Southland 

10 community. 

11 I know there are a few new members on the 

12 Board members. So I'll provide just a few brief 

13 moments of comments about Advocate Christ Medical 

14 Center and Hope Children's Hospital to give you a 

15 little back of background. 

16 Advocate Christ Medical is a 690-bed 

17 regional referral center providing tertiary and 

18 quaternary services to the residents of the Southland 

19 community. 

2 0 We're the largest hospital in the greater 

21 Chicago area as defined by annual patient days, per 

22 the Crains Chicago Business, and ranked fourth largest 

23 hospital in Illinois for total covered Medicaid days. 

2 4 We're a leader in clinical breakthrough 

u-. . . - . - 
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1 technologies and treatments and are nationally 

2 recognized for many of our programs including cardiac 

3 care, cancer care, stroke care, perinatal services, 

4 and Level 1 Trauma services. 

5 In 2005, we were one of the first hospitals 

6 in the country to receive Magnet Nursing designation 

7 and have been redesignated on two occasions. 

8 Our education programs train more than 400 

9 medical residents, 600 medical students, 800 nursing 

10 students, and 2,500 medical technologists each year 

11 through our relationships with 14 universities and 

12 colleges. 

13 And this past July we were very honored to 

14 receive, 94 of our physicians were included in the 

15 National Top Doctors Listing, and 11 of our 14 

16 special.ties were honored by U.S. News Top Hospitals. 

17 So background to support the ambulatory 

18 project includes the following: There continues to 

19 be, as you heard, an increasing demand for clinical 

20 care and services in the Southland region, in 

21 particularly at Christ and Hope Children's Hospitals. 

22 The most pressing issue facing our medical center 

23 today is the profound lack of space to meet the needs 

24 of our patients in the communities. 

A- . .-a u 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 

i 

1 

I 
I 

! 

I 
i 
i 1 
i 
I 
! 

: 
I 
i 
1 

1 
i 

1 
I 
1 

1 
www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



Page 234 1 
1 Over the years, as inpatient and outpatient 1 

d 

2 volumes have grown, our space and physical plant have i .! 
3 remained essentially the same. 

d 
! 

4 Teaching hospitals and referral centers, of 

5 which we are often compared to, are approximately 50 

6 percent larger in comparison to Advocate Christ 

7 Medical Center when it comes to square footage to 

8 provide services. 

9 Today, our medical center treats over 

10 350,000 outpatients annually, and of that about 85 1 
i 
i 

11 percent are treated at the Oak Lawn campus alone. I 
1 

12 That's about 300,000 or approximately a thousand 

13 patients a day visit our campus for services. 

14 To address the increasing demand for 

15 services and the space shortfall, our Medical Center 

16 embarked on a multi-year master facilities planning 1 i 
i 

17 process to redevelop the campus. ! 

18 
i 

The first phase includes the construction ! 
! 

19 of the Ambulatory pavilion, which is the subject of i 
i 

20 this application. i 
1 

2 1 The second major phase will include 

22 construction of an additional inpatient capacity in 

23 the form of a bed tower and expanded ancillary 

24 services. An application will be filed within the 
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1 next year for that project. 

2 And either as part of the second phase or 

3 potentially a third phase, the expansion of Hope 

4 Children's Hospital will be requested and put forward 

5 to the Board. 

6 So that's just a little bit of a 

7 snapshotted future. 

8 I would like to address the SIR, which has 

9 one negative finding. 

10 The proposed Phase I Recovery Area or 

11 referred to as the PACU exceeds the State Standards by 

12 139 square foot. We provided documentation that 

13 explains the need for the additional square footage 

14 will allow us to implement the recently enacted 

15 changes in the Hospital Licensing Code that now allows 

16 visitors to the PACU. Previously the only patients 

17 who could have visitors were children. Now the state 

18 codes requires that all patients may have visitors. 

19 The additional space is needed to primarily 

20 accommodate patient visitors. So the rooms had to be 

21 enlarged so we could allow for that space. ' It 

22 includes not only space for the visitors but also at 

23 least one extra staff person to oversee and assist 

24 visitors. 
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1 Outside of the patient care area, we have 

2 provided space for visitor gowning, hand washing and 

i 

] 
I 

3 waiting. 
I 

4 Other factors that have added to space 

5 allocation include the provision of four private rooms 

6 for patients. So most recovery spaces have curtains 

7 in between. We did create four private rooms, which 

8 allows for isolation, either for patients who are 

9 potentially infectious or may be immunocompromised, 

10 then they could also acquire an infection, and then 

11 children because often post-surgery, are a little bit 

j 

I 
I 

12 out of sorts and can disrupt everybody else in the 

13 recovery area. So we created those rooms. 

14 We provided a larger physician dictation 

15 area to accommodate power imaging display moni.tors, 

16 storage for cribs, imaging equipment, freestanding 

17 head walls in six of the rooms. 

18 The Phase I recovery area when added with 

19 the Surgery Area occupy all three -- all of the third 

20 level of the Pavilion, and they are shared between --  

21 they're shared spaces between the two areas. 

22 Together, the square footage of the PACU Recovery and 

23 the Surgery Space is actually 17.6 percent less than 

24 State Agency Guidelines. So it's only that PACU space 
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1 that put us over. 

2 Overall, the project is actually 11.2 

3 percent less than the State Agency Guidelines when you 

4 look at the entire nine stories of the pavilion. 

5 We hope the Planning Board agrees that we 

6 have justified the modest additional square footage in 

7 the PACU. 

8 We would like to recognize and thank Mr. 

9 Constantino and Mr. Roate for their technical 

10 assistance during the preparation of our application, 

11 and once again thank you for your time, and be happy 

12 to take any questions that the Board may have. 

13 Thank you. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 

15 Questions from the Board. Mr. Sewell. 

16 MR. SEWELL: I want to ask the State Agency 

17 staff a question. So is there now a conflict between 

18 the hospital licensure requirements and the 

19 certificate of need requirements on this square 

20 footage because of this March --  

2 1 MR. CONSTANTINO: Yeah. March in 2011, the 

22 Hospital Licensing Act was or the Hospital Licensing 

23 Code was amended that now allows for this additional 

24 -- additional individuals to be in the recovery rooms. 
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1 So in this case they had to expand this area to 

2 accommodate these additional i.ndividuals. They --  The 1 
3 hospitals do have to have a policy in place to i 

i 
4 accommodate these additional individuals. I imagine 1 

j 

5 Advocate has that policy. 

6 MS. OLSON: Does that mean we need to 

'7 change our rules? 
i 1 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 1 
9 MR. CONSTANTINO: Well, we'll have to take 

10 another look at it, yes. 

11 MS. OLSON: I don't have a question I have 

12 a comment. I think that the thing impressed me the 

13 most about what you all did to get to this point, when 

14 you did your due diligence in looking at your options, 

15 you even blew yourselves away with what the options I 
I 
? 

16 were, and you came up with the best option. I think I 

17 to me that speaks highly of the due diligence you did. j 

18 You really did your homework to try to find the best 
i 

19 option. I applaud you for that. 
E 
1 
i 

2 0 MS. TALLARICO: Thank you. 
i 
I 

2 1 DR. BURDEN: I have just two questions, one 

22 of which is a little advice. The other is more asking 

23 for an answer. In my years of operating with kids at 

24 Children's Memorial Hospital, I found creating more 

. , .A- 
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1 space created more problems. That meant grandma could 

2 get in there. 

(LAUGHTER) 

6 grandparents. 

MS. OLSON: There's a grandmother sitting 

10 the last 40 years, but anyway I'm being a little 

11 facetious there, but that's what caused me headache, 

12 grandmas, not the kids. 

The other question I have is about we have 

14 a wonderful application from your institution. I 

15 think by 2005 --  I've been on this Board five years -- 

16 in 2009 -- excuse me. Under organ transplantations in 

17 the hospital profile for 2009 no kidney transplants. 

18 I was excited about the Christ project, Loyola people 

19 coming down. Sharp, talented, experienced. What's 

21 because this issue came up earlier, and I got a little 

22 heat from some people about my big mouth regarding 

23 transplantation. I'd like to - -  

MS. TALLARICO: I'm happy to talk about 
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1 that and happy to report since our approval we've 

2 actually performed --  we've actually evaluated over 

3 450 patients for transplantation. We currently have 

4 patients in various stages of that process, but we 

5 have 45 -- approximately 45 patients on our waiting 

6 list. So they've actually been evaluated, approved, 

7 meet all the criteria and are waiting. We've 

8 performed three kidney transplants since that approval 

9 just slightly over a year ago. So things are moving 

10 along very well. 

11 DR. BURDEN: Tell those talented people to 

12 get their rear ends in gear because I got a little 

13 heat about that. 1'd like to hear the data. I mean 

14 I'm not asking you for formal presentation, but I'm 

15 looking forward to seeing it because there's a need in 

16 my book. 

17 MS. TALLARICO: There absolutely is a need. 

18 I brought those numbers with me. I knew you would be 

19 interested still. 

2 0 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Member Penn. 

21 MR. PENN: Yes. Big project, $202 million, 

22 three-year completion date. I always have this 

23 concern. You know, the Board by statute has a right 

24 to impose a fine. If you do not complete this project 

- --%.*--"""- ------ A A % - * m <  ~.- 
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1 on time -- and should I be looking down here. 

MS. TALLARICO: We know where you might be 

MR. PENN: We really don't like to put 

6 you are --  If the contractor does not complete the 

7 project on time, do you have something built in the 

8 contract where he will be -- the contractor will be 

9 paying these fines? 

MR. SO: Sure. 

MR. PENN: Can you explain that a little 

12 further? 

14 contractor would then be responsible for the fines 

15 associated that come from the Board? 

MR. PENN: Yes, by -- usually there's a 

17 performance bond that they will complete this project. 

MR. SO: Sure. I'm actually going to 

19 ask -- 

MR. PENN: Within this budget. We're going 

21 to hold somebody's feet to the fire. This is what 

22 we' re approving. 

MS. TALLARICO: We're going to ask Mr. 

24 Patrick Lyons, L-y-o-n-s. He was not originally sworn 
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1 in to speak to that. He's our Director of Design and 

2 Construction. 

3 (OATH GIVEN) 

4 MR. LYONS: First of all, this is a very 

5 large project. We have a very good general contractor 

6 selected for this project. We've actually looked at 

7 the timing of this and how much time we're going to 

8 need. We have about a 24 to 26-month construction 

9 schedule and through the closeout period. We feel 

10 very confident that we'll have thls done well within 

11 the timeframe that we've asked in what we submitted. 

12 MR. PENN: Okay. I'm glad that you feel 

13 confident, but is there something built in this -- his 

14 construction contract if he does not get this finished 

15 within this budget within this timeframe, that you can 

16 withhold some of his monies for any fines that we may 

17 be imposing upon this facility? 

18 MR. LYONS: Yes, we do hold retention, 

19 which is a percentage of every pay application per 

20 month, and that retention at the end is really the 

21 incentive to get it done on time and within the 

22 budget. 

23 MR. PENN: Okay. Thank you. 

24 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: My question is fairly 
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1 simple. Being familiar with the campus, can you tell 

2 me where this is going to be because I just don't see 

3 it. 

4 MS. TALLARICO: It's in the physician's 

5 parking lot, but --  

6 MR. URSO: Where are the physicians going 

7 to park? 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Northeast corner. 

9 MS. TALLARICO: It's actually right on 95th 

10 Street between Kilbourn and Kostner. So  right^ on 

11 95th. 

12 MR. SO: Help you imagine it. Here's a 

13 very high level diagram where it potentially will be. 

14 MR. URSO: Southwest corner. 

15 MS. TALLARICO: Yes. You can see the 

16 Ambulatory Pavilion window with a connected parking 

17 garage. 

18 MR. HILGENBRINK: I have a question of Mr. 

19 Lyons, I believe, is the construction manager. Is 

20 there any green components to the construction? Is it 

21 going to be LEED certified in any way? 

22 MR. LYONS: Yes, we are targeting the LEED 

23 Gold certification. 

2 4 MR. HILGENBRINK: Very good. Thank you. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Justice Greiman. 

2 JUSTICE GREIMAN: LEED? 

3 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Robert, we just had a 

4 question about LEED. Do you want to answer that? 

5 MR. HILGENBRINK: It's a certification by 

6 the Green Building Council on the Leadership, Energy 

7 Efficiency and Design, I believe, is what the acronym 

8 stands for. So they have various rating standards and 

9 Gold is very high and very difficult to obtain. So -- 

10 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: It's progressive. I 

11 compliment you on the whole project. Seeing no other 

12 questions, I --  I'm sorry. 

13 JUSTICE GREIMAN: What did you do this 

14 morning? What did you do this morning? Anybody with 

15 you here? 

16 MS. TALLARICO: Yes, we were here. 

17 JUSTICE GREIMAN: So you're a South 

18 Suburban area, and I wondered if you would be willing 

19 to say that like other hospitals, you would help with 

20 any of the displaced people from Oak Forest Hospital 

21 if they're still around in 19 --  in 2014? 

2 2 MS. TALLARICO: Absolutely, and we actually 

23 provided, Advocate Health Care did, on behalf of 

24 Christ Medical Center, Hope Children's, South Suburban 
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1 and Trinity in the south region that we are there to 

2 support --  

3 JUSTICE GREIMAN: We will put you down with 

4 the other five. Thank you very much. 

5 MS. TALLARICO: Please do. Dr. Mistry 

6 would like to make a comment. 

7 DR. MISTRY: I recently joined the medical 

8 staff at South Suburban Hospital in the emergency 

9 department, and one of my first shifts, emergency 

10 department, I received a phone call for a transfer 

11 patient from that facility, and being the new person 

12 there I asked the question, how do we handle these 

13 calls, and without a moment's hesitation, the response 

14 I got from the staff there was we just take the 

15 patients. 

16 JUSTICE GRETMAN: Thank you. Good to hear 

17 that. Thankyou. 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Could have used you 

19 about two and a half hours ago. Thank you very much. 

20 Timing is everything. Again I will entertain a motion 

21 to approve motion 11-019 Advocate Christ Medical 

22 Center to construct a nine-story outpatient pavilion 

23 at a cost of $202 million. 

24 MR. HILGENBRTNK: SO move. 
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1 MS. OLSON: Second. 

2 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Mr. Hilgenbrink, 

3 seconded by Ms. Olson. 

4 Dr. Burden. 

5 DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

6 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

7 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

8 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

9 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

10 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

I. 1 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

12 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

13 MS. OLSON: Yes. 

14 MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

15 MR. PENN: Yes. 

16 MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

17 MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

18 MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

19 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

2 0 MR. ROATE: That's eight votes in the 

21 positive. 

22 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. 

23 Congratulations. Wonderful project. 

2 4 MS. TALLARICO: Thank you. Appreciate it. 
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1 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Decatur Memorial 

2 Hospital. Do we have any public comments? We have 

3 public comments for this item. 

4 MS. FAHEY: I am the applicant. So -- 

5 MS. AVERY: This was an error. Thank you. 

6 I wondered. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: That having been said, 

8 if you would introduce yourself and be sworn in, 

9 please. 

10 MS. FAHEY: Yes, my name is Linda Fahey. 

11 I'm the Vice-President and Chief Nursing Officer for 

12 Decatur Memorial Hospital. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Wel.come, MS. Fahey. 

14 You can pull that mic closer to yourself. Can we have 

15 the staff report? 

16 MR. CONSTANTINO: The applicant Decatur 

17 Memorial Hospital is proposing a discontinuation of a 

18 61 --  a 61-bed long-term care unit at the hospital. 

19 The applicants are before you today because they're 

20 proposing to discontinue a category of service. 

21 The anticipated project completion date is 

22 December 31, 2011. There's no cost to this project. 

23 No hearing was requested and no letters in support or 

24 opposition were received by the State Agency. 
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1 We note that the proposed discontinuation 

2 will result in an increase in the number of long-term 

3 care beds needed in Macon County planning area. 

4 The long-term care units for Decatur 

5 Memorial Hospital average utilization for the past 

6 five years has been approximately 40 percent. 

7 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, sir. Hi. 

9 Would you like to advise the Board? 

10 MS. FAHEY: Would you like to swear me in 

11 first? 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Oh, I'm sorry. 

13 (OATH GIVEN) 

14 MS. FAHEY: First, on behalf of Decatur 

i 

i 
i 

15 Memorial Hospital, I'd like to thank the staff for 

16 their assistance. They were very helpful during this 

17 process, and I appreciate their work. As we move 

18 forward, Decatur Memorial Hospital, really with the 

19 low census in our skilled nursing facility, is seeing 

20 a need to change that facility to meet our community 

21 needs by making those actually private rooms in our 

22 hospital, and even though the service area shows a 

23 need for beds, 13 of the 19 skilled nursing facilities 

24 in our community are actually running below your 
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1 target. And so we believe that they can more 

2 effectively handle these particular residents, and 

3 that we together will meet the needs in our community, 

4 and that's really our focus right now. Open to any 

5 questions that you might have. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Any 

7 questions? Hearing none. I'll entertain a motion to 

8 approve project 11-020 to discontinue a 61-bed 

9 long-term care category of service at Decatur Memorial 

10 Hospital. 

11 MS. OLSON: So move. 

12 DR. BURDEN: Second. 

13 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Ms. Olson, 

14 second by Dr. Burden. 

15 Dr. Burden. 

16 DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

17 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

18 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

19 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

2 0 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 2 1 

22 MR. HILGENBKINK: Yes. 

23 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

2 4 MS. OLSON: Yes. 
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MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

MR. PENN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: That's eight votes in the 

8 positive. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. 

10 Congratulations. 

MS. FAHEY: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Sounds like a good 

13 thing for the community. 

Moving on to 11-021 Meadowbrook Manor, 

15 LaGrange, any public comment? Hearing none. Folks 

16 come up and introduce yourselves. We'll then swear 

17 you. If you want to introduce yourself, please, and 

18 spell your name for our reporter. 

MR. KNIERY: Thank you. With us today are 

20 Mr. Sheets --  Charles Sheets, legal counsel for the 

22 consultant, K-n-i-e-r-y. To my left is Mr. Chris 

23 Vangel, V-a-n-g-e-1, representing the applicant. To 

24 his left is Mr. Maze, John Maze, M-a-2-e, Project 
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1 Manager. Now Scott Gabrys is the CFO for the 

2 applicant, G-a-b-r-y-s. Mr. David Shires, Facility 

3 Administrator, S-h-i-r-e-s, Mr. Steven Sussholz, SAS 

4 Architects, S-u-s-s-h-0-1-2, and Mr. Charles Foley. 

5 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: There is a five percent 

6 addition for more than five people coming up here. 

7 (OATH GIVEN) 

8 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Staff 

9 report. 

10 MR. CONSTANTINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

11 The applicants, MML Properties, LLC, and Butterfield 

12 Healthcare VII, LLC, are proposing a modernization of 

13 its 197-bed facility. Cost of the project is 

14 approximately $28.6 million. 

15 The applicants are before you because the 

16 project is in excess of the capital expenditure 

17 minimum of approximately $6.7 million. 

18 The anticipated project completion date is 

19 December 31st, 2014. No public hearing was requested, 

20 and no letters of opposition or support were received 

21 by the State Agency. 

22 The State Agency notes the following: The 

23 proposed modernization appears warranted based upon 

24 the age of the facility and issues with IDPH Life 
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I Safety Standards. The applicants are not in 

2 compliance with the financial ratios, and exceed our 

3 preplanning costs and site survey State Board 

4 Standards. 

5 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

6 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you. Who is 

7 going to address the Board? 

8 MR. KNIERY: I will try to. John Kniery. 

9 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you, John. 

10 MR. KNIERY: I'd like to thank the staff 

11 for their conscientious review on this project. As 

12 stated in Part 1110, need portion of the project was 

13 found to be in total compliance. Additionally, no 

14 public hearing was requested nor opposition submitted 

15 on this project. This facility was purchased by the 

16 applicant in 2005, and the project has been in the 

17 works since 2006. 

18 There are only two findings of issue under 

19 part 1120, the ratios, and line items under the 

20 project costs. 

21 With respect to the ratios, the applicant 

22 purchased the facility in 2005 out of receivership. 

23 As documented in the application, on pages 179 through 

24 191, and on pages 268 through 272, over the most 
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1 recent three-year period, the applicant has been i 
! 

2 expending approximately $150,000 annually on routine 

3 maintenance and capital expenditures just to maintain 

4 the facility. 

5 In addition, due to the aging physical 
: 

6 plants, the facility has an effective capacity of only 

7 135 beds compared to licensed capacity of 189 beds, 

8 thus maintaining the ongoing operations and resulting 

9 financial ratios have been difficult and proved the 

10 impetus for this project. However, please note that 

11 the projected year target utilization, this project 

12 will not only meet the state's ratios but will exceed 
1 

13 them solely based on being able to offer their full 

i 
14 licensed complement. Please note this is on a i 

15 combined basis. 

16 We can have Mr. Gabrys address any further 1 
17 issues you have on the ratios or the historical t 

I 

18 financia1.s. 
i 
1 1 

19 On the issue of project cost, the project's 1 
I 

20 preplanning cost exceed - -  the project exceeds the 1 
I 
/ 

21 standard for the site survey and site prep costs by 

22 3.2 percent. All the other costs meet the state's 

23 norms. The higher preplanning and site survey site 

24 prep costs are attributable to the length of time this ' 

-- -*--- - .--- d < :I 
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1 project has been in the works and the nature of the 

2 project. 

As we have set forth with detail in our 

4 application, this project is in a replacement facility 

5 that will involve the demolition of two parts of 

6 existing structure as well as remodeling of other 

7 parts of the structure. 

The existing structure's also being 

9 considered for a registered historic building 

10 desj-gnation, which has its own unique project issues 

11 involving building demolition, asbestos abatement and 

12 rebuilding of infrastructure. There are additional 

13 civil engineering and architectural fees in the 

14 preplanning portion of this project for that. 

15 However, it is important to note that the applicant 

16 was wise in putting in the time in preplanning and 

17 site preparation as construction costs were able to be 

18 significantly decreased. Specifically, the two-sided 

19 line items equate to $372,348 over the state's norm. 

21 $2.4 million under the norm, thus a cost of savings of 

22 approximately over $2 million as compared. 

The majority of the existing three-story 

24 structure is over a hundred years old. All of the 
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1 existing systems including the mechanical, electrical, 

2 call, food service, and elevators must be updated 

3 and/or replaced to meet building codes. 

4 Finally, there's an outstanding need for 

5 253 beds in the service area, which this project 

6 really cannot address except through the renovation of 

7 its existing licensed capacity. 

8 Charles wanted me to go on with another 18 

9 pages, but I think we can cut that short. 

10 (LAUGHTER) 

11 MR. KNIERY: And I thank the staff for 

12 highlighting the overall need for this project. We 

13 welcome any questions that you may have. 

14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 

15 Are there questions of the Board? Dr. Burden. 

16 DR. BURDEN: You guys know how I am on this 

17 1 star on Medicare rating. I see that the applicant's 

18 facility currently has a 1 star Medicare rating. Of 

19 course, I recognize why, and I anticipate having to 

20 come back if we approve this venture getting the 

21 number up to No. 5. We had a long talk about that, 

22 Mr. Sheets, I believe you commented pro when it's in 

23 your favor and negative when it isn't. So what do you 

24 think? Can you bring it up to a 5? 
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MR. SHEETS: We'll certainly try, Dr. 

2 Burden. 

DR. BURDEN: Doesn't look like a big 

4 challenge. 

MR. URSO: How much care do you provide at 

6 the facility, Mr. Sheets? 

MR. SHEETS: Not very much as you know, Mr. 

8 Urso. But I will say this, that the applicant does 

9 operate a manor that has a $-star rating. I mean 

10 we're always striving to get higher rating for all of 

11 our client's, you know, facilities obviously, but this 

12 one has some unique problems. We've had a waiver in 

13 place with the federal government for four years on 

14 the construction type, and the building itself has a 

15 third floor that's been shut down because it's 

16 dormered like an old orphanage, but it's --  if you've 

17 ever been to that area of LaGrange, it's a beautiful 

18 building from the outside, it's just a hundred years 

19 old, and the renovation will keep the building and its 

20 character. It's going to match the existing, you 

21 know, construction, except it will be new and 

22 hopefully much improved and much more operational. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Any other questions? 

MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 
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CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Mr. Sewell. 

MR. SEWELL: I'm looking at the State 

3 Agency Report, and it's Table Seven. It's this ratio 

4 analysis compared to State Standards. 

MR. SHEETS: Mr. Gabrys is probably the 

6 best person to address this. 

MR. SEWELL: Okay. It looks like - -  I 

8 guess the problem other than just simply not meeting 

9 some of these that the state staff seems to be 

10 pointing out, it looks like there's too much debt in 

11 this project. Is that a correct assumption in 

12 relation to state standards? 

MR. GABRYS: When we -- When we pulled 

14 these numbers together for the presentation, it's -- 

15 you show properties and show operating entities 

16 separate, a separate set of calculations and ratios, 

17 and it's difficult to meet all the ratios on both 

18 sides of that. You really need to look at them on a 

19 combined basis to get them into -- to get them into 

20 compliance. On the property entity, the debt service 

21 coverage is 1.39, I believe, and that's slightly 

22 short. When you look at the operating side of the -- 

23 of the - -  of the analysis, there's basically no debt 

24 service on the -- there is no debt on the operating 
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1 side. We would simply shift money from the operating 

2 to the property side form of it, slightly increase the 

3 lease payment in order to get that debt service ratio 

4 up to 1.5. 

5 MR. SEWELL: This is related to the capital 

6 costs, right? I mean what I'm looking at on Table 

7 Seven relates to the capital part of the operation 

8 more so than the other of the proposed capital 

9 investment as opposed to -- as opposed to just 

10 operating expenses, like this percent debt to total. 

I1 capitalization. Looks like the state standard is 

12 what, less than or equal. to 80 percent, and this 

13 application is 93 percent. I mean the State Agency 

14 Report. 

15 MR. KNIERY: That's correct. That's 

16 correct. That --  That's just for the ownership 

17 entity. If you combine the two, you come u p  with 

18 ratios. 

19 MR. VANGEL: I'm sorry. Chris Vangel. I 

20 apologize. The table right below that, it says 

21 Butterfield Health Care. That shows 80 percent on the 

22 projected -- for 2016 it says 0. So what he's saying 

23 if you combine those two -- 

2 4 MR. CONSTANTINO: We don't --  
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MR. SEWELL: I wanted to hear what Mike had 

2 to say on that. 

MR. CONSTANTINO: What --  Mr. Sewell, these 

4 two entities, MML Properties, LLC, owns the property, 

5 owns the land and the building. The mortgage rests 

6 with them, that --  that LLC. And the Butterfield, 

7 LLC, that's the operating entity. There's no debt 

8 involved in that entity at all. However, we don't 

9 combine these because we have to look at each 

10 applicant separately. We don't combine these ratios 

11 as John and Chuck have done. We don't do that. We 

12 look at each individual. 

MR. SEWELL: But the bottom line is with 

14 respect to the capital investments that's being 

15 proposed, this doesn't meet the financial ratios 

16 related to indebtedness that are state standards. 

MR. CONSTANTINO: Yes, that's --  Yeah, 

18 they're going to be over our state standard for the -- 

19 for the LLC, that owns that property. 

MR. SEWELL: Okay. 

MR. CONSTANTINO: We've got two separate 

22 LLCs here, one's just for operation and one that owns 

23 the real estate. This is how these long-term care 

24 facilities normally set up their business model. And 

MlDWEST LlTlGATlON SERVICES 
www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 



MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES 
www.rnidwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334 

Page 260 
1 you'll be - -  As we go along, you'll be seeing this 

2 type of structure for all these long-term care 

3 facilities for the most part. 

4 MR. SHEETS: I would point out one thing. 

5 This is a HUD project. We're going to have to meet 

6 HUD standards or we'll never get off the ground, and 

7 on page 21, if you care to look at the application, 

8 Mr. Kniery set forth the combined financials. So you 

9 can see how the numbers look, when they're combined -- 

10 on 21 of the application. 

11 MR. KNIERY: We also provide on pages 19 

12 and 20, as the state requires, individually broken 

13 out, but I just think that page 21 kind of shows you 

14 an entire picture. 

15 MR. URSO: You're going to modernize the 

16 entire facility, right? 

17 MR. KNIERY: With demolition of two wings, 

18 but yes. 

19 MR. URSO: What's going to happen to the 

20 patients? Do you currently have to start the 

21 project --  

22 MR. VANGEL: I apologize again. Chris 

23 Vangel. I'm a little slow today. The first part of 

24 the project is demolishing one-half of the building 
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1 and constructing the new portion, and then the 

2 residents that are there now would move over to the 

3 new wing, and then the portion that they lived in 

4 would be demolished afterwards. So wouldn't have to 

5 interfere with their day-to-day. 

6 MR. URSO: Thank you. 

7 CHAIRMAN GALASSLE: Any other questions? 

8 Hearing none, may I have a motion to approve project 

9 11-021 for the modernization of 179-bed long-term care 

10 facility at a cost of $28,630,369? 

11 JUSTICE GREIMAN: So move. 

12 DR. BURDEN: Seconded. 

13 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moved and seconded. 

14 MR. ROATE: Motion made by Justice Greiman, 

15 seconded by Dr. Burden. 

16 Dr. Burden. 

17 DR. BURDEN: yes. 

18 MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

19 MR. EAKER: Yes. 

2 0 MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

2 1 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

2 2 MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

23 MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

2 4 MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

L-:-,--. . . ,  , 
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MS. OLSON: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

MR. PENN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

MR. SEWELL: No, the liability ratio. 

MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: That's seven votes in the 

9 positive, one vote in the negative. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Motion passes. 

11 Congratulations. 

MR. SHEETS: I believe you might have said 

13 the number wrong on the beds when you did the motion. 

14 I don't know how significant that will be. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: 179-bed. 

MR. KNIERY: 197-bed is what it should be. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Oh, okay. 197-bed. 

MR. SHEETS: The 7 and the 9 were flipped. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Many of us are slow 

21 today. So thank you very much. Congratulations. 

MR. SHEETS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Moving forward, I'm 
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1 the time of the day. Items 6 through 15 are all DSI, 

2 organizational items. None of these ten have any 

3 opposition attached to them. I'm going to recommend 

4 the motion. Admi-nistrator Avery is going to read the 

5 ten motions for the record, and I'll entertain a roll 

6 call vote. We will entertain any question on any 

7 item, but I'm just suggesting that the time of day, 

8 there is no opposition ta any of these items, that we 

9 vote them together and do it in a single vote. 

10 Consensus, are we comfortable with that? 

11 Looks like a consensus to me. Okay. So the motion 

12 will read: To approve, and you're going to read all 

13 ten. 

14 MS. AVERY: Okay. 

15 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: The motion is to 

16 approve project. 

3.7 MS. AVERY: Okay. Project 11-027. Do you 

18 want the amounts? 

19 MR. URSO: Yeah. 

2 0 MS. AVERY: DSI Arlington Heights Renal 

21 Center, for a change of ownership of an 18-station 

22 ESRD facility at a cost of $4,574,651. 

23 Project No. 11-028, DSI Buffalo Grove Renal 

24 Center, for a change of ownership of a 16-station ESRD 
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1 facility at a cost of $9,813,647. 

2 Project No. 11-029, DSI Evanston Renal 

3 Center, for a change of ownership of an 18-station 

4 ESRD facility at a cost of $2,003,887. 

5 Project No. 11-030, DSI Hazel Crest Renal 

6 Center, for a change of ownership of a 17-station ESRD 

7 facility at a cost of $14,801,847. 

8 Project No. 11-031, DSI Renal Center for a 

9 change of ownership of a 28-station ESRD facility at a 

10 cost of $5,633,602. 

11 Project No. 11-032, DSI Markham Renal 

12 Center for a change of ownership of a 24-station ESRD 

13 facility at a cost of $100,000. 

14 Project No. 11-033, DSI Schaumburg Renal 

15 Center for a change of ownership of a 14-station ESRD 

16 facility at a cost of $13,258,102. 

17 Project No. 11-034, DSI Scottsdale Renal 

18 Center for a change of ownership of a 35-station ESRD 

19 facility at a cost of $22,295,899. 

2 0 Project No. 11-035, DSI South Holland Renal 

21 Center for a change of ownership of a 20-station ESRD 

22 facility a t a  cost of $14,444,642. 

2 3 Project No. 11-036, DSI Waukegan Renal 

24 Center for a change of ownership of a 22-station ESRD 
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1 facility at a cost of $36,913,588. 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Again before I ask for 

3 a motion and a second, just again for the record, all 

4 ten of these are all change of ownership and there are 

5 no opposition to any. That having been said, any 

6 questions on any of the ten? Yes, sir. 

7 DR. BURDEN: I'd just like to read the 

8 record briefly since we had a long discussion on this 

9 with the previous --  I'm quoting from the State Agency 

10 Report on page 5. "Davita accepts and dialyzes 

11 patients with renal failure needing a regular course 

12 of dialysis without regard to race, color, national 

13 origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, religion, 

14 disability or ability to pay. Complete charity care 

15 is very unusual as most dialysis patients are covered 

16 by some type of payment s y ~ t e m . ~  I made that point 

17 earlier and it was a -- 

18 CHAIRMAN GALAssIE: That applies to a1.l ten 

19 applications. Thank you. Motion to -- Do I have 

20 motion? 

2 1 MR. SEWELL: You want a motion. I make a 

22 motion. 

23 DR. BURDEN: Second. 

2 4 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 
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1 Roll call. 

MR. ROATE: Motion made by Mr. Sewel.1, 

3 seconded by Dr. Burden. 

Dr. Burden. 

DR. BURDEN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Eaker. 

MR. EAKER: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Justice Greiman. 

JUSTICE GREIMAN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Hilgenbrink. 

MR. HILGENBRINK: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Ms. Olson. 

MS. OLSON: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Penn. 

MR. PENN: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Mr. Sewell. 

MR. SEWELL: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: Chairman Galassie. 

CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Yes. 

MR. ROATE: That's eight votes in the 

21 positive. Motion passes. Thank you very much, ladies 

22 and gentlemen. 

Furthermore, based upon the time of the 

24 day, looking at the agendas item 7 through 11, none of 
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1 them are terribly timely. I've talked to staff. I'm 

2 going to recommend that we push these to the beginning 

3 of our next meeting. That will not have any negative 

4 impact. That will save you all about 45 minutes 

5 today. So I would recommend a motion to adjourn 

6 unless there are any other questions that Board 

7 members would like to place. 

8 DR. BURDEN: I have a question. October 12 

9 is the next date, or is it the 12th and 13th? I have 

I 

i 

10 a conflict. What is it? 

i 
I 

11 MS. AVERY: 12th and 13th. 1 
! 

12 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: It's a two-day meeting. 3 
13 DR. BURDEN: Here in Joliet? j 

i 
14 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: We're trying to stay 

15 within a 10 to 3 or 10 to 4 time range. So the day is 

16 not so uncomfortably long. 

17 JUSTICE GREIMAN: Two-day meeting here? 

18 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Here or within this 3 

19 area. We're looking at Bowling Brook or something. j 
20 We've looked at the -- Different members have 

21 suggested different places. We really are looking at 
I 

22 all of them. 

23 Give me a motion. 
3 

24 DR. BURDEN: Yes, so move. 
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1 MR. EAKER: Second. 

2 CHAIRMAN GALASSIE: Thank you very much. 

3 (HEARING ADJOURNED) 

4 

5 END TIME: 4:40 P.M. 

6 
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